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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, has taken a “Green Initiative” in the Corporate Governance by allowing 
paperless compliances by the Companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice / documents including Annual 
Report (shareholders communication) can be sent by email to its Members. As a support to this “Green Initiative” of the Government, 
Shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail ids / addresses, are requested to kindly register their e-mail addresses, in 
respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. Members, who hold shares in 
physical form, are requested to kindly send the e-communication Registration Form as attached with this Annual Report to Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company (M/s. Ankit Consultancy Private Limited).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world 
as per the Central Statistics Organization (CSO) and International 
Monetary Fund (IMF). According to the Economic Survey 2015-16, the 
Indian economy will continue to grow more than 7 per cent in 2016-17.
The improvement in India’s economic fundamentals has accelerated 
in the year 2015 with the combined impact of strong government 
reforms, RBI’s inflation focus supported by benign global commodity 
prices.
India was ranked the highest, globally in terms of consumer confidence 
during October-December quarter of 2015, continuing its earlier trend 
of being ranked the highest during first three quarters of 2015, as per 
the global consumer confidence index created by Nielsen.

MARKETS SIZE
According to IMF World Economic Outlook Update (January 2016), 
Indian economy is expected to grow at 7-7.75 per cent during FY 
2016-17, despite the uncertainties in the global market. The Economic 
Survey 2015-16 had forecasted that the Indian economy will be 
growing by more than seven per cent for the third successive year 
2016-17 and can start growing at eight per cent or more in next two 
years.
Foreign direct investment (FDI) in India have increased by 29 per 
cent during October 2014-December 2015 period post the launch of 
Make in India campaign, compared to the 15-month period before the 
launch.
The Nikkei/Market Manufacturing Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI) 
for February 2016 was reported at 51.1, indicating expansion in Indian 
manufacturing activity for a second month in a row, as both domestic 
and foreign demand increased due to lower prices.
The steps taken by the government in recent times have shown 
positive results as India’s gross domestic product (GDP), registering a 
growth rate of 7.6 per cent. The economic activities which witnessed 
significant growth were ‘financing, insurance, real estate and business 
services’ at 11.5 per cent and ‘trade, hotels, transport, communication 
services’ at 10.7 per cent.
According to a Goldman Sachs report released in September 2015, 
India could grow at a potential 8 per cent on average during fiscal 2016 
to 2020 powered by greater access to banking, technology adoption, 
urbanization and other structural reforms.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
With the improvement in the economic scenario, there have been 
various investments leading to increased M&A activity. Some of them 
are as follows:
India has emerged as one of the strongest performers with respect to 
deals across the world in terms of Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A). 
The total transaction value of M&A involving Indian companies stood 
at US$ 26.3 billion with 930 deals in 2015 as against US$ 29.4 billion 
involving 870 deals in 2014. In the M&A space, Telecom was the 
dominant sector, amounting to 40 per cent of the total transaction 
value. Also, Private equity (PE) investments increased 86 per cent 
y-o-y to US$ 1.43 billion.
Total private equity (PE) investments in India for 2015 reached a 
record high of US$ 19.5 billion through 159 deals, according to the 
PwC MoneyTree India report.
According to The World Bank, India’s per capita income is expected 
to cross Rs 100,000 (US$ 1,505.4) in FY 2017 from Rs 93,231 (US$ 
1,403.5) in FY 2016.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES
Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on 
account of various government initiatives like Make in India and Digital 
India. India has launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to boost 
the manufacturing sector of Indian economy. This initiative is expected 
to increase the purchasing power of an average Indian consumer, 
which would further boost demand, and hence spur development, in 

addition to benefiting investors. Besides, the Government has also 
come up with Digital India initiative, which focuses on three core 
components: creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services 
digitally and to increase the digital literacy. The government is looking 
at a number of reforms and resolution of pending tax disputes to attract 
investments.
Currently, the manufacturing sector in India contributes over 15 
per cent of the GDP. The Government of India, under the Make in 
India initiative, is trying to give boost to the contribution made by the 
manufacturing sector and aims to take it up to 25 per cent of the GDP. 
Based on the recommendations of the Foreign Investment Promotion 
Board (FIPB), FDI inflows have increased 40 per cent during April-
December 2015 to reach US$ 29.44 billion.
The Government of India has launched an initiative to create 100 
smart cities as well as Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban 
Transformation (AMRUT) for 500 cities with an outlay of Rs 48,000 
crore (US$ 7.16 billion) and Rs 50,000 crore (US$ 7.46 billion) 
respectively. Smart cities are satellite towns of larger cities which will 
consist of modern infrastructure and will be digitally connected.  

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN EDIBLE OIL INDUSTRY 
India plays an important role in the global edible oil market, accounting 
for 10-12% share of consumption; 6-8% share of oilseed production; 
4-6% share of edible oil production, and 12-14% share of world edible 
oil imports for FY15. Furthermore, the industry is highly dependent 
on availability of raw material, domestic production of oil seeds, 
annual rainfall, global price fluctuations and consumer preferences. 
Availability of edible oil in India has shown a compound annual growth 
rate (CAGR) of 7.32% during OY 06- OY 15 with y-o-y growth of 8.02% 
in OY15 over O14, whereas the growth in population has remained at 
CAGR of 1.29% during 2006-2015. Majority of the demand supply gap 
of edible oil in India is being filled through imports.
The growth in production of domestic edible oil has not been able to 
keep pace with the growth of consumption. Thus, this gap is being 
met by the imports that account for almost 55-65% of the total oil 
consumption during past five years. Continuous increase in the gap 
between demand and supply of edible oil has forced India to do huge 
import from leading exporter countries of edible oil. The demand 
supply gap is becoming wider mainly due to limited availability of oil 
seeds, shifting of acreage to other crops and increase in demand of 
edible oil.
More than 14 million tonnes of edible oil was imported with a total 
value of Rs.64,396.49 crore during FY15. In terms of volumes, crude 
edible oil contributes about 89% and refined oil contributes about 11% 
of the total import during FY15. Of the 89% of imported crude edible 
oil, palm oil, soybean oil and sunflower oil contributes about 54%, 21% 
and 11%, respectively. India is importing edible oil from Indonesia, 
Malaysia, Argentina and Ukraine contributing about 36%, 23%, 17% 
and 13%, respectively, of total imports.
Demand of edible oil is mainly driven by increase in per capita 
consumption of edible oil, rising income levels and improvement of 
living standards. However, the Indian edible oil market continues to be 
underpenetrated as current per capita consumption level of India (at 
14.4 Kg/year for 2014-15) is much lower than global averages (24 kg/
year). Furthermore, domestic consumption of edible oil is expected to 
increase with enhancement in income level and population.

INTERVENTION OF GOVERNMENT TO TACKLE IMPORT 
OF EDIBLE OIL 
Government of India is promoting National Mission on Oilseeds and 
Oil Palm (NMOOP) during 2012-17 to achieve objectives such as 
increasing Seed Replacement Ratio (SRR) in oil crops with focus on 
Varietal Replacement, increasing irrigation coverage under oilseeds 
from 26% to 36%, diversification of area from low yielding cereals 
crops to oilseeds crops, inter-cropping of oilseeds with cereals/ pulses/ 
sugarcane, use of fallow land after paddy/potato cultivation, expansion 
of cultivation of Oil Palm and tree borne oilseeds in watersheds 
and wastelands, increasing availability of quality planting material 
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enhancing procurement of oilseeds and collection, and processing of 
tree borne oilseeds.

CONCLUSION
Indian Edible oil Industry has witnessed financial stress due to 
droughts, rising production costs and cheaper imports thus forcing 
several small firms to shut shop. India imports nearly 67% of its edible 
oil requirements; the rest is being met from domestic production. Area 
expansion under palm oil fell by over 50% over the last couple of 
years due to low prices of crude palm oil and poor rainfall. Though the 
duty differential between crude and refined palm oil is 7.5%, edible oil 
sellers are finding it more convenient to import refined palm oil directly 
from Malaysia and Indonesia and sell it in the domestic market thus 
placing the edible oil processing units to operate at hair line margins 
or in worst case scenario wherein the units are small the operations 
have become unvailable. The performance of the companies in edible 
oil sector for medium term period will depend upon the demand of 
CPO in India post recent increase in import duties on refined edible 
oils, movement of domestic edible oil prices, performance of Indian 
Rupee against US Dollar, anticipated sales volumes and profitability 
margins from the specialty fats business with comprehensive product 
range including bakery shortening’s, chocolate & confectionary fats, 
ice cream fats and a range of cooking oils.

OUTLOOK FOR K S OILS
Due to the high debt and liquidity crunch, the Company currently 
not operating  its plants. The management of the Company is under 
process to settle its debts with the lenders and  the Company believes 
that once the liquidity crisis is over the company will be able to regain its 
past glory. The company’s earnest efforts to locate potential investors 
have since yielded positive responses from various investors whereby 
the Company have submitted viable proposals to the lenders for its 
revival and the same is said to be under their active consideration.
K S Oils ltd continue to focus towards building brands in the edible 
oil sector which are India- centric and deliver quality, purity and 
convenience along with the trust of Kalash brand name.  Going ahead, 
the company will be working towards a clear-cut three-pronged 
program:
 ♦ Increased market share and building brand premium across 
  product categories
 ♦ Focus to create cost leadership at procurement and 
  manufacturing levels
 ♦ Profitable and Inclusive Growth 

PRODUCTION AND R&D

Our five state-of-the-art manufacturing plants are often best in 
technology, design and efficiency parameters conforming to stringent 
quality and hygiene standards as per international manufacturing 
standards. The mechanized plants need least human intervention and 
are run on computer controlled panels requiring minimal man power. 
This not only saves employee cost by 60% but also ensures minimum 
human intervention for optimum quality standards. Efficient use of 
machinery and layout make sure that each plant consumes minimum 
energy, reduces waste and recycles inputs like water and other 
wastes. The plants are environment friendly and assure sustainable 
and green production methods. 
The new plants are built on a technology permit product flexibility at 
any given time; production can be switched between any three edible 
oilseeds – mustard, soybean and sunflower. This will give real time 
and dynamic planning capability to the production team based on 
market demand. Such Just-in-time (JIT) manufacturing is a first in the 
Indian edible oil industry, saving on over capacity and higher costs for 
maintaining inventory. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS (SWOT ANALYSIS) 
The biggest strength of K S Oils is its integrated business model, which 
is scalable to global size. A conscious focus on backward and forward 
integration so as to address the complete value chain is ensuring K S 
Oils ability to de-risk external factors like raw material supply & prices 
and conduct sales with high per unit profit realization. The branding led 
FMCG focus of the company is helping it consolidate as a leader within 
the minds of the consumers. 

Our business sector is vulnerable to external factors viz nature related 
and driven by international developments. Thus, we are dependent 
on vagaries of weather which determines size of oil seed crops, 
and international edible oil prices. Freight and transportation cost is 
another challenge.
The biggest opportunity is the consolidation that is taking place in 
the edible oil industry. The retail led demand and higher consumer 
spending and buying power is a trend that will help branded players 
like us in getting premium price of our products by delivering superior 
quality. The trend of palm oil consumption increasing in India is a head 
start for our backward integration in sync palm production. Favorable 
government policies will ensure that the organized edible oil industry 
grows significantly. 
We face threats of competition from other players raising capacity 
and MNCs entering this sector. A macro threat is that of vegetable oils 
being diverted for non-food production like bio-fuel and other alternate 
energy. Fluctuations in crude oil prices and volatility in international 
prices are the other sources of concern.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE
The various segments and products are identified by the company are 
as follows: 
Solvent – Seed / Solvent extraction, crude Mustard Oil, Refined oils 
and Deoiled cake, Vanaspati – Vanaspati Ghee, Power – Power 
Generation (wind mills).
The detailed performance segment wise is given in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet Note to the audited accounts of the company, provided 
in the Annual Report.
DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Income from Operations recorded a decrease of 66.25% to 
Rs. 2,444/- Lacs as compared to Rs. 7,246/- Lacs in 2014-15. Your 
Company recorded a Profit/(Loss) after tax of Rs. (14,934) lacs 
in 2015-16 as against Loss of Rs. (22,987) Lacs  during preceding 
Financial Year.
MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS, INCLUDING NUMBER OF 
PEOPLE EMPLOYED
K S Oils management put utmost efforts to strengthen the existing 
workforce and retaining them to enhance the Human Resource 
Capabilities in the Company. As a result of CDR process and slow 
down in the business some of company’s key personnel have left.  
Thus, K S Oils is creating a collaborative and innovation-driven work 
culture to attract, retain and develop the best talent in the industry.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations may be “Forward-looking statements” within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual result could differ 
from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a 
difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions 
affecting demand-supply and price conditions in the domestic and 
overseas markets in the company operates, changes in Government 
Regulations, tax laws and other statutes and other incidental factors.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For K. S. Oils Limited

Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
DIN:  00027025 DIN : 01102237

Date  : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirtieth Annual Report with the Audited Financial Statement of your company for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2016

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

The summarized financial highlight is depicted below:  (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015

Sales/Income from operations 2,444 7,246 4,212 7,751
Other Income 1,352 617 1,508 617
Less: Expenses 14,277 7,493 14,284 13,393
Profit/Loss before Finance Cost, Depreciation, 
Exceptional Items and Taxes (10,481) 370 (8,564) (5025)
Less: Finance Cost (Interest) 224 623 224 624
Less: Depreciation 3,661 5,343 3,661 5,376
Less: Exceptional Items 454 17,194 454 11,718
Profit/Loss before Taxes (14,820) (22,790) (12,903) (22,743)
Less: Provision for Taxes    
(a) Tax related to previous years 0 3 0 3
(b) Deferred Tax Adjustment  115 194 115 194
Profit/(Loss) after Taxes (14,934) (22,987) (13,018) (22,940)
Proposed Dividend 00 00 00 00
Dividend Tax 00 00 00 00
Minority Interest 00 00 00 (550)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (14,934) (22,987) (12,780) (22,389)
Earning Per Equity Share    
Basic/ Diluted (F.V. Re. 1 each) (3.32) (5.07) (2.85) (4.94)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the 
date of the report

FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the Financial year under review, your company’s total sales 
(Standalone) were Rs 2,444 Lakhs. The Loss before finance cost, 
depreciation, exceptional items and taxes (Standalone) was Rs. 
10,481 Lakhs. The finance cost (Standalone) was Rs. 224 Lakhs. The 
EPS (Earning per Share) of the Company is Rs. (3.32) for the period 
ended March 31, 2016. The stalled operation of the Company has 
severely affected the performance of the Company.

A. Oil Division
 1. Mustard Oil: During the period under review the Company’s 
  mustard oil plant was utilized up to 1.05 % of its installed 
  available capacity; it processed 13,899 MT (Include 13,899 MT 
  Processed under Job work arrangement) of mustard seeds. 
  Mustard Oil production stood at 4,122 MT (Includes 4,122 MT 
  produced under Job work arrangement) against that of 20,875 
  MT in the previous year, recording a significant decrease of 
  80.25% as compared to previous year.
 2. Refined Oils: The Company’s refined oil plants utilized 
  5.93 % of its available capacity and processed 28,485 MT 
  (Include 28,485 MT Processed under Job work arrangement) 
  of crude oil. Refined oil production stood at 28,048 MT 
  (Includes 28,048 MT produced under Job work arrangement) 
  against that of 22,753 MT in the previous year, recording a 
  significant increase of 23.27% over the previous year.
 3. De Oiled Cake (DOC): Solvent extraction plant utilized 
  0.80 % of its available capacity during the year under review 

  and processed 10,037 MT (Include 10,037 MT Processed 
  under Job work arrangement) of oil cake/seeds. During the 
  year, DOC production was at 9,199 MT (Includes 9,199 MT 
  produced under Job work arrangement) as against 111,661 
  MT during the previous year, thus recording a decrease of 
  91.76% over the previous year
B. Power Division

During the year power generated through Wind Mills was 
17,963,430 units as against 102,398,049 units in the last year, 
thus recording a decrease of 82.46% over the previous year. This 
decrease due to the sale of 73.20 MW Wind Mills by the Company 
in the previous year. The entire electricity generated through Wind 
Mills has sold to the concerned DISCOMs and generated income 
of Rs. 564.77 Lacs.

JOB WORK:
The company is in stringent working capital situation and hence the 
company is currently unable to source Seeds for its own production. 
(Seeds are the prime input both in quantitative & price terms for any 
product in the Edible Oil Sector). Accordingly, during the year, company 
has earned revenue from Job-work. Job work has been done for local 
suppliers who are inclined to increase their job work in the company 
in view of imported machinery, state of art infrastructure and superior 
quality product. Job-work has enabled the company to meet with 
employee expenses and plant maintenance expenses and reduce its 
cash losses. The company expects increase in revenue contribution 
from Job-work in future adding to the bottom line.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves during 
the current financial year.
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DIVIDEND
Considering the stalled operating operations of the company and in 
view of the continuous losses, no dividend is proposed to be paid 
for the Fiscal 2015-2016, as per the Companies (Declaration and 
Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014.

EROSION OF NET WORTH
As per the Audited Financial Statements for Financial Year 2015-16, 
the accumulated losses of the Company as on 31st March, 2016, are 
in excess of its entire net worth as on the same date, as such the 
Company has become a Sick Industrial Company and the necessary 
reference has not been made with the Board for Industrial & Financial 
Reconstruction (BIFR) in terms of the provisions of Section 15(1) of 
the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (SICA), 
for determination of measures for its rehabilitation. The Company is in 
the process of making the necessary statutory compliances.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
During the financial year under review, there was no change in the 
share capital of the company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are 
prepared in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and Accounting Standard  (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any 
fixed deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, 
GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED
During the period under review the Company has not made any fresh 
Investment or given guarantees or provided securities. Particulars of 
loans given along with the purpose for which the loan are provided is 
disclosed in the standalone financial statement (Please refer Note 13 
& 18).

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES 
COMPANIES
During the year under review, the Company has 1 (One) direct 
subsidiaries and 5 (five) step-down subsidiaries, details are as follows:

KS Natural Resources PTE. Ltd, Singapore (Subsidiary)
KS Oils SDN. BHD. Malaysia (Step-down Subsidiary)
KS Agri Resources, Singapore (Step-down Subsidiary)
PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation, Indonesia (Step-down Subsidiary)
PT Biodiesel Jambi, Indonesia (Step-down Subsidiary)
PT. Mega Artha Perada, Indonesia (Step-down Subsidiary)

A statement pursuant to Section 129, 134 and 136 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under and pursuant to 
Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has 
prepared Consolidated financial statement of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and a separate statement containing the silent features 
of financial statement of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in 
form AOC-1 forms part of the Annual report. 
The annual financial statements and related detailed information’s of 
the subsidiary Companies shall be made available to the shareholders 
seeking such information’s and shall also be available for inspection at 
its Registered Office. The Policy for determining material subsidiaries 
as approved may be accessed on the Company’s website in 
investor section: http://www.ksoils.com/pdf/Policy_MaterialNon-
ListiedSubsitiary.pdf

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Mr. Prakash Chand (DIN: 06435360) and Mrs. Preeti (DIN: 07512783) 
was appointed as an Additional Independent Directors of the Company 

w.e.f 27 May, 2016. The Company has received notice from a member 
proposing appointment of Mr. Prakash Chand and Mrs. Preeti as 
Independent Directors of the Company.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Mr. Prakash Chand and Mrs. Preeti are being eligible to be 
appointed as Independent Directors and their tenure of appointment 
mentioned in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles 
of Association of the Company, Mr. Davesh Agarwal (DIN: 01102237) 
is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible seeks re-appointment.
The Board recommend the appointment/ reappointment of above 
directors for your approval. Brief details of Directors proposed to be 
appointed/ re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations are provided in the Notice of the Annual General 
Meeting.
During the year under review, Mr. Arvind Pandalai (DIN: 00352809) 
Non-Executive, Independent Director has resigned from Board w.e.f. 
21st March, 2016. After reporting period Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani (DIN: 
07099356) Non-Executive, Independent Director has resigned from 
the Board w.e.f. 20th June, 2016, due to personal reasons. The Board 
places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution 
and guidance rendered by Mr. Arvind Pandalai and Mrs. B. Swarupa 
Rani during their tenure with the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors to be best of their knowledge and ability states the following: 

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
  accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
  explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied 
  consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that 
  are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
  state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016 and the 
  profit/loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c ) that  proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance 
  of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
  of Companies Act, 2013 fo safeguarding the assets of the 
  Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
  irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a 
  going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the 
  financial controls were adequate and were operating 
  effectively;

f)  that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
  all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating 
  effectively.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times during the year under review. 
The details of board meetings and the attendance of the Directors are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 
report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING
The Independent Directors met on February 13th, 2016 without 
the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of the 
Management. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of 
non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; the performance 
of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and assessed the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board 
to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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BOARD EVALUATION
The Board Adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance 
and as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including 
the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried out through 
a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the 
Boards functioning such as composition of the Board & committees, 
experience & Competencies, performance of specific duties & 
obligations, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent 
judgment, governance issues etc. 

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy is attached 
herewith marked as  Annexure - E
There are Nil recommendation of the Audit Committee which has not 
been accepted by the Board.

POLICY OF DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION
The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration 
and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 is made available on the Company’s website www.ksoils.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY
The details in respect of internal financing control and their adequacy 
are included in Management and Discussion & Analysis, which forms 
part of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has laid down the procedures to inform Board Members 
about risk assessment and minimization procedures. The Board of 
Directors of the Company has framed risk management policy which 
can be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.
ksoils.com/pdf/RiskManagementPolicy_2015.pdf This policy forms 
part of the internal control and corporate governance process of the 
Company. Basically the aim of this policy is not to eliminate risks, rather 
to manage the risks involved in the Company activities to maximize 
opportunities and minimize adversity by considering the following:-

	l Identification of risk, define ownership with clearly define role and 
  responsibilities;

	l	Balance between the cost of managing risk and the anticipated 
  benefits;

	l	Contributing to more efficient use/allocation of capital and 
  resources;

	l	to encourage and promote an pro-active approach towards 
  risk management

	l	Identifying any unmitigated risks and formulating action plans 
  for its treatment through regular review.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD
Details of various committees constituted by the Board of Directors as 
per the provision of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 
2013 are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) 
has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board. 
The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the 
link: http://www.ksoils.com/pdf/CSRPolicy.pdf 

During the year, the Company has spent Nil amount on CSR activities 
as the Company is having a continuous loss. The Annual Report on 
CSR activities is annexed to this report. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Separate reports on Corporate Governance compliance and 
Management Discussion and Analysis as stipulated by the SEBI 
Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report along with the 
required Certificates from Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated.

In compliance with Corporate Governance requirements as per the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, your Company has formulated and 
implemented a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all Board 
members and senior management personnel of the Company, who 
have affirmed the compliance thereto.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form 
MGT-9 is annexed to this report as Annexure - A.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company 
with related parties during the financial year were in the ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. All related party 
transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and the Board 
for review and approval. There were no materially significant related 
party transactions entered into by the Company which may have 
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. The policy on 
materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related 
party transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and the 
Board of Directors may be accessed on the Company’s website www.
ksoils.com. Your directors draw attention of the members to Note 47 
to the financial statements which set out related party disclosures in 
terms of the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY
During the period under review there is no significant and material 
orders passed by any regulators /courts / tribunals against the 
Company. However, the secured lenders have filed Original Application 
(OA) with DRT (Debt Recovery Tribunal), New Delhi on May 9, 2016 
for recovery of their debts.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 
made there under, M/s Ladha G. D. & Co., Chartered Accountants 
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold 
office till conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
subject to ratification of their appointment at every Annual General 
Meeting. Accordingly the appointment of M/s Ladha G.D. & Co., 
Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company is placed 
for ratification by the shareholders. In this regard, the company has 
received a certificate from the auditors to the effect that if they are 
re-appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 
141 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditor’s Report is enclosed with 
the financial statements in the Annual report.

The Independent Auditors report contains the qualifications and 
management responses thereof has been made in the notes to the 
accounts wherever necessary. However, the said qualifications/ 
reservations / observations have been addressed by the management 
in the notes itself. In the opinion of the management, there would be 
no material impact expected on the reported loss for the period on this 
account.  

Further, all observations made in the Auditors’ Report and notes to 
the accounts are self-explanatory and may be treated as information/ 
explanation submitted by the Board as contemplated under provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under, the Company had appointed 
M/s. M. D. & Associate, Company Secretaries, a firm of Company 
Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor for FY 2015-2016 is 
annexed, which forms part of this report as Annexure – B.

The report does not contain any qualification save and except the 
following: 

i. The Annual Financial Statement for year ended on 31st March 
 2015 has been approved and adopted on 5th December, 2015. 

 Management Response: Due to financial crunch and consolidation 
 of the accounts of Foreign Subsidiaries, the delay occurred for the 
 approval of Annual Financial Statement for the year ended March 
 31, 2015.

ii. Internal Auditor has not been appointed.

 Management Response: Due to non availability of the qualified 
 personal in remote location the company could not able to appoint 
 the Independent Auditor. However, the company is endeavoring to 
 achieve the same

iii. Except for the Quarter ended December, 2015 the Limited Review 
 Report for the quarterly result has not been provided by the 
 Statutory Auditor hence could not take up and approved by the 
 Audit committee and Board respectively.  

 Management Response: The same is due to rotation of Statutory 
 Auditor and for covering up the backlog created pursuant to such 
 casual vacancy.

iv. The Company has defaulted in filling of Annual Performance 
 Reports in respect of foreign subsidiaries with the RBI through 
 Authorized dealer. The Company has  also defaulted in filing of 
 monthly and annual Returns of ECB (External Commercial 
 Borrowing) taken by the Company with the RBI.

 Management Response: As mentioned above at point no. 1, the 
 delay of filing of returns  occurred.

COST AUDITORS
Your Company has appointed M/s. S. K. Sexena & Co., Cost 
Accountants (Registration No. 100126) to conduct cost audit of the 
Company for the year 31st March 2017.

The Cost Audit Report for the year 2014-2015 was not filled before the 
due date with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED 
DISCLOSURES
The Company did not have any employee of the category mentioned 
in Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5(2) 
& (3) of the Companies Appointment and remuneration) Rules, 2014 
as Amended and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the Financial 
Year ended March 31, 2016

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s 
remuneration and other details in terms of Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is annexed as part of this report at Annexure - C.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3) 
(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended time to time is annexed to this 
report as Annexure – D.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Your Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial 
relations at all levels during the year under report. Your Company 
firmly believes that a dedicated workforce constitute the primary 
source of sustainable competitive advantage. Accordingly, human 
resource development continues to receive focused attention. Your 
Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedicated 
and commendable services rendered by the staff and workforce of 
your Company. There are 245 numbers of employees of the Company 
as on 31st March, 2016.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in 
respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these 
items during the year under review:

 1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the 
  Companies Act, 2013.

 2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, 
  voting or otherwise.

 3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees 
  of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOS 
  referred to in this Report.

 4. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of 
  the Company received any remuneration or commission from 
  any of its subsidiaries.

 5. As elsewhere stated in this report, no significant or material 
  orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
  which impact the going concern status of the company. 

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there 
were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT
This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and 
uncertainties. When used in this Report, the words ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, 
‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘intend’, ‘will’ and other similar expressions as they 
relate to the Company and/or its businesses are intended to identify 
such forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no 
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, 
whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. 
Actual results, performances or achievements could differ materially 
from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. 
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements that speak only as of their dates. This Report 
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included 
herein and the notes thereto.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors thank various Central and State Government 
Departments, Organizations and Agencies for the continued help 
and co-operation extended by them. The Directors also gratefully 
acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, 
members, dealers, vendors, banks and other business partners for the 
excellent support received from them during the year. The Directors 
place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the 
Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution 
to the Company.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For K. S. Oils Limited

Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
DIN:  00027025 DIN : 01102237

Date  : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE – A
to the Directors’ Report

Form No. MGT – 9
Extract of Annual Return

as on financial year ended March 31, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1. CIN L15141MP1985PLC003171

2. Incorporation Date 04/12/1985 

3. Name of the Company  K.S.OILS LIMITED

4. Category/ Sub Category of the Company Company Having Share Capital / Indian
  Non-Government Company

5. Address of the Registered office and Jiwaji Ganj, Morena
 contact details Madhya Pradesh – 476 001
  Ph. No. – 7532-300000
  Fax – 7532-405060
  E-mail add : investors@ksoils.com
  Website : www.ksoils.com

6. Whether listed Company Yes

7. Name address and contact Details of Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd
 Registrar and transferor 60, Electronic Complex,
  Pardeshipura, Indore – 452010

  Ph. No. – 0731-2551745
  Fax – 0731-4065798
  E-mail: ankit_4321@yahoo.com; 
  rtaindore@gmail.com

II. PRINCIPLE BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S. No Name and description of the NIC Code of the Product / Service % of total turnover of the Company
  main products/ services

1 Oils 10401, 10402 45.92%

2 Electricity Generation from Wind Turbines 35101 51.74%

III. PARTICULARS OF THE HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. No. Name and address CIN Holding/Subsidiary % of Share Held Applicable Section
 of the Company  /Associate

1 K S Natural Resources Pte. Ltd., Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
 Singapore 

2 KS Oils Sdn Bhd. Foreign Company Step-down Subsidiary 70% 2(87) 
 (Malaysia) 

3 PT Buana Mega Sentosa Foreign Company Step-down Subsidiary 90% 2(87)
 Plantation

4 KS Agri Resources Pte. Ltd.  Foreign Company Step-down Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
 (Singapore)

5 PT Mega Artha Peresada Foreign Company Step-down Subsidiary 90% 2(87)
 (Indonesia)

6 PT Biodiesal Jambi Foreign Company Step-down Subsidiary 90% 2(87)
 (Indonesia) 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding
S. No. Category of No. of Shares Held at the beginning of the Year i.e. No. of Shares held at the end of the Year i.e.
 Shareholders 01/04/2015 31/03/2016

  DEMAT Physical Total % of DEMAT Physical Total % of % Change
     total    total during the
     Shares    Shares Year

A. Promoter                  
(1) Indian                  
a) Individual/HUF    34,602,105                 -         34,602,105          7.54     34,602,105                 -         34,602,105          7.54                  -   
b) Central Government                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
c) State Government                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
d) Body Corporate                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
e) Banks / FI                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                          -                -                    -   
f) Any other                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                          -                -                    -   
  Sub Total (A) (1) : -     34,602,105                  -         34,602,105              7.54     34,602,105                 -         34,602,105          7.54                  -   
(2) Foreign             
a) NRIs Individuals                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
b) Other Individuals                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
c) Body corporates                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
d) Bank/ FI                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
e) Any other                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
  Sub Total (A) (2): -                    -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
  Total Share Holding
 of Promoter
 (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)    34,602,105                  -         34,602,105              7.54     34,602,105                 -         34,602,105          7.54                  -   
B. Public Share Holding          
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
b) Banks/FI      3,077,026         10,000         3,087,026          0.67  3,482,456 - 3,482,456 0.76              0.09 
c) Central Government                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
d) State Government                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
e) Venture Capital Funds                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
f) Insurance Companies                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
g) FIIs       17,103,797                 -         17,103,797          3.72  22,123,157  22,123,157 4.82            1.10
h)  Foreign Venture
 Capital Funds                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
i) Other (Specify)                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
  Sub Total (B)(1)       20,180,823         10,000       20,190,823          4.40  25,605,613 - 25,605,613 5.58              1.18 
(2) Non Institutions            
a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian       56,873,888         28,000       56,901,888        12.39  38,469,069 38,000 38,507,069 8.39            (4.00)
(ii) Overseas                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   
(b) Individuals               
(i) Individual
 Shareholders
 holding nominal
 share capital
 upto Rs. 1 lakh   213,390,988    2,176,798     215,567,786        46.95  228,924,532 2,171,876 231,096,408 50.33              3.38 
(ii) Individual
 Shareholders
 holding nominal
 share capital
 exceeds of
 Rs. 1 lakh      42,948,711                 -         42,948,711          9.35  53,443,703  53,443,703 11.64              2.29 
(c ) Other (NRI & OCB)       88,575,094                 -         88,575,094        19.29  74,640,160  74,640,160 16.26              (3.03) 
(i) Other (Clearing Member) 393,630                 -              393,630          0.09  12,84,979  12,84,979 0.28            0.19



Annual Report 2015-2016 9

  Sub-Total (B) (2)   402,182,311    2,204,798     404,387,109        88.07  396,762,443 2,209,876 398,972,319 86.89            (1.18)
 Total Public
 Shareholding
 (B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)   422,363,134    2,214,798     424,577,932        92.46  422,368,056 2,209,876 424,577,932 92.46                 -   
 Shares held by
 Custodian for
 GDRs & ADRs                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                   -                        -                -                    -   

 Grand Total (A+B+C)   456,965,239    2,214,798     459,180,037      100.00   456,970,161    2,209,876     459,180,037      100.00                  -   

(ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

S. No. Category of No. of Shares Held at the beginning of the Year i.e. No. of Shares held at the end of the Year i.e.
 Shareholders 01/04/2015 31/03/2016

  No. of Shares % of total % of Shares No. of Shares % of total % of Shares % Change
   Share of the Pledged /  Share of the Pledged / in
   Company encumbered to  Company encumbered to Shareholding
    total Shares   total Shares during the
        Year

1 Meeta Garg 16,827,339 3.66 3.66 16,827,339 3.66 3.66 -  
2 Sheela Devi Garg            12,061,466                       2.63                         2.63              12,061,466                    2.63      2.63 -   
3 Ramesh Chand Garg 1,757,198 0.38 0.38 1,757,198 0.38 0.38 -
4 Ramesh Chand Garg 3,436,392 0.75 0.75 3,436,392 0.75 0.75 -
5 Ashwani Garg                 460,000                       0.10                         0.10                   460,000                    0.10 0.10  -
6 Saurabh Garg 18,440 0.00 0.01 18,440 0.00 0.01 -
7 Saurabh Garg 41,270 0.01 0.01 41,270 0.01 0.01 -

  Total                       34,602,105                       7.54                         7.54              34,602,105                    7.54   34,602,105.00  -

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
S. No. Shares Holders Name Shareholding at the Increase/ Date of Cumulative Date of Reasons
  beginning of the year Decrease in Change Shareholding Change 
   Promoters Share  during the Year
   holding during
   the year
   specifying the
   reasons for
   increase/decrease
   (e.g.allotment /
   transfer / bonus
   /sweat Equity
   etc.)
  No. of % of total   No. of % of No. of %of
  Shares Share Capital   Shares Share Shares total
   of the    Capital  Share Capital
   Company    of the  of the
       Company  Company

1 Meeta Garg 16,827,339 3.66 Nil - 16,827,339 3.66 - -
2 Sheela Devi Garg 12,061,466                       2.63  Nil - 12,061,466 2.63  - -
3 Ramesh Chand Garg 5,193,590                       1.13  Nil - 5,193,590 1.13  - -
4 Ramesh Chand Garg 3,436,392 0.75 Nil - 3,436,392 0.75 - -
5 Ashwani Garg                 460,000                       0.10  Nil - 460,000 0.10  - -
6 Saurabh Garg 18,440 0.00 Nil - 18,440 0.00 - -
7 Saurabh Garg                   59,710                       0.01  Nil - 59,710 0.01  - -

  Total            34,602,105                       7.54                             - - 34,602,105 7.54 - -

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. No Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning Change in Shareholding Shareholding at the end of
  of the year i. e. 01/04/2015 during the year the year i. e. 31/3/2016
  No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
   Shares of  Shares of  Shares of
   the company  the company  the company

1 NSR Direct PE Mauritius LLC          40,330,926                 8.78                        -                          -                  40,330,926                  8.78 
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2 Baring Private Equity Asia III Mauritius
 Holdings (3) Limited                   21,479,710                 4.68                       -                          -             21,479,710  4.68
3 Abhi Ambi Financial Services Limited                          16,420,020                  3.58  -                 -               16,420,020                  3.58 
4 Baring Private Equity Asia II Mauritius 
 Holdings (3) Limited                    14,224,360  3.10                        -                          -            14,224,360  3.10 
5 Deutsche Securities Mauritius Limited                     7,655,000                 1.67         7,655,000  1.67                  0                0.00 
6 Client Rosehill Limited                      5,063,056                 1.10                       -                          -              5,063,056                1.10 
7 Vineet  Garg                      3,284,000                 0.72                        -                          -              3,284,000                0.72 
8 CVCIGP II Employee Rosehill Limited                      2,835,741                 0.62                        -                          -            2,835,741                0.62 
9 Newway Constructions Limited                   2,500,000                  0.54         2,500,000                  0.54 0               0.00 
10 Yes Bank Limited       2,040,895                  0.44  405,095 0.09 2,445,990 0.53
11 Suresh Kumar Gupta                                     1,624,990  0.35                       -                          -    1,624,990 0.35
12 Vinod Kumar           1,620,000 0.35   1,620,000 0.35
13 Bonanza Portfolio Ltd           1,440,200 0.31 1,668,381 0.36 3,108,581 0.68

14 Karvy Stock Broking Ltd (BSE)           160,839 0.44 1,449,206 0.32 1610,045 0.35

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. No Name of the Director and Director Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end % change in
	 KMP	 Identification	No.	 	 	 shareholding	during
  (DIN)   the year
   No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
    shares of  shares of
    the company  the company

Director
1 Ramesh Chand Garg 00027025 5,193,590 1.13 5,193,590 1.13 0.00
2 Davesh Agarwal 01102237 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
3 Arvind Pandalai1 00352809 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
4 Boda Venkat Ram 03476912 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
5 B. Swarupa Rani2 07099356 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00

   Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
1 Davesh Agarwal (CFO) 01102237 - - - - -
2 Sandeep Kumar (CS) - - - - - -

1– Resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. 21st March, 2016
2–Resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. 20th June, 2016

v.  INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Particulars Secure Loan Unsecured Loan Deposits Total
 excluding   Indebtedness
 deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
  i) Principal Amount  (including Interest) 2,72,841 - - 2,72,841

Total 2,72,841 - - 2,72,841
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
  ♦ Addition  - - - -

  ♦ Reduction 221 - - 221

Net Change 221 - - 221
Indebtedness  at the  end  of the financial year
  i) Principal Amount (Including Interest) 2,72,841 - - 2,72,841

Total  2,72,620 - - 2,72,620
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vi.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A. Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole-time Directors:

Sl. No. Particulars of the Remuneration Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal Total 
  (Managing Director) (Whole Time Director Amount
	 	 	 and	Chief	Financial	Officer)

1 Gross Salary      
  (a) Salary as per the provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
 Income Tax Act, 1961 23,60,400 23,60,400 47,20,800
 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 39,600 39,600 79,200
	 (c)Profits	in	lieu	of	salary	under	section	17(3)	Income	Tax	Act,	1961	 -	 -	 -
2 Stock Option -  -  - 
3 Sweat Equity -  -  - 
4 Commission      
	 	-	as	%	of	profit	 	-	 -		 -	
  - others, specify  -  - - 
5 Others  - -  - 
  Total 24,00,000 24,00,000 48,00,000

 B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. No. Particulars of the  Name of Director Total Amount
 Remuneration

1 Independent Directors Arvind Pandalai1 Boda Venkat Ram B. Swarupa Rani2

a Fees for attending board / 
 committee meetings 1,37,000.00 1,37,000.00 1,07,500.00 3,81,500.00
b Commission 00.00 00.00 00.00 00.00
c Others 00.00 00.00 00.00 00.00
 Total (1)    3,81,500.00
2 Other Non-Executive 
 Directors

  Fees for attending board / 
 committee meetings
  Commission
  Others
  Total (2)
 Total (B) - (1)+(2)    3,81,500.00

1–Resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. 21st March, 2016
2–Resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. 20th June, 2016

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than Managing Director and Whole-time Directors
(In Rs. Lacs)

Sl. No. Particulars of the Remuneration Sandeep Kumar Total Amount 
  (Company Secretary)

1 Gross Salary   
 (a) Salary as per the provisions contained in section
 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 4.50 4.50
 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 -  - 
  (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961 -  - 
2 Stock Option -  - 
3 Sweat Equity -  - 
4 Commission -  - 
    - as % of profit -  - 
    - others, specify -  - 
5 Others -  - 
  Total 4.50  4.50 
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vii.  Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

Type Section of the Brief Description Details of Panalty/ Authority [RD Appeal made, if
 Companies Act  Punishment/ Compounding /NCLT/Court] any  (give Details)
   fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment   None
Compounding
B. DIRECTOR
Penalty
Punishment   None
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAuLTS
Penalty   None

For K. S. Oils Limited

Ramesh Chand Garg
(Chairman of CSR Committee)

Date : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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The Members,
K. S. OILS LIMITED
CIN: L15141MP1985PLC003171
Address: Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena, Madhya Pradesh - 476001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by K.S.OILS LIMITED (“hereinafter called as the 
Company/ Company”). The Company is a listed Company, having 
CIN:L15141MP1985PLC003171. Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the financial year from 01st April, 2015 to 31st March, 
2016 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions 
of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there 
  under;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
 rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
 framed there under;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 

 a. SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
  Regulations, 2011;

 b. SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and 
  Rules there under;

 c. SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
  Regulations, 2009;

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules framed 
 thereunder; 

(vi) The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 
 (SICA) and Rules there under;

(vii) The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets 
 and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002(SARFAESI) and 
 rules thereunder;

(viii)Other laws applicable as per the representations made by the 
 Company. However due to non-availability of Information, 
 comment on labour related laws are not possible.

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following:

a. The Listing Agreements/Listing Regulations as applicable 
 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange 
 Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is responsibility of the 
 management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
 express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 
 our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were 
 appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
 correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
 verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
 are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
 processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
 basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of 
 the financial statements of the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management 
 Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and 
 regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other 
 applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the 
 responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
 limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the 
 future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
 effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
 affairs of the Company.

We have checked the compliance management system of the 
Company, to obtain reasonable assurance about the adequacy of 
systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically applicable laws 
and this verification was done on test basis. We believe that the Audit 
evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all its directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent in advance 
of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Decisions at Board Meeting and Committee Meeting are carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of 
Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that, systems and processes in the Company need 
to be strengthened commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the Act and its 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

ANNEXURE - B
to The Directors’ Report
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During the year company have received several notices from various 
authorities and some of them are disposed of during audit period.

We further report that, during the audit period, we come to know 
about some points as follows which inter-alia includes and not limited 
to:

(I) Companies Act, 2013:

 i. Annual Financial Statement for year ended on 31st March, 
  2015 has been approved and adopted on 5th December, 
  2015.

 ii. It has been observed that, Annual General Meeting for the 
  Financial Year 2013-14has been concluded during Audit 
  period which was originally held on 30th September, 2014. 
  Further, during the year, 1 Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
  and 2 Annual General Meeting were held.

 iii. Internal Auditor has not been appointed.

 iv. Filing of Cost Audit Report has not been made for the audit 
  period.

(II) Listing Agreement and SEBI Listing Regulations (LODR):

 i. As per clause 41 of the listing agreement read with Regulation 
  33 of the LODR as applicable, annual accounts for first and 
  fourth quarter have not been filed within due time.

 ii. Pursuant to Clause 41 of the listing agreement read with 
  Regulation 47of the LODR as applicable, notices for the 
  Board Meeting held for approving unaudited and audited 
  financial results during audit period were published delayed 
  in the newspaper.

 iii. Pursuant to Regulation 31(b) of the LODR, company has 
  not submitted its shareholding pattern for the quarter ended 
  on 31st March, 2016 within the due time with the Stock 
  exchanges.

 iv. Limited Review Report for the quarterly results has not been 
  filed except for the third quarter.

(III) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules framed 
 thereunder:

 i. Annual Performance Report in respect of Foreign Subsidiary 
  was not filed with the RBI through Authorised Dealer Bank.

 ii. Monthly and Annual Return in respect of ECB (External 
  Commercial Borrowings) raised were not filed with the RBI 
  promptly.

 iii. Statement of Foreign Assets and Liabilities (FLA) has not 
  been filed with the RBI.

(IV) The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 
 1985 and rules framed thereunder:

The Company has become SICK industrial Company as its 
accumulated losses are exceeding its Net Worth at the end of the 
Financial Year but the Company did not make any reference to 
the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) for 
establishing the status of SICK Company.

(V) The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets 
 and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002(SARFAESI) 
 and rules framed thereunder:

The Bank has served notice to the Company under SARFAESI 
for recovery of debts; against which the Company has made an 
appeal to Debt recovery Tribunal (DRT).

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances 
of:

(i) Public/Rights/Preferential issue of debentures/sweat equity.

(ii) Redemption/Buy back of securities. 

(iii) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction.

(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.
For M. D. & Associates

(Practicing Company Secretaries) 
Sd/-

Mayank Dubey
Proprietor

Date: October 14, 2016  M. No.: A-29935 
Place: New Delhi C. P. No.: 10819

The Members of
K.S. Oils Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by K.S. Oils Limited (“the Company”), for the Year ended on 
 31.03.2016, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (‘Listing Agreement’)  of the said company with said Stock Exchange(s) 
 for the period 1st April, 2015 to 30th November, 2015 and as per the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange board of India (Listing 
 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the ListingRegulations 
 for the period 1st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2016.

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to procedures 
 and implementations thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 
 neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and representations made by the Directors 
 and the management, we certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 
 mentioned Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations, as applicable.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the company nor the efficiency or the effectiveness 
 with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For M. D. & Associates
(Practicing Company Secretaries) 

Sd/-
Mayank Dubey

C. P. No.: 10819
Date: October 14, 2016
Place: New Delhi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE



Annual Report 2015-2016 15

ANNEXURE - C
to The Directors’ Report

The information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managing Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:
1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company and the percentage 
 increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the Fiscal 2016:

Sr. No. Name  Catagory Remuneration % Increase Ratio of Remuneration
   (Rs. In Lacs) Remuneration on in the of each Director/to
    Financial Year 2014-15 median Remuneration
    of employees of employee 

I Non-Executive Directors

1 Boda Venkat Ram Independent Director 1.37 Nil NA
2 Arvind Pandalai1 Independent Director 1.37 Nil NA
3 B. Swarupa Rani2 Independent Director 1.07 Nil NA

II Whole-time Director & Key Managerial Personnel

4 Ramesh Chand Gard Managing Director 24.00 Nil 23:1 
 (Managing Director)
5 Davesh Agarwal Executive Director 24.00 Nil 23:1 
 (Executive Director & CFO) & CFO
6 Sandeep Kumar (CS) Company Secretary 04.50 Nil N.A.

 1 – Mr. Arvind Pandali ceased to be director from 21/03/2016
 2 – Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani ceased to be director from 20/6/2016

2. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 1,18,836/-.

3. In the financial year, there was an increase of 13.59% in the median remuneration of employees;

4. There were 245 (including executive directors) permanent employees on the roll of Company as on March 31, 2016;

5. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: The Loss Before Tax for the financial year ended 
 March 31, 2016 is Rs.14,819/- Lakhs; whereas there is no increase in the remuneration. 

6. Relationship between average increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and company performance: Nil

7. The increase in remuneration is not solely based on the Company performance but also includes various other factors like individual 
 performance, experience, skill sets, industry trend, economic situation and Future growth prospects etc. All these factors are considered 
 for revision of remuneration.

8. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year i.e. 
 2015-16 - Nil

9. There is no increase in the salary of Key Managerial Personnel.

10. The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: Variable pay based on the performance of the 
 Executive Director.

11. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess 
 of the highest paid director during the year - Not Applicable; and

 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior 
 management.

Details of Remuneration of Directors KMPs and Employee and comparatives

[Pursuant to Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V 
of SEBI Listing Regulations]
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ANNEXURE – D
to the Directors’ Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

[Information as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, are set out as under:]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
 a. Energy Conservation Measure Taken:

  1. Preventive maintenance of machines to reduce energy loss.

  2. Utilization of the windmills energy to hedge the power requirement of the Plant.

  3. Employees Training Program conducted for the awareness of energy conservation.

  4. Installed light saving LED in the Registered office, Corporate office and Plants.

 b. Additional investments and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy: In the current year, no additional 
  investments and proposal are considered for reduction of consumption of energy. 

 c. Impact of the measures taken at (a) and (b) above for reduction  of energy and consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:

Impact has not been separately measured.
Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

A) Power of fuel consumption Current Previous
    2015-2016 2014-2015

1. Electricity  

(a) Purchased Unit 37,54,073 48,46,774

 Total amount (Rs.) 3,58,77,418 5,68,42,534

 Rate/unit (Rs.) 9.56 11.74

(b) Own generation  

 (i) Through diesel generator Unit 1,84,596 4,37,084

       Unit per Ltr. of diesel oil (Rs.) 3.17 3.36

       Cost/unit (Rs.) 15.05 17.22

  Total Amount (Rs.) 27,78,550 75,26,586

  (ii) Through WTG’s 00 75,45,287

        Unit 0.00 4.80

        Total Amount (Rs.) 00 3,61,85,709

* units generated through wind turbine has been credited against
purchase of Units  

2. Coal
 Quantity (M.T.) 6,561 15,317

 Total Cost (Rs.) 3,72,01,504 9,62,16,817

 Average Rate (Rs.) 5,670.39 6,281.75

3. Others (Diesal/SKO & LDO) 00.00 00.00
B) Consumption per Unit of Production:
 Product (with details) unit: Oil and Vanaspati Division(Including Job Work)
 (Current year: 1,55,139 MT, Previous Year: 1,69,943 MT)  
 Electricity 95.21 82.69

 Coal  0.16 0.10

 Other  - -

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
 i. The efforts made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable

 ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: Not Applicable

 iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :No technology 
  imported by K.S. Oils Limited in last 3 Years

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual 
 outflows.

 During the year, the Foreign Exchange earnings was Nil and Foreign Exchange outgo was Rs. Nil
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ANNEXURE – E
to the Directors’ Report

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

This Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy (the “Policy”) 
applies to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), Key Managerial 
Personnel (the “KMP”) and the Senior Management Personnel of K. 
S. Oils Limited (the “Company”).
“Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means—
 i. Managing Director; 
 ii. Company Secretary;
 iii. Whole-time Director;
 iv. Chief Financial Officer; and
 v. Such other Officer as may be prescribed.
The term “Senior Management Personnel” means all members other 
than the Directors and KMPs of the Company, who are the functional 
heads of the different functions of the Company.
This Policy is in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 under 
the Listing Agreement.
1. Purpose

The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework 
and set standards for the selection, nomination, remuneration 
and evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
officials comprising the senior management. The Company aims 
to achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills amongst its 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

2. Accountabilities
 2.1 The Board is ultimately responsible for the appointment of 
  Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.
 2.2 The Board has delegated responsibility for assessing and 
  selecting the candidates for the role of Directors, Key 
  Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management of the 
  Company to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
  which makes recommendations and nominations to the 
  Board.
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:
 3.1 reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the 
  skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least 
  annually and making recommendations on any proposed 
  changes to the Board to complement the Company’s 
  corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board;
 3.2 identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the 
  KMPs or in the senior management of the Company;
 3.3 recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals 
  nominated for directorship;
 3.4 making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration 
  payable to the Directors/ KMPs/Senior Officials so appointed 
  reappointed;
 3.5 assessing the independence of independent directors;
 3.6 such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the 
  Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing Agreement 
  and provision of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules 
  thereunder;
 3.7 to make recommendations to the Board concerning any 
  matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director 
  at any time including the suspension or termination of service 
  of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company 
  subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;
 3.8 ensure that level and composition of remuneration is 
  reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to 
  performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
  benchmarks;
 3.9 to devise a policy on Board diversity and
 3.10 to develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly 
  review the plan.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the 

following:
 i. The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive 
  directors, majority of them being independent.
 ii. Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the 
  Committee meeting.
 iii. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the 
  Annual Report.
 iv. Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated 
  by the Board of Directors.
Chairman

a). Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.
b). Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of 
  the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of the Committee.
c). In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee 
  present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as 
  Chairman.
d). Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could 
  be present at the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some 
  other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

Committee Members’ Interests
 a). A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his 
  or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or 
  her performance is being evaluated.
 b). The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers 
  appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee.
Voting
 a). Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings 
  shall be decided by a majority of votes of the Members 
  present and voting and any such decision shall for all 
  purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.
 b). In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will 
  have a casting vote.
4. Appointment of Directors/KMPs/Senior Officials
 4.1 Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting as 
  well as retaining talented employees for role of KMP/ a 
  level below KMP are the basis for the Nomination and 
  Remuneration Committee to select a candidate for 
  appointment to the Board. When recommending a candidate 
  for appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration 
  Committee has regard to:
  ♦ assessing the appointee against a range of criteria 
   which includes but not be limited to qualifications, skills, 
   regional and industry experience, background and other 
   qualities required to operate successfully in the position, 
   with due regard for the benefits from diversifying the 
   Board;
  ♦ the extent to which the appointee is likely to contribute 
   to the overall effectiveness of the Board, work 
   constructively with the existing directors and enhance 
   the efficiencies of the Company;
  ♦ The skills and experience that the appointee brings to the 
   role of KMP/Senior Official and how an appointee will 
   enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a 
   whole;
  ♦ The nature of existing positions held by the appointee 
   including directorships or other relationships and 
   the impact they may have on the appointee’s ability to 
   exercise independent judgment;
4.2 Personal specifications:
  ♦ Degree holder in relevant disciplines;
  ♦ Experience of management in a diverse organization; 
  ♦ Excellent interpersonal, communication and 
   representational skills;
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  ♦ Demonstrable leadership skills;
  ♦ Commitment to high standards of ethics, personal 
   integrity and probity;
  ♦ Commitment to the promotion of equal opportunities, 
   community cohesion and health and safety in the 
   workplace;
  ♦ Having continuous professional development to refresh 
   knowledge and skills.
5. Letters of Appointment
 Each of the Directors/KMPs/Senior Officials is required to sign 
 the letter of appointment with the Company containing the terms 
 of appointment and the role assigned in the Company.
6. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
 Senior Management Personnel
 The guiding principle is that the level and composition of 
 remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
 and motivate Directors, Key Management Personnel and other 
 senior officials. 
 The Directors, Key Management Personnel and other senior 
 official’s remuneration are based and determined on the individual 
 person’s responsibilities and performance and in accordance with 
 the limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
 made thereunder, if any. 
 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall determine  
 and recommend individual remuneration packages for Directors, 
 KMPs and Senior Officials of the Company to the Board of 
 Directors after taking into account factors it deems relevant, 
 including but not limited to market, business performance and 
 practices in comparable companies, having due regard to financial 
 and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing laws 
 and government/other guidelines.
 i. Remuneration:
  a). Base Compensation (Fixed Salary): Must be competitive 
   and reflective of the individual’s role, responsibility and 
   experience in relation to performance of day-to-day 
   activities, usually reviewed on an annual basis (includes 
   salary, allowances and other statutory/ non-statutory 
   benefits which are normal part of remuneration package 
   in line with market practices).
  b). Variable Salary: The Nomination and Remuneration 
   Committee may in its discretion structure any portion of 
   remuneration to link rewards to corporate and individual 
   performance for fulfilment of specified improvement 
   targets or the attainment of certain financial or other 
   objectives set by the Board. The amount payable shall 
   be determined by the Committee, based on performance 
   against pre-determined financial and non-financial metrics.
 ii. Statutory Requirements:
  Section 197(5) provides for remuneration by way of a fee 
  to a director for attending meetings of the Board of Directors 
  and Committee meetings or for any other purpose as may 
  be decided by the Board.
  Section 197(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for 
  the total managerial remuneration payable by the Company 
  to its directors, including managing director and whole time 
  director, and its manager in respect of any financial year 
  shall not exceed eleven percent of the net profits of the 
  Company computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 
  in the manner as prescribed under the Act.
  The Company with the approval of the Shareholders and 
  Central Government may authorise the payment of 
  remuneration exceeding eleven percent of the net profits of 
  the company, subject to the provisions of Schedule V to the 
  Companies Act, 2013.
  The Company may with the approval of the shareholders 
  authorise the payment of remuneration upto five percent of 
  the net profits of the Company to its any one Managing 
  Director/Whole Time Director/Manager and ten percent in 
  case of more than one such official.
  The Company may pay remuneration to its directors, other 
  than Managing Director and Whole Time Director upto 

  one percent of the net profits of the Company, if there is 
  a managing director or whole time director or manager and 
  three percent of the net profits in any other case.
  The net profits for the purpose of the above remuneration 
  shall be computed in the manner referred to in Section 198 
  of the Companies Act, 2013.
 6.1 The Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock 
  option and may receive remuneration by way of fee for 
  attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for 
  any other purpose as may be decided by the Board and 
  profit related commission as may be approved by the 
  members. The sitting fee to the Independent Directors shall 
  not be less than the sitting fee payable to other directors.
 6.2 The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be as per 
  the Company’s policy and subject to the provisions of the 
  Companies Act, 2013 and shall be valued as per the Income 
  Tax Rules.
 6.3 The remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel 
  and the Senior Management shall be, as may be decided by 
  the Board and subject to the provisions of the Companies 
  Act, 2013 having regard to their experience, leadership 
  abilities, initiative taking abilities and knowledge base.
7. Evaluation/ Assessment of Directors/ KMPs/Senior Officials 
 of the Company –
 The evaluation/assessment of the Directors, KMPs and the senior 
 officials of the Company is to be conducted on an annual basis 
 to comply with the requirements of the Listing Agreement and the 
 Companies Act, 2013.
 The following criteria may assist in determining how effective the 
 performances of the Directors/KMPs/Senior officials have been:
 ♦ leadership & stewardship abilities; 
 ♦ contributing to clearly defined corporate objectives & plans;
 ♦ communication of expectations & concerns clearly with  
  subordinates;
 ♦ obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external 
  sources;
 ♦ review & approval achievement of strategic and operational 
  plans, objectives, budgets;
 ♦ regular monitoring of corporate results against projections;
 ♦ identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks
 ♦ assess policies, structures & procedures;
 ♦ direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials;
 ♦ review management’s succession plan;
 ♦ effective meetings;
 ♦ assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, 
  structure;
 ♦ clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees; and
 ♦ review of company’s ethical conduct.
Evaluation on the aforesaid parameters will be conducted by the 
Independent Directors for each of the Executive/ Whole-time / Non-
Independent Directors in a separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors.
The Executive / Whole-time /Non-Independent Directors along with the 
Independent Directors will evaluate the Independent Directors on the 
aforesaid parameters. Only the Independent Director being evaluated 
will not participate in the said evaluation discussion.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall also carry out 
evaluation of the performance of Directors of the Company at regular 
interval.
8. Review and Amendment
 8.1 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or the Board 
  may review the policy as and when it deems necessary.
 8.2 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may issue 
  the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism 
  and manual in supplement and better implementation to this 
  policy, if it thinks necessary.
This policy may be amended or substituted by the Board of Directors on 
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages 
attainment of higher levels of transparency, accountability and 
equity in all facets of its operations and in all its interactions with 
its stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers, 
suppliers, government, lenders and the community at large. It aims to 
increase and sustain corporate value through growth and innovation.

The Company’s core value includes business ethics, customer focus, 
professional pride, mutual respect, speed and innovation, excellence 
in manufacturing and total quantity. The Company believes that its 
operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing 
the interests of its stakeholders over a sustained period of time.

The policies and actions of the Company are in terms of applicable 
guidelines on Corporate Governance with endeavor to enhance 
shareholders’ value.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors along with its Committees provide leadership 
and guidance to the Company’s management as also direct, supervise 
and control the performance of the Company. The Board currently 
comprises of 5 Directors out of which 3 Directors (60%) are Independent 
Non-executive Directors, including 1 Women director. The company 
has 2 Executive Director and the 3 Independent Directors comprise 
more than half of the total strength of the Board.  All the Independent 
Directors have confirmed that they meet the ‘Independence’ criteria as 

mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
and Section 149(6) of the Act.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their 
directorships as required under Section 184 of the Act and on the 
Committee positions held by them in other companies. None of the 
Directors on the Company’s Board hold Directorships in more than 20 
companies, including 10 public companies and none of the Directors of 
the Company are related to each other. In accordance with Regulation 
26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members 
in more than 10 committees or act as chairperson of more than 5 
committees [the committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee] across all listed entities in which he/she is a 
Director. All Non-Executive, Non Independent Directors are liable to 
retire by rotation.

During the year under review, 6 Board Meetings were held i.e. on 
June 13, 2015 (which was adjourned and Concluded on August 01, 
2015), September 07, 2015, October 15, 2015, November 14, 2015, 
December 05, 2015 and February 13, 2016. The maximum time-gap 
between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The composition of the Board, attendance at Board Meetings held 
during the Financial Year under review, last Annual General Meeting 
(AGM), number of directorships (including K.S. Oils), memberships/ 
chairmanships of the Boards & Committees of public companies and 
their shareholding as on March 31, 2016 (including K.S. Oils) are as 
follows:-

Name of the Directors. Category No. of Board Attendance at Directorships* Board Shareholding
Director	 Identification	 	 Meeting	 the	AGM	 	 Committee**	 (No.	of	Shares)
 No.  Attended
   during the 
   Year
 Chairman Member Chairman Member
Ramesh Chand Garg 00027025 Managing Director, 6 Yes 1 - 0 - 5,193,590
  Chairman 
Davesh Agarwal 01102237 Executive Director 6 Yes 0 1 - 1 Nil
  & CFO 
Arvind Pandalai1 00352809 Independent  6 Yes 0 2 1 1 Nil
Boda Venkat Ram 03476912 Independent 6 Yes 0 1 1 1 Nil
B. Swarupa Rani2 07099356 Independent 6 No 0 1 0 1 Nil

 *  Excludes directorship in private companies, foreign companies, Section 8 Companies and alternate directorship  
** Includes only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committees 
   1-Resigned from the Board w. e. f March 21, 2016
  2-Resigned from the Board w. e. f June 20, 2016

Cessation: During the period under review, Mr. Arvind Pandalai, 
Non-Executive- Independent Director has resigned from the Board as 
on March 21, 2016.  After Reporting period Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani, 
Independent Director resigned w. e. f June 20, 2016 due to personal 
reasons.
Appointment: After Reporting period Mr. Prakash Chand and Mrs. 
Preeti appointed as Additional Independent Directors of the Company 
w .e .f  May 27, 2016.
Annual Independent Directors Meeting: During the year under 
review, an annual Independent Directors meeting in accordance with 
the Provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Act 
and Regulation 25(3) and 25(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, was 
convened on February 13, 2016, wherein all Independent Directors 
were present and to review the performance of the Non-Independent 
and Non-Executive Directors including Chairman of the Board and 
performance of the Board as a whole. The Non- Independent Directors 
did not take part in the meeting.

Board Effectiveness Evaluation: Pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 17(10) of SEBI Listing Regulations and the provisions of the 
Act, Board evaluation involving evaluation of the Board of Directors, its 
Committees and individual Directors, including the role of the Board 
Chairman, was conducted during the year. For details pertaining to the 
same kindly refer to the Board’s Report.

THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure 
of the Company and have been constituted to deal with specific areas 
/ activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. 
The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the 
Board, to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be 
performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance 
practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by 
the Committees and is responsible for their action. The Minutes of the 
meetings of all the Committees are placed before the Board for review. 
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The Board has currently established the following 5 statutory and non-
statutory Committees:
1.  Audit Committee
2.  Stakeholders Relationship Committee
3.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4.  Management and Finance Committee
5.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Audit Committee functions according to its charter that defines 
its composition, authority, responsibility and reporting function in 
accordance with Section 177 of the Act, regulation 18(3) read with 
Part C of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations. Whilst, the full 
charter is available on the Companies website, given below is a gist of 
responsibilities of Audit Committee:
 i. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly/annual 
  financial statements before submission to the Board, 
  focusing primarily on: 
  l Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process 
   and the disclosure of its financial information, including 
   earnings, press release, to ensure that the financial 
   statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 
  l Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re- 
   appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal 
   of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees; 
  l Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
   performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
  l Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
   services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
 ii. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
  statements before submission to the board for approval, 
  matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility 
  Statement to be included in the Board’s report, compliance with 
  listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
  statements, scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, 
  valuation of undertaking or assets of the company.
 iii. The Committee acts as a link between the management, 
  external and internal auditors and the Board of Directors of the 
  Company. 
 iv. The Committee discussed with the external auditors their 
  audit methodology, audit planning and significant observations 
  / suggestions made by them. 
 v. The Committee also discussed major issues related to risk 
  management and compliances and review the functioning of 
  Whistle Blower mechanism. 
During the year under review the Committee comprises of 2 
Independent and 1 Executive Directors, all of whom are financially 
literate and have relevant finance and/or audit exposure. Mr. Boda 
Venkat Ram is the Financial Expert. The quorum of the Committee is 
two members or one-third of its members, whichever is greater. The 
Chairman of the Audit Committee also attended the last AGM of the 
Company. 
During the year under review, 6 Audit Committee Meetings were 
held, i. e on June 13, 2015 (which was adjourned and concluded on 
August 01, 2015), September 07, 2015, October 15, 2015, November 
14, 2015, December 05, 2015 and February 13, 2016. The maximum 
time-gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 
days.
The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of members 
at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the period are as 
follows-:
Members Total No. of Numbers of 
  Meetings during meetings 
  the Tenure attended
Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 06 06
Mr. Arvind Pandalai* 06 06
Mr. Davesh Agarwal 06 06

* Ceased w.e.f March 21, 2016

The Audit Committee meetings were attended by the Auditors 
(including Cost Auditors) as invitees. The members held discussions 
with the Auditors during the meetings and the Committee reviewed 
the periodic unaudited and audited results of the company before 
being considered and approved by the Board of Directors. Company 
Secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee.

The Committee relies on the expertise and knowledge of the 
management and the Statutory Auditor, in carrying out its oversight 
responsibilities. It also uses external expertise, if required. The 
management is responsible for the preparation, presentation and 
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, including consolidated 
statements, accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
management is also responsible for internal control over financial 
reporting and all procedure are designed to ensure compliance with 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations as well as for 
objectively reviewing and evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness and 
quality of the Company’s system of internal controls.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee functions in accordance 
with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D of 
Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee look into 
redressal of Investors’ Complaints and requests such as delay in 
transfer of shares, non receipt of Dividend, Annual Report, revalidation 
of Dividend Warrants etc; Reviewing with management any changes 
in the share transfer policies and practices, qualification in draft 
secretarial audit report, significant adjustments arising out of audit and 
compliance with secretarial standard.
The Company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent’s Ankit 
Consultancy (P) Ltd., Indore, attend all grievances/ correspondences 
expeditiously of the shareholders and investors received directly or 
through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Department of Company Affairs, 
Registrar of Companies, etc., usually a reply is sent within 30 days of 
receipt of letter, except in the cases that are constrained by dispute or 
legal impediment.  
The Committee comprises of 3 Non-executive, Independent Directors. 
During the year under review, 5 Meetings of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were held i .e on June 13, 2015, September 07, 2015, 
October 15, 2015, November 14, 2015 and February 13, 2016. The 
maximum time-gap between any two consecutive meetings did not 
exceed 120 days.
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
and attendance of members at the meetings of the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee held during the period are as follows:-
Members Total No. of Numbers of 
  Meetings during meetings 
  the Tenure attended
Mr. Arvind Pandalai* 05 05
Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 05 05
Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani 05 05

* Ceased w .e. f March 21, 2016

The complaints of the shareholders are either addressed to the 
Company Secretary or Share Transfer Agent of the Company i.e. 
M/s. Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd. The status of pending shareholder’s/ 
investor’s complaints is regularly reviewed at the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee Meeting as well as in the Board Meetings itself 
on quarterly basis. There were no pending complaints or grievances at 
the end of the year under review. There was no pending share transfer 
as on March 31, 2016.
Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer: 
Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer, 
can be contacted at: K.S. Oils Limited, Jiwaji Ganj, Morena, Madhya 
Pradesh 
Secretarial Audit: As stipulated by SEBI, a Qualified Practicing 
Company Secretary carried out secretarial audit on a quarterly basis to 
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.
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the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, one Meeting of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee was held on February 13, 2016. 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and 
Remuneration held during the period are as follows:-

Members Total No. of Numbers of 
  Meetings during meetings 
  the Tenure attended

Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 01 01

Mr. Arvind Pandalai 01 01

Mr. Davesh Agarwal1    01 01

Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani2 01 01

1–Ceased w.e.f June 13, 2015
2–Appointed Member w.e.f June 13, 2015

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS: 
All pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive 
Directors with the Company: There is no transaction with the 
associates or relatives of the Non-Executive Directors during the 
financial year under review. 

Number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors: Non-Executive 
Directors of the Company do not hold any shares in the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is to link the remuneration 
payable to the Directors and employees with the performance of the 
Company. Further no sitting fee is paid to the Executive Directors. The 
information/ details to be provided under Corporate Governance Code 
with regard to remuneration of Directors for the year 2015-16 are as 
follows:

During the last quarter, the secretarial audit report illustrate that Rs. 
45,91,80,037/- is the issued equity Capital and Rs. 45,91,80,037/- is 
the listed Equity Capital.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible 
for, among other things, as may be required as per Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and 
includes the following:

i. Decision on any change in remuneration and terms and conditions 
 of employment of whole time directors and key management 
 personnel of the Company;

ii. Identification of the Executive or Non-Executive Directors to 
 become directors;

iii. Evaluation of every Directors performance in yearly basis;

iv. Determining and evaluate the educational qualifications, positive 
 attributes and independence of the Director for the appointment of 
 Independent Directors;

v. Formulate the policy relating to the remuneration for the directors 
 and motivate directors for the quality required to run the company 
 successfully;

vi. Recommend remuneration for Non-Executive directors to the 
 members, if any;

vii. Recommend retirement benefits to be paid to managing or whole 
 time directors

viii. Determine the terms of any compensation package in the event of 
 early termination of the contract of any executive director;

ix. Where necessary for fulfilling its duties, to obtain any outside legal 
 or other professional advice; and

x. Delegate any of its power, if required, to one or more members.

In addition, the Committee has discharged such other role/function as 
envisaged under the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges and 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Name Position Salary per month Perquisites Commission Total
  (Rs. in lacs) and Allowances

(Rs. In Lacs.)

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg Managing Director 2.00 Nil Nil 24.00

Mr. Davesh Agarwal WTD & CFO 2.00 Nil Nil 24.00

Details of Service Contracts
Name Date of Last appointment Current tenure From To
Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg September 3, 2014 3 years September 03, 2014 September 02, 2017

Mr. Davesh Agarwal September 3, 2014 3 years September 03, 2014 September 02, 2017

The tenure of office of the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors is for a period of 3 years from their respective dates of appointments and 
can be terminated by either party by giving Six months or as the case may be, three months notice in writing. There is no separate provision for 
payment of severance fees.

NON - EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company do not draw any remuneration from the Company other than sitting fees for attending 
Board and Committee meetings. None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors have entered into any pecuniary transaction or relationship 
with the Company.

Name of the Non- Executive Director Sitting Fees Total
 Board Meeting Committee Meeting
Mr. Arvind Pandalai 90,000 47,500 1,37,500

Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 90,000 47,000 1,37,500

Mrs. B. Swarupa Rani 90,000 17,500 1,07,500
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Performance Evaluation: The Company has devised a mechanism for 
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, Committees 
and other individual Directors which include criteria for performance 
evaluation of the non-executive directors and executive directors

Familiarization Programmes: Kindly refer to the Company’s website 
(http://www.ksoils.com) for details of the familiarization programme for 
Independent Directors in respect of their roles, rights, responsibilities 
in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 
business model of the Company and related matters.

Subsidiary Companies: Company does not have Material non-listed 
Indian subsidiary companies as defined in clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement and as provided in SEBI Listing Regulation.

OTHER COMMITTEES
MANAGEMENT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Management and finance committee has been constituted to deal with 
the banks for finance facilities, works related to government agencies, 
licensing authorities and other day to day matters of the company which 
will look after these matters at short interval for smooth operations of 
the Company.

i. Overview the day to day working of the Company;

ii. Power to authorize the persons/officers/ Directors or any other 
 person in relation to representation before the government 
 authorities, courts, quasi judicial bodies, banks and any other 
 authorities as may be required;

iii. Overview and take actions on the works of urgent matters and 
 minutes of the meeting shall place before the Board in next board 
 meeting.

iv. Delegate any of its power, if required, to one or more members; 
 and

v. Review, consider and advice to the board any other matter related 
 to the Management of the Company.

During the year under review, 11 Management and Finance Committee 
Meeting were held i.e. on June 13, 2015; July 25, 2015; August 01, 
2015; August 13, 2015; October 15, 2015; November 14, 2015; 
November 30, 2015; December 18, 2015; December 31, 2015; March 
02, 2016 and March 28, 2016

Composition of the Management and Finance Committee as on 
March 31, 2016 and attendance of Members at the meetings of the 
Management and Finance Committee held during the year as follows:-

Members Total No. of Numbers of 
  Meetings during meetings 
  the Tenure attended

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg 11 11

Mr. Davesh Agarwal 11 11

Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 11 09

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are in accordance with 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 
from time to time and include overseeing the Companies spending 
on the Corporate Social Responsibility; recommending the Board, for 
the spending over activities which may be prescribed by the Central 
government as per Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made there 
under(as may be amended time to time); Review the spending time 
to time; may obtain any outside professional advice or appoint any 
person from the company to find out nearby areas where financial 
help can be provide; where necessary for fulfilling its duties, to obtain 
any outside legal or other professional advice; delegate any of its 
power, if required, to one or more members; and review, consider and 
advice to the board any other matter related to the Corporate Social 
Responsibility.

In addition, the Committee has discharged such other role/function as 

envisaged under the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges and 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, one Corporate Social Responsibility 
committee meetings were held on February 13, 2016, 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility committee and 
attendance of members at the meetings of the CSR committee held 
during the period are as follows-:

Members Total No. of Numbers of 
  Meetings during meetings 
  the year attended

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg 01 01

Mr. Davesh Agarwal 01 01

Mr. Boda Venkat Ram 01 01

CODE OF CONDUCT
Whilst the K. S. Oils Code of Conduct is applicable to all Whole-time 
Directors and employees of the Company, the Board has also adopted 
a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. Pursuant to Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
all members of senior management have confirmed that there is no 
material, financial and commercial transactions wherein they have a 
personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest 
of the Company at large. Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, all the Board members and senior management 
of the Company as on March 31, 2016 have affirmed compliance with 
their respective Codes of Conduct. A declaration to this effect, duly 
signed by the CFO and Managing Director is annexed hereto.

INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
1. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
 The last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company 
 were held at K. S. Oils Limited, Factory Office, A. B. Road, 
 Morena – 476 001, Madhya Pradesh. The dates and time of 
 holding of the said AGMs and particulars of Special resolutions 
 passed thereat are as under:

 27th AGM Held on March 30, 2013 at 4:00 P.M.
 ♦ Approval of Re-Appointment of Mr. Davesh Agarwal as 
  Whole-time Director of the Company for the period of 3 years 
  w. e. f December 30, 2011

 Adjourned 27th AGM Held on September 07, 2013 at 
 4:00 P.M.
 ♦ No Special Resolution was passed

 28th AGM held on September 30, 2014 at 4:00 P.M
 ♦ No Special Resolution was passed

 Adjourned 28th AGM held on September 07, 2015 at 
 2:00 P.M
 ♦ No Special Resolution was passed

 29th AGM held on December 31, 2015 at 02:00 P.M
 ♦ Adoption of new set of Memorandum of Association of the 
  Company

 ♦ Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the 
  Company

2. EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
 ♦ No Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Members of the 
  Company was convened during the financial period

3. POSTAL BALLOT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
 ♦ No special business proposed through postal ballot 

DISCLOSURES:
 a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions 
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 Limited Review Report:-  Limited Review reports of the un-audited 
 financial results for the respective quarter(s) are not obtained by 
 the Company during the Financial Year as per Listing 
 Agreement.

 Financial results are displayed on the website of the Company 
 viz., www.ksoils.com Official news/ press release are also 
 hosted on the Company’s

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
a) 30th Annual General Meeting
  Venue : K. S. Oils Limited
     Factory Office, A. B. Road
       Morena, Madhya Pradesh – 476001

  Time : 04:00 P.M.

  Day & Date : Monday, November 14, 2016

  Book Closure period : 08/11/2016 to 14/11/2016 (both day 
     inclusive)

b) Calendar of Financial year ended March 31, 2017 (Tentative)
Adoption of Quarterly In the Month of   
Results Ended:
June 30, 2016 On or before August 14, 2016

September 30, 2016 On or before November 14, 2016

December 31, 2016 On or before February 14, 2016

March 31, 2017 On or before May 30, 2017

c) Dividend
  The board have not recommended any dividend for the financial 
  year ended March 31, 2016.

  Unclaimed Dividends
As per the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are unclaimed 
for a period of seven years, statutorily get transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered 
by the Central Government and thereafter cannot be claimed 
by investors.

There is no unclaimed dividend for the year 2007-08. As per 
SEBI Listing Regulations, no shares are lying in the suspense 
account of the Company.

Dividend declared by the company for the last 5 Financial Years/
Period
Financial Dividend Dividend 
Years/Period Declared on Per Share*
2010-2011 (15 Months) - Nil

2011-2012 (18 Months) - Nil

2013-2014 (15 Months) - Nil

2014-2015 (12 Months) - Nil

2015-2016 (12 Months) - Nil

d) Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Codes:

S. No Name & Address of Code/Trading Symbol
 the Stock Exchange

1. Bombay Stock Exchange 
 Limited, (BSE),
 P. J.Towers, Dalal Street Fort,
 Mumbai – 400 001 526209

2. National Stock Exchange of
 India Limited (NSE)
 Exchange Plaza,
 Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
 Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 KSOILS

3. ISIN allotted by Depositories
 (Company ID Number) INE727D01022

  that may have potential conflict with the interest of the 
  Company at large.
  During the year, the Company has not entered into any 
  transaction of material nature with the Directors, their relatives 
  or management which is in conflict with the interest of the 
  Company. The transactions with the related parties, namely 
  its promoters, its subsidiaries and associate companies etc. 
  of routine nature have been reported elsewhere in the annual 
  report as per Accounting Standard - 18 (AS 18) issued by the 
  Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

 b)  Details of any non-compliance by the Company:- There were no 
  instances of non-compliances by the Company on any 
  matter related to capital market. The Company has complied 
  with the requirements of Listing Agreement as well as 
  regulations and guidelines prescribed by the Securities and 
  Exchange Board of India (SEBI). There were no penalties 
  or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock 
  Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter 
  related to capital markets for non-compliance by the Company 
  during the last three years on any matter related to capital 
  market.

 c) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:- The Company has 
  prepared its financial statement as per the Accounting 
  Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
  of India (ICAI). There is no deviation in the Accounting 
  Treatment. 

 d) Risk Management:- The Company has procedures to inform 
  Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization 
  procedures. These procedures are periodically reviewed to 
  ensure that executive management controls risk through 
  means of a properly defined framework.

 e) CEO/CFO Certificate:- The Managing Director and  Executive 
  Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified 
  to the Board in accordance with Clause 49(IX) of the Listing 
  Agreement pertaining to CEO/ CFO certification for the 
  financial year ended on March 31, 2016.

 f) Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se:- None 
  of the Directors have any material or pecuniary relationship 
  inter-se among themselves, whether directly or indirectly.

 g) Whistle Blower Policy:- The Board of Directors has laid down  
  Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and employees of the 
  Company, to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual 
  or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code 
  of conduct or ethics policy. Further, the Company affirms that 
  no personnel have been denied access to Audit Committee 
  on any issue related thereto. The copy of Whistle Blower 
  policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. 
  http://www.ksoils.com

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  
Quarterly and Annual Results:-  Quarterly financial results of the 
company are announced within the time specified* as per the 
Listing Agreement. These results are published in national and 
local dailies. While the company did not send periodical results 
records to every shareholder, these were hosted on the 
company’s website (www.ksoils.com). The company also issued 
news releases on significant corporate decisions and activities 
and made these available on its website. The Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is part of the Directors’ Report. 

*Company have not announced and submitted the quarterly 
financial results of the company for the first and fourth Quarter 
within the specified time period. As well as company has not 
submitted its Audited Annual Accounts with in time specified time 
period as per the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI Listing 
Regulations.

Shareholding Pattern:- Information relating to shareholding 
pattern, compliance with Corporate Governance norms etc., is 
available at our website www.ksoils.com.
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Payment of Listing Fee: Annual Listing Fees has been paid by the company to BSE for financial Year 2015-2016. However, Annual Listing 
fees has not been paid to the NSE.

The National Stock Exchange has suspended the trading of the Shares of the Company from dated June 21, 2013 due to non-submission of 
Quarterly Financial Results in time as per Listing Agreement and trading of the shares are suspended on NSE as on date

e) Market Price Data:
  Monthly Highs and Lows for FY 2015-2016 at BSE 

Month
 Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

 High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume (No. Of shares traded)
Apr-15 1.05 0.80 45,47,618

May-15 0.90 0.60 67,57,576

Jun-15 0.66 0.49 88,11,638

July-15 0.69 0.43 1,56,89,525

Aug-15 0.65 0.42 1,07,31,534

Sep-15 1.12 0.44 1,22,16,615

Oct-15 1.34 0.96 2,11,93,885

Nov-15 1.10 0.86 84,54,522

Dec-15 1.47 0.94 1,23,61,988

Jan-16 1.77 1.09 2,42,25,419

Feb-16 1.42 0.91 59,27,579

Mar-16 1.38 0.80 1,31,53,666

       *Trading suspended on NSE from 21/06/2013.
f) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:
  Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.
  60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore (M.P.) - 452 010
  Tel.:0731-3198601-602, 2551745-46, Fax: 0731-4065798
  Email : ankitind@sancharnet.in    
  Time  : 10.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m.  

g) Share Transfer System:
  Share transfers in physical form are registered by the Registrars and returned to the respective transferee within a period of fifteen days, 
  provided the documents lodged with the Registrars / Company are clear in all respects. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers 
  are processed by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) through 
  respective Depository Participants. In compliance with the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a practicing Company Secretary 
  audits the system of transfer and a Certificate to that effect is issued

h) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2016
S. No Category No. of Shares Held Shareholding in %

A. Promoter Holding  
1. Promoters  
 Indian Promoters 34,602,105  7.54
 Foreign Promoters - -
2. Person acting in concert - -
 Sub Total 34,602,105 7.54
B. Non-Promoter Holding  
1. Institutions - -
a. MFs/UTI - -
b. Banks/FIs/ Insurance Companies (Centre/ State Govt.  
 Institutions/ Non-Govt. Institutions) 3,482,456 0.76
c. FIIs 22,123,157 4.82
 Sub Total  25,605,613 5.58
2 Non Institutions  
a. Body Corporate 38,507,069 8.39
b. Individual Holding Nominal Capital upto Rs. 1 Lakh 231,096,408 50.33
c. Individual Holding Nominal Capital More than Rs. 1 Lakh 53,443,703 11.64
d. Any other i) NRI 74,640,160 16.26
 ii) Clearing Members 1,284,979 0.28
 Sub Total 398,972,319 86.89
C. Custodian (depository for shares underlying GDRs) 00.00 00.00
 Grand Total 459,180,037 100.00
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i) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2016

Shareholding of Nominal Value of Rs.  No. of Members % of Members Share Amount (In Rs.) % of Shares
Upton 1,000 91,600 72.75   31,662,120 6.90

1,001 2,000 13,794 10.95     22,749,506 4.95

2,001 3,000 5,320 4.22 14,086,010 3.07

3,001 4,000 2,834 2.25     10,424,986 2.27

4,001 5,000 3,008 2.39 14,519,477 3.16

5,001 10,000 4,720 3.75 36,711,506 8.00

10,001 20,000 2,374 1.89 34,937,479 7.61

20,001 30,000 825 0.66 20,805,269 4.53

30,001 40,000 373 0.30 13,327,794 2.90

40,001 50,000 276 0.22 13,022,957 2.84

50,001 100,000 461 0.37 34,012,698 7.41

100,001 Above 333 0.26 212,920,235 46.37

 Total 128,258 100.00 459,180,037 100.00

j) Dematerialization of Shares
The shares of the Company fall under the category of compulsory 
delivery in dematerialized form by all categories of investors. 
In order to enable the shareholders to hold their shares in 
Demat form, the Company has enlisted its shares with National 
Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Status of De-materialization as on March 31, 2015
Category No. of shares % of total capital issued
Held in dematerialized 
form in NSDL 331,651,788 72.23

Held in dematerialized
form in CDSL 125,318,373 27.29

Physical 2,209,876 0.48

Total 459,180,037 100.00
k) Public issue, right issue, preferential issue and GDR/ ADR 
 etc.:
 There was no public issue, right issue or preferential issue during 
 the year. The Company has not issued any Global Depository 
 Receipt / American Depository Receipt / Warrant or any 
 convertible instrument, which is likely to have an impact on the 
 Company’s equity. 

l) Plant Location of the Company:
 (i) A. B. Road, Industrial Area, Morena – 476 001, Madhya 
  Pradesh 

 (ii) Village Khara Kheri, Ratlam -457 001, Madhya Pradesh

 (iii) Village Silawati (Opp. Vandana Hotel), A. B. Road 
  Guna-473 001, (M.P).

 (iv) Village Tathode, Tehsil Ladpura, Kota, Rajasthan

 (v) J.L.No.-149, Debhog, HPL Link Road, Haldia, Purba, 
  Medinipur-721657, WB

m)  Address for Correspondence:
 a. With the Company
  Mr. Sandeep Kumar, 
  Company Secretary
  K. S. Oils Ltd, Jiwaji Ganj, Morena - 476 001,
  Madhya Pradesh.
  Phone: 07532 –300000; Fax:  07532 - 300106
  Email: investors@ksoils.com

 b. With the R&T Agent
  Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.
   60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore (M.P.) - 452 010
  Tel.:0731-3198601-602, 2551745-46; Fax: 0731-4065798
  Email : ankitind@sancharnet.in

n) Compliance:
 i. The Company has obtained compliance certificate from 
  the CS Mayank Dubey, Practicing Company Secretary, 
  regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
  Governance as stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
  same has been taken up by the Board and Commented 
  thereon in their report.

 ii. Further, the Company has submitted the quarterly 
  compliance report to the stock exchanges within the 
  prescribed time limit. The compliance certificate is also 
  placed on Companies website i.e. www.ksoils.com for 
  shareholders information.

VII. NOMINATION FACILITY 
 Shareholders holding shares in physical form and desirous of 
 making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in the 
 Company as permitted under Section 72 of the Companies 
 Act, 2013, are allowed to submit to the Company’s Share 
 Transfer Agents, M/s. Ankit Consultancy Private Limited at 
 their address in the prescribed form (Form 2B). Nomination 
 facility in respect of shares held in Electronic Form is also 
 available with the Depository Participants (DP) as per the bye 
 laws and business rules applicable to NSDL & CDSL.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For K. S. Oils Limited

 Davesh Agarwal Ramesh Chand Garg
 Executive Director & CFO  Managing Director
 DIN : 01102237 DIN:  00027025
Date  : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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The Board of Directors
K.S.OILS LIMITED
Morena

Dear Members of the Board,

We, Ramesh Chand Garg, Managing Director and Davesh Agarwal, WTD & Chief Financial Officer of K.S. Oils 
Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A. We have reviewed the Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company 
 and all notes on accounts and the Board’s Report.

 i. The statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
  that might be misleading.

 ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
  existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st 
 March, 2016 which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have evaluated the 
 effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
 Committee, efficiencies in the design or operation of internal control system, if any, of which we are aware and 
 the steps we have taken or porpose to take to ratify these deficiencies. 

D. We further certify that we have indicated to auditors and Audit Committee:

 i. There have been no significant changes in internal control system during the years 

 ii. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 
  disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

 iii. There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, involving management 
 or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system.

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGULATION 26(3) READ WITH PARA D OF 
SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 

2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company 
have affirmed compliance to their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2016.

For K.S. Oils Limited

Ramesh Chand Garg
Managing Director
New Delhi, October 14, 2016

 Davesh Agarwal Ramesh Chand Garg
 Executive Director & CFO  Managing Director
 DIN : 01102237 DIN:  00027025
Date  : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of 
projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

1. Overview:

 i) Outline of the Company’s CSR Policy : -  As an integral part 
  of our commitment towards the society and as per CSR Policy, 
  the CSR committee shall focus on programs / projects in 
  following areas as per the provisions of Schedule VII referred 
  in the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 focusing on 
  eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition, promoting 
  preventive health care & sanitation & making available safe 
  drinking water and contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh, 
  set-up by Central Government; Promoting education, including 
  special education & employment enhancing vocation skills 
  especially among children, women, elderly & the differently 
  abled & livelihood enhancement projects; Promoting gender 
  equality, empowering women, setting up homes & hostels for 
  women & orphans, setting up old age homes, day care centres 
  & such other facilities for senior citizens & measures for 
  reducing inequalities faced by socially & economically 
  backward groups; Rural development projects

 ii) web-link of the detailed CSR policy of the Company is:  
  http://www.ksoils.com/pdf/CSRPolicy.pdf

2. The Composition of CSR Committee :

 Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg - Chairman
 Mr. Davesh Agarwal - Member
  Mr. Boda Venkat Ram - Member

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial 
 Year - Company is having losses for last three financial Years

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in 
 item 3 above) – Not Applicable in the view of loss.

5. Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year – Not Applicable

 a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year:- Nil

 b. Amount unspent, if any:- Nil

 c. Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year:- 
  Not Applicable

S. No. CSR Project Sector in Location of the Amount Outlay Amount spent Cumulative Amount spent
 or Activity which the projects/programs (budget) projects/ on the Projects expenditure direct or through
 identified projects is  programs wise Sub-heads; (1) up to the implementing
  covered   Direct reporting agency
     Expenditure on 
     projects or
     programs (2)
     overheads:

No amount was spent

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the 
 average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the 
 Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount: 
 Not Applicable Responsibility Statement:- The implementation and 
 monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with CSR objectives 
 and policy of the Company.

7. A Responsibility Statement of CSR Committee of Board: The CSR 
 Committee of the Company’s Board states that the implementation 
 and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
 objectives and Policy of the. 

For K. S. Oils Limited

Ramesh Chand Garg
(Chairman of CSR Committee)

Date : October 14, 2016
Place : New Delhi
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TO 
THE MEMBERS OF K.S.OILS LIMITED

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement 
of K. S. OILS LIMITED  (‘the company’) which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2016  and  the Statement of Profit & Loss  
and the cash flow statement for the period 1st  April 2015 to 31 March 
2016 and a summary of significant policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting 
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement except with regard to 
the matters discussed below where we have not been able to perform 
the audit in conformity with the relevant auditing standard on account 
of unavailability of adequate documents/information

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

Basis for qualified opinion
1. As  regards trade receivables, inventory, costs, production margin 
 and sales price of goods sold, we state that:

	 a)	 In	absence	of	confirmation	and	other	relevant	documents	of 
  balances trade receivable as  on 31.03.2016 , provision to 
  be made if any for adverse variation in the carrying amount of 
	 	 these	balances	are	not	quantified.	

 b) Position of inventory is as per management as more details in 
  note no.36. As explained in the note, we could not observe 
  inventory count as required under SA 501(Revised) ‘Audit 
	 	 evidence	–Specific	Consideration	for	selected	Items’.				

 c) Attention is invited to Note 35 on the explanation of the 
	 	 management	with	 regard	 to	abnormal	variations/fluctuations 
  sales price due to quality. We are unable to comment on this, 
  being a technical matter.

2. In the absence of details of testing for impairment of certain assets 
 viz. Production plants which were not operational during the 
 period, we are unable to state whether provision, if any, is required 
 to be made in this regard.

3. Out of transactions of purchase and sales of goods selected on 
 a sample basis; in some cases, full supporting documents were 
	 not	made	available	for	our	verification.

4. Long term Loan and Advances include advances aggregating 
 capital advance Rs.38446 Lacs given to the suppliers which 
 include advances Rs.604 Lacs and short term Loan & Advances 
 Rs. 37564 Lacs outstanding for more than a year. Relevant 
	 documents	and	confirmations	of	balances	are	yet	to	be	obtained.

5. The net worth of the company has completely eroded. The 
 loans grouped under head secured loan could not be termed as 
 fully secured.

6. The company had been served demand notice under section U/s 
 13(2) of the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets 
 and Enforcement of security Interest Act, 2002 on dated 4th March 
 2014 for Edible Oil Business for payment of Outstanding principal 
 amount including interest etc. within 60 days from the date of 
 notice.

	 As	 stated	 in	 the	 Note	 no.33,	 pending	 quantification	 of	 interest 
	 payable,	penalty,	other	financial	charges,	the	ultimate	 liability	for 
	 financial	 charges	 and	 related	 impact	 on	 reported	 loss	 is	 not 
	 quantifiable	 for	 the	 period	 and	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 provided 
	 interest	liability	for	the	current	financial	year.

7.	 The	 financial	 statements	 of	 company	have	been	prepared	on	a 
 going concern assumption, though the company has incurred a net 
 loss of Rs. 14934 Lacs during the twelve months period ended 
	 March	 31,	 2016	 and	 it’s	 net	 worth	 has	 eroded	 totally,	 CDR	 of 
 the company has been called off and it has been served 
	 SARFAESI	Notices	by	bankers	&	financial	institutions	for	payment 
	 of	 loans.	Further,	The	Lenders	has	filled	the	Original	Application 
	 (OA)	before	Hon’ble	Debt	Recovery	Tribunal	–	II,	New	Delhi	(DRT) 
 for recovery of debt. This situation indicates the existence of a 
	 material	 uncertainty	 that	 may	 cast	 significant	 doubt	 on	 the 
	 company’s	 ability	 to	 continue	as	 a	 going	 concern	 and	 therefore 
 it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities 
	 in	normal	course	of	business.	The	Company’s	ability	to	continue 
 as a going concern is dependent upon the factors mentioned in 
 Note 37.

8. Attention is invited to the following Notes forming part of the 
	 financial	statements:

 a) Note no. 30 With regard to certain contingent liabilities, whose 
  impact is not ascertainable.

 b) Note no. 31 with regard order of settlement passed in the 
  favor of company the Appeal of Income Tax department is 
  pending before M.P. High court Gwalior.

 c) Note no. 38 (a) & (b) With regard to manner of utilization of 
  fund raised through preferential allotment of equity shares in 
  previous years.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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 d) Note no. 39 With regard to the declared dividend Balance of 
  Rs.90 Lacs has not been transferred to separate bank 
  account.

 e) Note no. 8&9 With regard to the, Trade Payable Rs 18396 
  Lacs, advance from customers. Rs 3061 lacs and payable for 
	 	 Capital	 goods	Rs.1255	 lacs	 ,other	 Payable	Rs.698	 Lacs	 In 
	 	 absence	 of	 confirmation	 and	 other	 relevant	 documents	 of 
	 	 Customers	 and	 parties	 as	 	 on	 31.03.2016	 for	 any	 adverse 
  variation in the carrying amount of these balances are not 
	 	 quantified.

Qualified opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, except for the matters described in 
paragraphs 1 to 7 above, and the resulting effects of all these on 
the relevant assets, liabilities and the loss for the period which are 
not quantifiable the financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) In the case of the Balance sheet of the State of affairs of the 
 Company as at 31st March 2016.

(ii) In the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the ‘LOSS’ for the year 
 ended on that date.

(iii) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flow for the 
 year ended on that date

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 
 issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Sub-Section (11) of 
 Section143, dated 10,April 2015 of the Companies Act,2013, we 
 give in Annexure A statement on matters specified in paragraphs 3 
 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a. Except as stated in our comments under Basis of Qualified 
  Opinion ,we have obtained all the information and explanations 
  which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
  for the purpose of our audit;

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have 
  been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
  examination of those books;

 c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash 
  Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
  with the books of account;

 d. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements complies with 
  the Accounting Standards  specified in section 133 of the 
  Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the companies 
  (Accounts) Rule 2014; However as explained above ,we are 
  unable to comment upon the complete compliance with 
  accounting standard AS 1” Disclosure of Accounting Policies,” 
  AS 2 “ valuation of Inventory “, AS 9 “ Revenue Recognition”, 
  AS 28 Impairment of Assets” and AS 29 Provision, Contingent 
  Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

 e. On the basis of the written representations received from 
  the directors as on 31 March 2016 taken on record by the 
  Board of Directors, none of the directors (except Mr. Ramesh 
  Chand Garg) is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being 
  appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act 
  2013. 

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
  controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
  operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
  report in “Annexure B”; and

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
  Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
  and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
  our information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations 
   on its financial positions in its financial statements as referred 
   in note no. 30 to the financial Statements.

 ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including 
  derivative contracts as such the question of commenting on 
  any material foreseeable losses thereon arise.

 iii. According to the information and explanations given to us 
  there was no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
  transferred , to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
  the Company.

 For Ladha G. D. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

                  Firm Registration number: 010962C

New Delhi Nitin Pahariya  
Dated: October 14, 2016 Partner
  Membership number: 409770
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of K. S. OILS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has not, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Ladha G. D. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

                  Firm Registration number: 010962C

New Delhi Nitin Pahariya  
Dated: October 14, 2016 Partner
  Membership number: 409770

Annexure “B” to the Auditor’s Report
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On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanation given to us during the 
course of our audit, we report that:-

1) In respect of Fixed Assets:

 a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
  particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
  assets.

 b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management 
  on test basis. Such verifications are made at reasonable 
  intervals. We are informed that no material discrepancies 
  were noticed on such observation.

 c) According to the information and explanations given to us and 
  on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
  the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name 
  of the Company

2) In respect of inventories:

As	mentioned	 in	 paragraph	1(b)	 of	 the	Auditors’	 report	 and	as	 also	
stated in note 36, we are unable to comment upon reasonableness 
and	adequacy	of	 the	procedures	of	physical	verification	of	 inventory	
followed	during	such	verification.

3) According to informed and explained to us the company has not 
 granted any Loans to the companies, firm or other parties covered 
 in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
 given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions 
 of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and 
 investments made.

Annexure to Auditors; Report
5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
 given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits from the 
 public within the provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
 relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
 framed there under.

6) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost 
 records under section 148 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013 
 in respect of Company’s `Vanaspati, Refined Vegetable Oils and 
 Power Generation’. We have broadly reviewed the books of 
 accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made 
 by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records, 
 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
 and records have not been made and maintained

7) In respect of the Statutory Dues:

 a) According to the information and explanations given to us 
  and records examined by us, Undisputed statutory dues  
  including provident fund, investor education and protection 
	 	 fund;	 employees’	 state	 insurance,	 income-tax,	 sales	 tax, 
	 	 wealth-tax,	service	 tax,	customs	duty,	excise	duty,	cess	and 
  other material statutory dues, if any applicable to it, have not 
  been regularly deposited with appropriate authorities and 
  there have been material delays in numerous number of 
  cases. The Arrears of outstanding dues at the last day of 
  financial year concerned for a period of more than six months 
  from the date they became payable are as under:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period Due Date Date of 
Statute dues (Rs. in Lacs) to which the  payment 
   amount  
   relates

Employee State ESIC 3.37 Period related Various dates  
Insurance Act   to 2012-16   
     

Employees Provident 93.49 Period related to Various dates  
Provident Fund Fund  2012-16   
and Miscellaneous      
Provisions Act

Central Excise & Excise Duty 2.03 Period related to Various dated  
Custom Act   2013-14

Service Tax Service Tax 84.41 Period related to Various dated Paid Rs. 11.178 
   2013-16  on 5th April 
     2016

State Sales Tax VAT 878.08 Period related to Various dated  
   2012-16  

State Sales Tax WCT 7.34 Period related to Various dated  
   2014-16  

Sate Sales Tax Entry Tax 100.36 Period related to Various dated Paid Rs. 46 
   2012-16  595/-

Income Tax TDS 3.40 Period related to Various dated
   to 2012-16
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 b) Details of Dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, duty of custom & Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess which have not 
  been deposited as on March 31, 2016 on account of disputes are given below: 

Name of the Nature of the dues Amount Period Forum where dispute is pending 
statute   (Rs. in lacs) to which 
   amount 
   relate

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 11 1998-99 Hon’ble High Court

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 6 2003-04 Revenue Board

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 3 2003-04 Revenue Board

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 4 2007-08 Tax Board Bhopal

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 119 2008-09 *

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 52 2010-11 *

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 267 2011-12 **   

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 22 2011-12 **

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 18 2012-13 **   

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 247 2012-13 **

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 4 2013-14 **

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax / CST 76 2012-13 **

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 12 2007-08 Tax Board Bhopal

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 19 2008-09 Tax Board Bhopal

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 4560 2007-08 Hon’ble Settlement Commission , 
    Bhopal

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 8 2009-10 Tax Board Bhopal

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 202 2010-11 *

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 264 2010-11 *

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 70 2011-12 **

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 413 2011-12 **

Madya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 502 2012-13 **

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 26 2011-12 ** 

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 81 2012-13 ** 

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 84 2012-13 ** 

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 8 2012-13 ** 

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 84 2012-13 ** 

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 52 2013-14 **

Madhya Pradesh VAT Act VAT 11 2013-14 **

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 41 2006-07 Deputy Commissioner Appeal, 
    Gwalior

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 10 2007-08 Tax Board Bhopal

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 1205 2007-08 Hon’ble Settlement Commission, 
    Bhopal

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 1 2009-10 Tax Board Bhopal

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 3 2009-10 Tax Board Bhopal

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 668 2009-10 Additional Commissioner, Gwalior

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 196 2010-11 *

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 59 2011-12 **

Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 4 2013-14 **

Central Excise Act Excise Duty 24 2001-02 High Court

Central Excise Act Excise Duty 3 2002-03 High Court

Central Excise Act Service Tax 43.1 2009-2012 Commissioner Of Central Excise 
    (Appeals)

Central Excise Act Service Tax 12.85 2008-09 Commissioner Of Central Excise 
    (Appeals)
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* Marked appeals decided by the authority against us in the absence 
 of appeal advance, hence no further appeals are pending.

** Marked no appeals are submitted against the demand in the 
 absence of appeal advance

c) According to the records of the Company, there are no amounts 
 that are due to be transferred to the investor Education and 
 Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
 Companies Act, 1956 and rules made there.

8. As	mentioned	in	paragraph	7	of	 the	Auditors’	report	and	as	also 
 stated in note 33 the company has defaulted in repayment of 
	 dues	to	bank	and	financial	institutions.	According	to	the	information 
 and explanations given to us the amount and period of default 
 could not be given as details such as overdue interest, penalties, 
 damages, cost etc. as considered in their SERFASI Notice by 
 lenders and other parties have not been mentioned or made 
	 available	to	the	company.	Further	the	Company	has	not	provided 
	 any	interest	liability	for	the	current	period	due	to	non-	charging	of 
 interest by majority of banks and unavailability of their statements 
 of accounts.

9. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public 
 offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term 
 loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is 
 not applicable.

10. During the course of our examination of the books and records of 
 the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
 accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
 information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 
 across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or 
 reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case 
 by the management.

11. According to the information and explanations give to us and 
 based on our examination of the records of the Company, in our 
 opinion, managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance  
 with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the 

 Companies Act, 2013

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, 
 paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

13 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
 based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
 transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
 sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
 such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements 
 as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14 According to the information and explanations give to us and based 
 on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
 has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
 shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

15 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
 based on our examination of the records of the Company, non 
 cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with 
 him are in compliance with sections 192 of the Act where applicable 
 and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
 statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

16. According to the information and explanation given to us, the 
 provisions section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 is 
 not applicable to the Company.

 For Ladha G. D. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

                  Firm Registration number: 010962C

New Delhi Nitin Pahariya  
Dated: October 14, 2016 Partner
  Membership number: 409770
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

   Note No. As at March  As at March
    31, 2016 31, 2015

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
 Shareholder’s Fund   
 Share Capital 1 30580 30580 
 Reserves and Surplus 2 (214648) (199137)
    (184068) (168557)
 Non Current Liabilities   
 Long Term Borrowings 3 153182 152809
 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 11746 11631
 Other Long Term Liabilities 5 50 53 
 Long Term Provisions 6 12 13
    164989 164506
 Current Liabilities   
 Short Term Borrowings 7 112799 113595
 Trade Payables 8 18396 19425
 Other Current Liabilities 9 13828 13124
 Short Term Provisions 10 1 1 
    145023 146145
   
 Total   125945 142094
 ASSETS   
 Non Current Assets   
 Fixed Assets   
      -Tangible Assets 11 57280 62801
      -Intangible Assets   -     -   
      -Capital Work In Progress  2624 2624 
 Non Current Investments 12 4893 4893
 Long Term Loans and Advances 13 1219 1196
 Other Non Current Assets 14 4 5 
    66020 71518
 Current Assets   
 Inventories 15 1922 13392
 Trade Receivables 16 12660 12719
 Cash and Bank Balances 17 2768 1330
 Short Term Loans and Advances 18 40056 40365
 Other Current Assets 19 2519 2770
    59925 70576
   
 Total   125945 142094

Significant Accounting Policies and other notes 29 to 57

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for The Period Ended on March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

   Note No.  For the period ended For the period ended
    on March 31, 2016  on March 31,2015

Revenue from Operations 20 2445 7247 

Less : Excise Duty  1 1

Revenue from Operations (Net)  2444 7246

Other Income  21 1352 617

Total Revenue  3796 7863 

Expenses   

Cost of Materials Consumed 22 5306 314

Purchase of Stock in Trade 22 0 1295 

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, 
Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 23 6221 238 

Employee Benefit Expenses 24 678 837 

Finance Costs 25 224 623 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 26 3661 5343

Administrative and Other Expenses 27 2072 4810 

Total Expenses  18163 13459 

   

Loss  before exceptional items and tax  (14366) (5596)

Exceptional Items 28 454 17194 

Loss before tax  (14820) (22790)

Tax Expense   

Tax Related to pevious years  0 3

Deferred Tax  4 115 194 

Loss for the period  (14934) (22987)

Earnings Per Equity Share   

Basic/Diluted (F.V. of Rs. 1 each)  (3.32) (5.07)

Significant Accounting Policies and other notes 29 to 57

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2014
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities   
Net (Loss)/Profit for the Period/Year Before Tax (14820) (22790)
Depreciation 3661 5343 
Provision for Diminution in value of investment 0 5476
Interest Received (428) (127)
Interest Cost  21 484 
Government Grant  (3) (2)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0 4736
Unrealised Exchange Rate Fluctuation  0 134
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 454 6982 
Taxes (Paid)/Refund 0 397 
Adjustments   
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory 11470 1349 
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivable 60 3660 
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payable and Provisions (329) 739 
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Receivables & Loans & Advances (638) (6623)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities :: [A] (551) (243)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities  
Purchase of the Fixed Assets (20) (5)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1427 17508 
Decrease in Capital WIP  0 0
Investment In Subsidiary  0 0
Loan to Subsidiaries  598 (0)
Decrease in FD with Schedule Banks (1382) 108 
Interest Received 428 127
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities :: [B] 1050 17738 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities  
Proceeds from Issuance of Shares  0 -0
Proceeds from  Borrowings (other than Term Loans) (797) 0
Repayment from Term Loans (372) (17431)
Dividend Paid - -
Interest Paid  (21) (484)
(Increase)/Decrease in unclaimed dividend account 9 6
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities :: [C] (437) 17,909
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents: [A+B+C] 63 (414)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 187 600
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 250 187 
Notes:   
Cash and Cash Equivalent Includes :-  
Cash in Hand 120 77
Balance with scheduled Banks  
In Current Accounts 130 110
Balance with unscheduled Banks 250 187

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
  Notes referred to in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Note 1 : Share Capital (Rs. in Lacs)

 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Authorized Capital

90,00,00,000 (March 31, 2014 : 90,00,00,000) Equity shares of RS 1/-Each 9000 9000 

29,85,00,000 (March 31, 2014 : 29,85,00,000) 1% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Share of Rs. 10/- each 29850 29850 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

45,91,80,037( March 31, 2014 : 45,91,80,037) Equity shares of 
Rs 1/- each, fully paid up 4592 4592 

25,98,82,735 (March 31, 2014:  25,98,82,735) 1% Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference  Share @ Rs 10/- each fully paid up and 
issued against conversion of Loan. 25988  25988 

Total 30580  30580 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:  

 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Equity Shares

No. of Equity Shares at the beginning of reporting period 459180037  459180037 

Add: Shares issued during the period  -     -   

Less: Buy Back during the period  -     -  

No. of Equity Shares at the end of the reporting period 459180037  459180037

(b) Reconciliation of the number of Preference  Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Preference Shares   

No. of preference Shares at the beginning of reporting period 259882735 259882735 

Add: Shares issued during the period  -    -

Less: Redeemed during the period  -   - 

No. of Preference Shares at the end of the reporting period 259882735 259882735 

(c) List of the Equity Shareholders holding more than five percent of shares in the company as at the Balance Sheet date: 

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

 No. of Shares in % No. of Shares in %

Baring Private Equity Asia III Mauritius  35704070 7.78 35704070  7.78 

NSR Direct  Pe Mauritius LLC 40330926 8.78 40330926  8.78 

(d) List of the Preference Shareholders holding more than five percent of shares in the company as at the Balance Sheet date:

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

 No. of Shares in % No. of Shares in %

State Bank of India 65702735 25.28 65702735 25.28

Axis Bank Limited  55310000 21.28 55310000 21.28

Central Bank of India 26620000 10.24 26620000 10.24

Andhra Bank  21880000 8.42 21880000 8.42
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(e) Preferential Issue of Equity Shares

In order to meet the fund requirement of the Company for working 
capital and general corporate purposes, the Company came out with the 
preferential issue of equity shares to the Qualified Institutional Buyers 
(QIB) through Qualified Institutional Placement during the period at an 
issue price calculated under SEBI (ICDR) Regulation, 2009 on preferential 
basis duly approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders.

On April 09, 2012 the Company has allotted 33,767,282 Equity Shares  
of Rs. 1/- each at a premium of Rs. 6.25 to the QIB’s and raised Rs. 
2448.13 lacs.

The entire poceeds received towards the QIP isssue have been utilized 
by the company for the purpose of working capital requirement.

(f) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares:

1 The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value 
 of Rs 1/- per share 
2 Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.  
3 The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The 
 dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 
 of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.  
4 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares 
 will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company in 
 proportion to the number of equity shares held by each shareholder, 
 after settlement of all preferential obligations.

(h) Terms of Issue of 1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
 Share (CRPS)

1 The Company has issued 1% CRPS at face value of Rs. 10 each to 
 the Lenders under the terms and conditions of CDR package.

2 The CRPS arising out of conversion of 20% of all term loans (except 
 the Wind Mill Term Loan) aggregating to Rs. 2985 Lacs shall carry 
 a dividend of 1% p.a. Dividend shall be payable at the end of each 
 year from the date of allotment of the CRPS till the date of redemption.

3 The CRPS shall be redeemable after completion of 7 (seven) years 
 from the date of allotment of the same i.e., in FY 2021 with a 
 redemption premium of 64% on Face Value.

4 Payment of redemption premium is subject to the condition that the 
 same being paid out of the cash balance  available with the Company 
 and is in excess of Rs. 7500 Lacs.

Note 2 : Reserves and Surplus (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Capital Reserve  

Opening Balance 2452 2452 

Add: Capitalisation of Fixed Assets  -     -

Closing Balance 2452  2452
Securities Premium Account 
Opening Balance 88636  88636 

Add: Premium received during the period  -   -   

Less: Share Issue Exp.  -   - 

Closing Balance 88636  88636
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

Opening Balance 629 741 

Add: Foreign Currency Gain/(Loss) (576) (112)

Closing Balance 53 629 

Surplus (Balance in statement of Profit and Loss) 

Opening Balance (290855) (268127)

Add: Amount Transferred from 
proposed dividend 0 259 

Less: Net Loss for the period (14934) (22987)

Closing Balance (305789) (290855)

Total Reserve and Surplus (214648) (199137)

Note 3 : Long Term Borrowings (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Term Loans (Secured)

– From Banks 143489 143117

– From other parties 9692 9692

Total 153182 152809

Note 4 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Opening Deferred Tax Liabilities 11631 11436 

Add : Difference between book 
WDV and WDV as per Income Tax Act, 1961 115 195 

Less: Reversal of DTL   - - 

Deferred tax liability (net) 11746 11631

As a matter of prudence and in the absence of virtual certainity the 
company has not recognised Deffered Tax Assets on losses incurred 
during the period.

Note 5:  Other Long Term Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Deferred Government Grant 50 53

Total 50 53 

Note 6: Long Term Provisions (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Leave Encashment  12 13

Total 12 13

Note 7 : Short Term Borrowings (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Working Capital Loans 
(Secured)

From Banks 102826 103622

Jammu and Kasmir Bank Limited 20000000 7.70 20000000 7.70

IDBI Bank Limited 18770000 7.22 18770000 7.22

State Bank of Mysore 18000000 6.93 18000000 6.93
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Short Term Corporate Loan (Secured)

From Others 9973 9973 

Total 112799 113595 

Note 8 : Trade Payables (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 279 279

Other Trade Payables 18116 19145 

Total 18396 19425 

(a) The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
 2006

Company has send letter to suppliers to confirm whether they are covered 
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 as well as they 
have filed required memorandum with the prescribed authorities. Out of 
the letters send to the parties, some confirmations have been received till 
the date of finalization of Balance Sheet.
 (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

The Principal amount and 
interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to 
any supplier:

Principal 280 280

Interest** 147 112

The amount of Interest paid 
by the buyer in terms of 
section 16, of the Micro 
Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 along 
with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year. NIL NIL

The amount of interest due 
and payable for the period 
of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified 
under Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006** 0 0

The amount of further 
interest remaining due and 
payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues 
as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprise for the 
purpose of disallowance as 
a deductable expenditure 
under section 23 of the 
MSMED Act. 343 231

The amount of interest 
accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year. 489 343

** During the financial year, no interest have been provided to Micro, 
Small & Medium Enterprises.

Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Interest Payable 6639 6690

Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 30 

Unpaid Dividend 91 91 

Security Deposit from Customers 
and Suppliers 5 5 

Other Payables  

Outstanding Indirect Expenses 315 523 

Advances From Customers 3061 2046 

Overdrawn Bank Balance 4 12 

Statutory Liabilities 1666 1656 

Payable for Capital Goods 1255 1340 

Other Payables 698 658 

Interest on Dividend 71 71 

Deferred Government Grant 3 3 

Total 13828 13124 

Note 10: Short Term Provisions (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Provision for Employee 
Benefits 0 1

Total 0 1
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Loan Discolosure As on 31.03.15

Type of Loan Original Name Amount Rate of Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
 Name of Lender (In Lacs) Interest

Wind Mill Term Loan Axis Bank 1 1891 14.00% p.a. An exclusive mortgage The entire Outstanding
 IDBI Bank 2 3895 14.75% p.a. and charge over all the principal along with
 SBI Bank 3 3999 13.50% p.a. Wind Mill Assets of the interest etc. has been
 CBI Bank 4 7653 13.00% p.a. Company called off by the Lenders 
      by issuing SARFESAI 
      Notice on dated 26th 
      Dec. 2013
 Rabo Bank 5 3274 LIBOR+2.58  Default in repayment 
    BPS   

Edible Oil Term Loan SBM Bank 6 5850 13.25% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 Axis Bank 1 10231 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal along with
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 4718 13.15 % p.a. fixed assets (both present interest etc. has been
 J&K Bank Bank 8 7044 13.25 % p.a. and future) of the Company called off by the Lenders
 SBI Bank 3 5611 13.5 % p.a. by way of an equitable by issuing SARFESAI
     mortgage, excluding the Notice on dated 4th
     Wind Mill Assets and March 2014.
     Haldia Unit Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of
     an equitable mortgage.
     c) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company.

Haldia Unit Term Loan CBI Bank 4 2086 13.00 % p.a. A first mortagage and The entire Outstanding
 ICICI Bank 9 2649 18.75 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
     Haldia Unit Assets interest etc. has been
      Called off by the
      Lenders by issuing
      SARFESAI Notice on
      dated 4th March 2014.

Working Capital SBI Bank 3 15744 13.5 % p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan Axis Bank 1 9024 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 Andhra Bank 10 8069 13.00 % p.a. Current assets of the interest etc. has been
 ICICI Bank 9 735 18.75 % p.a. Company Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 7723 17.25 % p.a. b) A second pari passu Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 2622 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire SARFESAI Notice on
 CBI Bank 4 6528 13.00 % p.a. fixed assets  (both dated 4th March 2014.
     present and future)
     by way of an equitable
     mortgage including
     Haldiya Unit Assets but
     excluding Wind Mill
     Assets.

Other Secured BOI Bank 12 2769 12.7 % p.a. a) A second pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan     charge over the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets (both interest etc. has been
     present and future) Called off by the
     by way of an equitable Lenders by issuing
     mortgage excluding SARFESAI Notice on
     Haldiya Unit Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and Wind Mill Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     Current assets of the
     Company                       

 LIC Body 9692 10.75% a) First pari passu The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 1   charge on the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets of the interest etc. has been
     Company (Both present Called off by the
     & Future) (Other than Lenders by issuing
     Wind Mill Assets and SARFESAI Notice on
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     Haldiya Plant Assets), dated 4th March 2014.
     with minimum 1.5 time
     security cover during the
     loan term

 SREI Body 9973 36.00% a) First pari passu charge The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 2   on the entire fixed assets principal alongwith
     of the Company (Both interest etc. has been
     present & Future) Called off by the
     (Other than Wind Mill Lenders by issuing
     Assets and Haldiya SARFESAI Notice on
     Plant Assets) dated 4th March 2014.
     b) Subservient charge
     on Wind Turbines with
     aggregate capacity of
     78 MW

Cash Credit Andhra Bank 10 11765 13.00% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 SBI Bank 3 42826 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 ICICI Bank 9 9483 10.00 % p.a. current assets of the interest etc. has been
 Axis Bank 1 12183 13.75 % p.a. Company. Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 15665 20.86 % p.a. (b) A second ranking Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 11700 13.25 % p.a. pari passu charge over SARFESAI Notice on
     the entire fixed assets dated 4th March 2014.
     (both present and future)
     of the Company by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     including the Haldia Unit
     Assets but excluding the
     Wind Mill Assets.

Funded Interest SBI Bank 3 10066 13.5% p.a. (A) For Wind Mill The entire Outstanding
Term Loan-II Axis Bank 1 5159 13.25% p.a. Lenders principal alongwith
 SBM Bank 6 935 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first ranking interest etc. has been
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 563 13.15 % p.a. mortgage and charge Called off by the
 J&K Bank Bank 8 1083 13.25 % p.a. over the Wind Mill Assets Lenders by issuing
 CBI Bank 4 3040 13.00 % p.a. of the Company. SARFESAI Notice on
 ICICI Bank 9 2092 18.75 % p.a. (B) For other than Wind dated 4th March 2014.
 Andhra Bank 10 2764 13.00 % p.a. Mill Lenders
 IDBI Bank 2 4354 17.25 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of
 PNB Bank 11 2078 13.25 % p.a. India
 BOI Bank 12 295 12.7 % p.a. (a) A first pari passu
     charge on the entire
     fixed assets (both
     present and future)
     of the Company, by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     other than Wind Mill
     Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of an
     equitable mortgage.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable
     mortgage, other than Wind
     Mill Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (iii) For all Lenders
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company

Application Money: 1% SBI Bank 3 4928 13.5 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of India The entire Outstanding
Compulsorily Axis Bank 1 4148 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first pari-passu charge principal alongwith
Convertible   SBM Bank 6 1349 13.25 % p.a. on the entire fixed assets interest etc. has been
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Debentures (CCD’s) J&K Bank Bank 8 1516 13.25 % p.a. (both present and future) Called off by the
 CBI Bank 4 1996 13.00 % p.a. of the Company, by way of Lenders by issuing
 ICICI Bank 9 695 18.75 % p.a. an equitable mortgage, other SARFESAI Notice on
 IDBI Bank 2 1713 17.25 % p.a. than the Wind Mill Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and the Haldia Unit Assets.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari-passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable mortgage,
     excluding the Wind Mill
     Assets and the Haldia Unit
     Assets.

Common Security for all the Borrowings (Other than CCD’s)

(A) Personal Guarantee from each promoter to all the lenders

(B) Pledge of  100% Promoters shareholding in the Company, free of all encumbrances, including additional shares acquired by the Promoters on infusion of equity in the 
 Company (If any) 

(C) Pledge of 100% of the following investments held by the Borrower, free of all encumbrances,

Name of the Company No. of Equity/Preference Shares

 As at As at 
 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

1) KS Natural Resources Pte. Ltd 65679859 65679859 

2) KS Oils Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) 566300 566300 

3) PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation (Indonesia) 54600 54600 

4) KS Agri Resources Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) 23815576 23815576 

5) PT Mega Artha Peresada (Indonesia) 4500 4500 

6) PT Biodiesal Jambi (Indonesia) 48600 48600 

7) PT Tunas Bersusun Abadi (Indonesia) 47520 47520 

8) PT Luvang Urip (Indonesia) 3800 3800



Annual Report 2015-2016 43

Loan Discolosure As on 31.03.16

Type of Loan Original Name Amount Rate of Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
 Name of Lender (In Lacs) Interest

Wind Mill Term Loan Axis Bank 1 (331) 14.00% p.a. An exclusive mortgage The entire Outstanding
 IDBI Bank 2 408 14.75% p.a. and charge over all the principal along with
 SBI Bank 3 11 13.50% p.a. Wind Mill Assets of the interest etc. has been
 CBI Bank 4 1257 13.00% p.a. Company called off by the Lenders 
      by issuing SARFESAI 
      Notice on dated 26th 
      Dec. 2013
 Rabo Bank 5 3470 LIBOR+2.58  Default in repayment 
    BPS   

Edible Oil Term Loan SBM Bank 6 5850 13.25% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 Axis Bank 1 10231 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal along with
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 4718 13.15 % p.a. fixed assets (both present interest etc. has been
 J&K Bank Bank 8 7044 13.25 % p.a. and future) of the Company called off by the Lenders
 SBI Bank 3 5611 13.5 % p.a. by way of an equitable by issuing SARFESAI
     mortgage, excluding the Notice on dated 4th
     Wind Mill Assets and March 2014.
     Haldia Unit Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of
     an equitable mortgage.
     c) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company.

Haldia Unit Term Loan CBI Bank 4 2086 13.00 % p.a. A first mortagage and The entire Outstanding
 ICICI Bank 9 2649 18.75 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
     Haldia Unit Assets interest etc. has been
      Called off by the
      Lenders by issuing
      SARFESAI Notice on
      dated 4th March 2014.

Working Capital SBI Bank 3 15744 13.5 % p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan Axis Bank 1 9024 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 Andhra Bank 10 8069 13.00 % p.a. Current assets of the interest etc. has been
 ICICI Bank 9 735 18.75 % p.a. Company Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 7723 17.25 % p.a. b) A second pari passu Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 2622 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire SARFESAI Notice on
 CBI Bank 4 6528 13.00 % p.a. fixed assets  (both dated 4th March 2014.
     present and future)
     by way of an equitable
     mortgage including
     Haldiya Unit Assets but
     excluding Wind Mill
     Assets.

Other Secured BOI Bank 12 2769 12.7 % p.a. a) A second pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan     charge over the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets (both interest etc. has been
     present and future) Called off by the
     by way of an equitable Lenders by issuing
     mortgage excluding SARFESAI Notice on
     Haldiya Unit Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and Wind Mill Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     Current assets of the
     Company                       

 LIC Body 9692 10.75% a) First pari passu The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 1   charge on the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets of the interest etc. has been
     Company (Both present Called off by the
     & Future) (Other than Lenders by issuing
     Wind Mill Assets and SARFESAI Notice on
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     Haldiya Plant Assets), dated 4th March 2014.
     with minimum 1.5 time
     security cover during the
     loan term

 SREI Body 9973 36.00% a) First pari passu charge The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 2   on the entire fixed assets principal alongwith
     of the Company (Both interest etc. has been
     present & Future) Called off by the
     (Other than Wind Mill Lenders by issuing
     Assets and Haldiya SARFESAI Notice on
     Plant Assets) dated 4th March 2014.
     b) Subservient charge
     on Wind Turbines with
     aggregate capacity of
     78 MW

Cash Credit Andhra Bank 10 11765 13.00% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 SBI Bank 3 42031 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 ICICI Bank 9 9483 10.00 % p.a. current assets of the interest etc. has been
 Axis Bank 1 12183 13.75 % p.a. Company. Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 15665 20.86 % p.a. (b) A second ranking Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 11699 13.25 % p.a. pari passu charge over SARFESAI Notice on
     the entire fixed assets dated 4th March 2014.
     (both present and future)
     of the Company by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     including the Haldia Unit
     Assets but excluding the
     Wind Mill Assets.

Funded Interest SBI Bank 3 10066 13.5% p.a. (A) For Wind Mill The entire Outstanding
Term Loan-II Axis Bank 1 5159 13.25% p.a. Lenders principal alongwith
 SBM Bank 6 935 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first ranking interest etc. has been
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 563 13.15 % p.a. mortgage and charge Called off by the
 J&K Bank Bank 8 1083 13.25 % p.a. over the Wind Mill Assets Lenders by issuing
 CBI Bank 4 3040 13.00 % p.a. of the Company. SARFESAI Notice on
 ICICI Bank 9 2092 18.75 % p.a. (B) For other than Wind dated 4th March 2014.
 Andhra Bank 10 2764 13.00 % p.a. Mill Lenders
 IDBI Bank 2 4354 17.25 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of
 PNB Bank 11 2078 13.25 % p.a. India
 BOI Bank 12 295 12.7 % p.a. (a) A first pari passu
     charge on the entire
     fixed assets (both
     present and future)
     of the Company, by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     other than Wind Mill
     Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of an
     equitable mortgage.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable
     mortgage, other than Wind
     Mill Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (iii) For all Lenders
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company

Application Money: 1% SBI Bank 3 4928 13.5 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of India The entire Outstanding
Compulsorily Axis Bank 1 4148 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first pari-passu charge principal alongwith
Convertible   SBM Bank 6 1349 13.25 % p.a. on the entire fixed assets interest etc. has been
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Debentures (CCD’s) J&K Bank Bank 8 1516 13.25 % p.a. (both present and future) Called off by the
 CBI Bank 4 1996 13.00 % p.a. of the Company, by way of Lenders by issuing
 ICICI Bank 9 695 18.75 % p.a. an equitable mortgage, other SARFESAI Notice on
 IDBI Bank 2 1713 17.25 % p.a. than the Wind Mill Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and the Haldia Unit Assets.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari-passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable mortgage,
     excluding the Wind Mill
     Assets and the Haldia Unit
     Assets.

Common Security for all the Borrowings (Other than CCD’s)

(A) Personal Guarantee from each promoter to all the lenders

(B) Pledge of  100% Promoters shareholding in the Company, free of all encumbrances, including additional shares acquired by the Promoters on infusion of equity in the 
 Company (If any) 

(C) Pledge of 100% of the following investments held by the Borrower, free of all encumbrances,

Name of the Company No. of Equity/Preference Shares

 As at As at 
 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

1) KS Natural Resources Pte. Ltd 65679859 65679859 

2) KS Oils Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) 566300 566300 

3) PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation (Indonesia) 54600 54600 

4) KS Agri Resources Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) 23815576 23815576 

5) PT Mega Artha Peresada (Indonesia) 4500 4500 

6) PT Biodiesal Jambi (Indonesia) 48600 48600 

7) PT Tunas Bersusun Abadi (Indonesia) 47520 47520 

8) PT Luvang Urip (Indonesia) 3800 3800
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Note 12 : Non Current Investments (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Other Investment

Investment in Subsidiary

K.S. Natural Resources Pte. Ltd. 
Singapore (100%   Subsidiary) 22012  22012 
6,75,44,228 Equity Shares 
(March 31, 2015 : 6,75,44,228) 
@ SGD 1/- each fully paid up

Less: Provision for Diminution in 
value of investment 17119 17119

Total 4893 4893

Note 13 : Long Term Loans and Advances  (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Capital Advances

Unsecured, Considered -Good 384 378

 (A) 384 378

Security Deposits

Unsecured, Considered- Good 503 507

 -Doubtful 1  1

Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 1 1

 (B) 503 507

Loans and Advance to Staff

Unsecured, Considered -Good 34 28

 -Doubtful 6 6 

Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 6 6 

 (C) 34 28

Other

Advance Tax Including TDS Receivable 297 282

 (D) 297 282

Total (A+B+C+D) 1219 1196 

Note 14 : Other Non Current Assets (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Sales Tax Refund Receivables - 0 
Fixed Deposits 
(More then 12 Months maturity) 5 5
Total 5 5

Note 15 : Inventories (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Raw Materials  408 5367 

Finished Goods  
(net off value of obsolete stock) 336 6502 

Packing Materials 278 334 

Stores and Spares 832 1121 

By Product 68 67 

Total 1922 13392 

Note 16 : Trade Receivables (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Exceeding Six Months from the 
date they become payable

Unsecured considered  - Good 12631 11603

                                  - Doubtful 143373 143373

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 143373 143373

                                  (A) 12631 11603

Less than Six Months from the date 
they become payable

Unsecured considered -Good 28 1116

                                  (B) 28 1116

Total (A+B) 12660 12719

Note 17 : Cash and Bank Balances (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand 120 77

Other Bank Balances

Balances with Banks 130 110

Fixed Deposits (Maturity less 
than 12 Months) 2498 1113

Unclaimed Dividend 21 30

Total 2769 1331

(a) Fixed Deposit under Lien (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Fixed deposits under lien with bank 
for Bank Guarantees, Letter of 
Credit & Others 14 14

Note 18 : Short Term Loans and Advances (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Advances recoverable in cash 
or kind

Advances to Suppliers-Good  37565 36620

                                       -Doubtful 1804 1804 

Less Provision for doutful advances 1804 1804 

   37565 36620 

Prepaid Expenses  316 327 

Advance to Staff  6 27 

Advance for Expenses or others 251 294 

  (A) 38138 37268

Balance with Revenue Authorities  



Annual Report 2015-2016 48

VAT Credit Receivable  1765 1768 

Excise and Service tax Refundable 32 34 

  (B) 1798 1802 

Loans and Advances to Related 
Parties (Step down Subsidiary)  

Unsecured, Considered Good  

Loan to K.S. SDN BHD.  121 1295 

  (C) 121 1295 

Total (A+B+C) 40056 40365 

Note 19 : Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Windmills Income and Claim Receivables 20 110 

Export Benefit Receivables 8  8 

Insurance Claim Receivables 194 194 

Interest Receivables on FDR 19 180 

Misc Current Assets 98 98 

Sales Tax Refund Receivables 2180 2180 

Total 2519 2770 

Notes referred to in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Note 20 : Revenue from Operations (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31, 2015

Domestic Sales 
(Including highseas sales) 1092 4434 

Other Operating Revenues 1353 2813

Sub-Total 2445 7247 

Less: Excise Duty 1 1 

Total 2444 7246 

Note 21 : Other Income (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31,2015

Interest Income 428 127

Interest Received on Income  Tax Refund - 10

Misc Income 924 480

Total 1352 617

Note 22 : Cost of Materials Consumed (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31,2015

Raw Materials

Opening Stock 5367 6559

Add : Purchase during the period 347 417 

Less : Closing Stock 408 5368 

  5306 1608 

Less: Cost of goods traded 0 1295 

Net cost of material consumed 5306 313 

Note 23 : Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work in
Progress and Stock in Trade      (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31,2015

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 6502 6709 

By Products 67 70 

Packing Material  334 362 

Total  (A) 6903 7141 

Closing Stock  

Finished Goods 336 6502 

By Product 68 67 

Packing Material 278 334 

Total (B) 682 6903 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory 6221 238 

Note 24 : Employee Benefit Expenses      (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31,2015

Salaries and Wages 515 687 

Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 23 28 

Staff Welfare Expenses 141 122 

Total 678 837 

Note 25 : Finance Costs  (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31,2015

Interest Bank  - 0

Interest To Other 21 484 

Bank Charges 6 4 

Foreign Currency Transaction Loss 196 135 

Total 224 623

Note 26 : Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31, 2015

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 3661 5343 

Total 3661 5343

 Note 27 : Administrative and Other Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31, 2015

Consumption of Stores and 
Spare Parts 67 56

Power and Fuel 759 1590 
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Labour Charges 141 321 

Other Manufacturing Expenses 80 753 

Rent 85 106 

Repairs to Buildings 4 8 

Repairs to Machinery 82 154 

Insurance 46 61 

Windmills Expenses 244 823 

Windmills Claims written off 0 165 

Agriculture Expenses 6 5 

Rates and Taxes, excluding 
Taxes on Income 72 197 

Transport Loading and 
Unloading Charges 0 14 

Packing Expenses 33 28 

Advertisement and Sales 
Promotion Expenses 0 3 

Legal and Professional Fees 97 152 

Other Repairs 53 37 

Wealth Tax 0  1

Charity and Donation  1 0

Travelling & Conveyance 124 148 

Audit Fees including Expense 
- Statutory Audit 9 7 

- Tax Audit 6 5 

Misc Expenditure 163 172 

Prior Period Expenses 0 4 

Total 2072 4810 

Note 28:  Exceptional Items (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the For the 
  period ended period ended 
  on March 31, 2016 on Mar. 31, 2015

Provision For Bad and 
Doubtful debts and Loans 
and Advance 0 4736

Loss on sale of fixed assets 454 6982

Provision for Diminution 
in value of investment 0 5476

Total 454 17194

Note 29: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

29.1 Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India (“GAAP”) and comply with the mandatory accounting standards 
(“AS”) as notified by the Companies Accounting Standards (Rules), 
2006  to the extent applicable and with the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

29.2 Use of Estimate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported 
amount of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual result and 
estimates are recognized in the period in which results are known / 
materialized. Any revision to an accounting estimate is recognized 
prospectively in the year of revision. 

29.3 Revenue Recognition

 a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant 
  risk and rewards in respect of ownership of products are 
  transferred to customers. 

 b) Export entitlements under the Duty Entitlement Pass Book 
  (“DEPB”) scheme and Other Schemes are recognized as 
  income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of 
  the scheme is established in respect of the exports made 
  and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
  ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

29.4 Inventories

 a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value 
  on FIFO basis.

 b) Work in Progress is valued at lower of cost of raw Material or 
  Net Realisable Value.

 c) Inventories comprises of Raw Material, Stores, Spares & 
  Consumables, Work In Progress and Finished Goods. 

 d) Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of 
  conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories 
  to their present location and condition.

29.5 Commodity Hedging (Derivatives)

Pursuant to announcement on accounting for the derivatives issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), in accordance 
with the principles of prudence as enunciated in Accounting Standard-1 
(AS-1), “Disclosure of Accounting policies”, the Company provide for 
losses in respect of all outstanding derivatives contracts at the balance 
sheet date by marking them to mark to market. Any net unrealized 
gains arising on such Mark to Market are not recognized as income.

29.6 Agricultural Activity

 a) Biological Assets (Living plants  of Mustard, Soya or Jatropha)

  i. All costs related to biological assets are recognized as an 
   expense, as and when they are incurred.

  ii. Biological assets are recognized at net realizable value 
   only when the future economic benefits associated with the 
   assets will flow to the Company.

 b) Agricultural Produce (harvested products from biological asset) 
  is recognized at net realizable value.

29.7 Certified Emission Reductions

 a) Self generated certified emission reductions ( C.E.R- also 
  known as carbon credit ) expected to accrue to the Company 
  as a result of windmills are recognized as a part of inventory, 
  when it is certified by United Nations Framework Convention 
  on Climate Change (UNFCCC) and the future economic 
  benefits associated with such CER’s will flow to the company.

 b) Incidental expenses are charged to profit and loss account.

29.8 Fixed Assets

 a) Tangible Assets

  i. Tangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition or 
   construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost of 
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   fixed assets includes non refundable taxes, duties, freight 
   and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition 
   and installation of the respective assets. Borrowing 
   cost attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed 
   assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready 
   for their intended use is capitalized.

  ii. Advances paid towards the acquisition of the fixed assets 
   outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed under 
   long term loans and advances.

 b) Intangible Assets

  Intangible Assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the 
  acquisition.

29.9 Depreciation/Amortization

 a) Depreciation:

  i. Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided as per 
   the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 
   Act, 2013.iv. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis 
   from the date of installation / acquisition till the date the 
   assets are sold or disposed.

  ii. Depreciation has been charged on SLM basis for:

   1. Windmill

   2. Plant assets (except for oil and refinery plant located at 
    Morena)

  iii. For all other assets depreciation is provided on WDV basis.

 b) Amortization:

  i. Leasehold assets are amortized over the period of lease. 

  ii. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful 
   lives on straight line basis, commencing from the date the 
   asset is available to the Company for its use.

  iii. Goodwill arising in the course of acquisition is amortized 
   over a period of five years.

29.10 Foreign Currency Transactions

 a) Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing 
  rates prevailing on the date of the respective transactions. 
  Exchange difference arising on foreign exchange transactions 
  settled during the year is recognized in the profit and loss 
  account.

 b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
  currencies are converted at the closing rates as on Balance 
  Sheet date. The resultant exchange difference is recognized in 
  the profit and loss account.

 c) Exchange rate differences arising on a monetary item that, 
  in substance, forms part of the Company’s net investment in a 
  non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign 
  currency translation reserve in the company’s financial 
  statements until the disposal of the net investment.

 d) Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
  currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the 
  date of the transaction.

 e) In respect of transactions covered by forward exchange 
  contracts, the difference between the yearend closing rate 
  and rate prevailing on the date of contract is recognized as 
  exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contract 
  is recognized over the life of the contract.

29.11 Operating Leases

  Lease payments under operating leases have been recognized 
  as an expense in the profit and loss account.

29.12 Employee Benefits

  a) Short term Employee Benefits

   Short term employee benefits are recognized as an 
   expense at the undiscounted amount in profit and loss 
   account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

  b) Post Employment Benefits

   Contribution to Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund are 
   charged against revenue. Gratuity liability is paid to the Life 
   Insurance Corporation of India through a Trust created 
   for the purpose under Group Gratuity Scheme. The 
   Premium paid/payable is being charged to Profit and Loss 
   Account on accrual basis.

  c) Other Long Term Employees Benefits

   Company’s liability towards earned leave is determined 
   by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit 
   Method. Past services are recognized on a straight line 
   basis over the average period until the benefits become 
   vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized 
   immediately in the profit and loss account as income 
   or expenses. Obligation is measured at the present value 
   of the estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate 
   that is determined by reference to the market yields at the 
   balance sheet date on Government Bonds where the 
   currency and terms of the Government Bonds are 
   consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the 
   defined benefit obligation.

29.13 Investments

  Long-term investments are carried at cost less any other then 
  temporary diminution in value. Current investments are carried 
  at the lower of cost or fair value.

29.14 Taxation

  Tax expenses are the aggregate of current tax and deferred tax 
  charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss for the 
  period.

  a) Current Tax

   The current charge for income tax is calculated in 
   accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to 
   the company.

  b) Minimum Alternate Tax [ MAT]:

   In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JB 
   of income tax Act,1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid 
   in excess of normal income tax is recognized as an 
   asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there is convincing 
   evidence for realization of such asset during the specified 
   period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each balance 
   sheet date.

  c) Deferred Tax

   Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of 
   timing differences between accounting income and taxable 
   income for the period. The deferred tax charge or credit 
   and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are 
   recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
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   substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred 
   tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is 
   reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in 
   future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation 
   or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are 
   recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of 
   such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
   balance sheet date.

29.15 Government Grant

  a) Capital Grant

   Government grant related to specific fixed assets which are 
   depreciable are treated as deferred income which is 
   recognized in the profit and loss statement on systematic 
   and rational basis over the useful life of the respective 
   asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over the 
   periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on 
   related assets is charged.

  b) Revenue Grant

   Revenue grant related to specific tax exemptions is 
   recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on a systematic 
   and rational basis in the year in which it accrues.

29.16 Borrowing Cost

  Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition or construction of a 
  qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost of asset up 
  to the date such asset is ready for its intended use. Other 
  borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in the 
  year in which they are incurred.

29.17 Employee Stock Option

  Employee Compensation Cost, if any, arising on account of 
  option granted to employees is recognized in the financial 
  statements. It is the difference between the intrinsic value and 
  exercise price of options.

29.18 Impairment of Assets

  The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether 
  there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
  any such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
  recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable amount 
  of the assets or the recoverable amount of the cash generating 
  unit to which the assets belongs is less than its carrying 
  amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable 
  amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and 
  is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance 
  sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed 
  impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount 
  is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable 
  amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

29.19 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

  The Company creates a provision when there is a present 
  obligation as a result of past events that probably requires 
  an outflow of resources and reliable estimates can be made 
  of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent 
  liability is made when there is possible obligation or a present 
  obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of 
  resources. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 
  disclosed.

Note 30: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

   As at As at 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

a) Claims against the Company 
 not acknowledged as debts in 
 respect of  

 i) Excise & custom duty 
  matters under dispute1 108 52

 ii) Commercial Taxes matter 
  under dispute 9601 7575

b) Estimated amount of contracts 
 remaining to be executed on 
 capital account and not 
 provided for (Net of advances) 1653 1653

c) Bank Gurantee 166 166

d) Export Promotion against 
 Capital Goods. 276 276

e) Other Commitment  

 i) Preference Dividend with Taxes 1061 757

 ii) Premium payable on 
  Redemption of Cumulative 
  Redeemable Preference 
  Shares in June 2021 16632 16632

(f) There have been delays in filing of returns and documents with 
 Regulatory Authorities and in some instances documents filed/ 
 required to be filed are not traceable with the Company.  The  liability, 
 if any, in this regard is not ascertainable.

(g) Matter in regard to dishonour of cheques issued by the Company 
 during the financial period  is pending. The liability, if any, in this regard 
 is not ascertainable.

(h) As regards cultivation & maintenance of Jatropha plantation by the 
 Company, one of the conditions in FIPB approval has put restrictions 
 on such activity. The liability if any is not ascertainable. The Company 
 has undertaken such activity  in financial year 2008-09 and as stated 
 by the management the company has not extended it further and only 
 maintaining the same.

(i) In respect of remuneration of Rs. 96 lacs paid in financial year 
 2010-11(fifteen months ended as on 30.06.11) which was in excess 
 of ceiling prescribed under schedule XIII of the companies Act, 1956. 
 The Company has not yet obtained approval of the central 
 government, the liability if any is not ascertainable.

Note:
1 Amounts aggregating Rs. 213 Lacs and Rs. 212 Lacs are deposited 
 as appeal advance as on March 31, 2016 and Marc 31, 2015 
 respectively against Excise & Custom matters and Sales tax matters.

2 Payment of redemption permium @ 64% of preference share (face 
 value of Rs. 10/- each)is subject to the condition to that the same 
 is being paid out from  the cash balance is available with Company in 
 excess of Rs. 7500 Lacs.

Note 31 : Search Operation
Search Operation was conducted by Income Tax Department on 
Company and promoters on March11, 2010 and various documents and 
materials were seized by the Department during the search proceedings. 
The Company in order to have early resolution of matter preferred 
application before The Hon’ble Settlement Commission in previous 
year. The Hon’ble Settlement Commission, Mumbai Bench vide its order 
dated 24th June, 2013 has settled all the cases of the Company from FY 
2003-04 to FY 2010-11. However Income tax department filled an appeal 
before hon’ble Bench of High court at Gwalior. The matter is still pending 
for consideration.
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Note 32 : Corporate Debt Restructuring:  
a) The restructuring package was approved by CDR empowered group 
 on 20th December, 2011. The Master Restructuring Agreement has 
 also been signed with the lenders participating in the CDR package 
 (‘CDR Lenders’) on 14th March, 2012.

b) However the Company has not been able to service its repayment 
 obligations as sanctioned under CDR scheme and have been made 
 delays and defaults in repayment obligations. Such delays and 
 defaults have consequential impact on the financial statements in 
 terms of approved CDR Scheme and the CDR Scheme has been 
 called off by the CDR Empowered Group in a meeting held in July 2013.

c) Subsequent to above, the Group of Lenders have issued Demand 
 notice U/s 13(2) of the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial 
 Assets and Enforcement of security Interest Act, 2002 for calling of 
 the entire loan amount including interest due thereon for Wind Energy 
 Business and Edible Oil Business dated 26th Dec 2013 & 4th March 
 2014 respectively. By virtue of above notices, the Company has to 
 repay the entire outstanding loan amount to the lenders within 60 
 days from the date of notice. However it could not be done.

d) Further, secured lenders has filled the Orignal Application (OA) before 
 Hon’ble Debt Recovery Tribunal - II, New Delhi (DRT) for recovery of 
 the debt including interest of Rs. 4533.53 Lakhs due thereon for 
 Edible Oils Business dated May 08, 2016.

e) Lenders have sold of 86 windmills of 73.2 MW out of total 92 windmills 
 of 78 MW to different buyers between the periods from January 2015 
 to March 2015 through a separate bidding process for Rs 190.84 
 Cr. The sales proceed shall be utilised for repayment of outstanding 
 loan liability of windmill division as the fund lying with bankers.

Note 33: Interest on Borrowing and Finance Charges

The Company had been served demand notice under section 13(2) 
of the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and 
Enforcement of Security Interest Act (SERFAESI), 2002 on dated 
26th Dec, 2013 for Wind Energy Business and dated 4th March, 
2014 for Edible Oil Business respectively for payment of outstanding 
principal amount including interest etc. Total outstanding loan up to 
date of serving of SERFAESI Notice was Rs.3535.14 Cr as against 
Rs. 2886.10 Cr appearing in books of accounts. Due to Pending 
details such as overdue interest, penalties, damages, cost etc. as 
considered by lenders in SARFAESI notices, the Company is not able 
to quantify the Shortfall in interest and financial charges to be provided 
in books of accounts. Further the Company has not provided any 
interest liability for the current period due to non charging of interest by 
majority of banks and non availability of their statements of accounts. 

Note 34: Agricultural Activity

During the Financial Year 2008-2009, Government of Madhya Pradesh 
has allotted a land admeasuring 2,000 hectares to the Company on a 
license basis for no consideration, for carrying out the agricultural activity 
for a period of two years; consequently this has not been recognized as 
a grant. 

Note 35: Varriance in Cost and Sales Margin

There has been fluctuations in average realization of sales price during 
this period, due to market conditions and quality of goods. The quality 
of the inventory has substantially been detoirated over a passage of 
long period and became ufit for consumation. Therefore sol at reliasable 
market fetching nominal amount.

Note 36: Inventory Verification

The management of the Company has done physical verification and 
valuation on this behalf at the end of the year. The valuation of the 
Inventory of Finished Goods, raw material, packing materail and stores 
and spares has been done on net realisable market value. However the 
statutory auditors couldnot carryout or associate for physical verification. 

Note 37: Going Concern

During the financial period the Company has incurred loss of Rs 14934 
Lacs and its net worth has been completely eroded. Paucity of adequate 
working capital has resulted stalled operations and partial running of 
plants on job work basis. Company is in the process of restructuring its 
business; hive off whole or part of core and non-core assets for reducing 
debt burden. Resulting of the same during the year some portion of the 
non core assets (windmill division) have been sold. To deal with the above 
situation, the Company is actively pursuing option of re-organization of 
existing business and/or enters into some strategic alliance or introduces 
any potential investor. This would enable the Company to ease its 
continuing financial burden and ensure smoother running of its plants. 
To implement such strategy the Company and lenders consortium have 
appointed a reputed consultancy firm to look into the possible alternatives 
and suggest plan to be implemented for restructuring including sale of 
whole or part of Edible Oil business, which is in progress. Under the 
circumstances, the financial statements have been prepared on Going 
Concern basis and in the opinion of the management no adjustments are 
considered necessary to the carrying value of its assets and liabilities. 

Note 38: Preferential issue of equity shares and warrants:

a) In order to meet  the fund requirement of the Company  for its (i)  
 Expansion of refinery in India along with other allied expenditure (ii) 
 Investment in its overseas subsidiaries for development of Greenfield 
 palm plantations and acquisition of mature palm plantations and / or 
 CPO mills, all in Indonesia, the Company has come out with 
 preferential allotment of Equity Shares and Warrants to the promoters 
 & other foreign Investors in July, 2009 at an issue price calculated 
 under SEBI (DIP) Guidelines, 2000 on preferential basis duly 
 approved by Shareholders and Board of Directors of the Company.

b) The entire proceeds received towards the warrants have been 
 utilized for the purpose of expansion of refinery in India along with 
 other allied expenditure and for investment in its subsidiaries, except 
 Rs. 5065 Lacs. Such unutilized funds of preferential issue which 
 were kept in FD’s with the banks in previous periods, except for FD’s 
 aggregating Rs. 1117 lacs, balance amount of Rs 3948 lacs have 
 been utilized for the working capital of the company instead of for 
 expansion work in foreign business, which was the primary object of 
 raising funds.

Note 39: Non Transfer of Dividends:

Company recommended dividend in FY2009-10 of Rs  858 lacs (Rs 0.18 
per share) (inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax of Rs 122 lacs). Out of 
the dividend so declared, an amount of Rs 90 lacs remains unpaid.

Due to severe liquidity crunch,the promoters opted to waiveoff  the receipt 
of  their part of dividend. For the same reasons the company has not 
transferred un- paid dividend to a separate Bank account in terms of the 
requirement of Sec. 124 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 40: AGM and Results:

The Company has made an application to the Registrar of Companies 
(ROC) vide letter dated August 24, 2016 for extension of holding 30th 
AGM of the company for further 3 months according to the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 the Company was required to hold the AGM 
within the six months from the close of financial year but due to the 
financial crunch, scarcity of manpower and consolidation of the foreign 
subsidiaries accounts, the company has not finanlised and get audited 
the accounts within the stipulated time.

Note 41 : Derivatives
a) Derivative Instruments

There are no yearend foreign currency exposure that have been hedged 
by derivative instrument

b) The yearend foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged 
 by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:
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Note 43 : Government Grants: 

a) Non Monetary (Rs. In Lacs)

 Particulars For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Depreciation on the assets 
funded by Government Grant 2 2

Income recognized from 
Government Grants 2 2

b) Monetary (Rs. In Lacs)

 Particulars For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Income recognized from 
Government Grants - 199

i) Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following:

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Export of Goods Nil Nil Nil Nil

Loan receivable from subsidiaries  (MYR) 181913 121 7663068 (MYR) 1295

Other Loan Receivables (MYR) Nil Nil 242700 (MYR) 41

ii)     Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following:

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Import of Goods and Service ($) 22109 13 22109 13

Interest Payable ($) 538595 324 538595 324

Loans Payable ($) 5231250 3274 5231250 3144

iii)   Bank Balances in foreign Currency 

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Bank Balance (USD) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil Nil Nil

@denotes amount less than Rs. 50,000

Note 42  : Loans and Advances to Subsidiary and Companies Under the Same Management
Particulars Maximum Maximum Balance as at Balance as at 
 Outstanding Outstanding March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 
 during during (Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) 
 2015-16 (Rs. in Lacs) 2014-15 (Rs. in Lacs)

K S SDN BHD, Malaysia - 1295 - 1295

KSNR Pte Ltd, Singapore 1228 - 121 -

Total 1228 1295 121 1295

Note 44: Auditors Remuneration (Rs. In Lacs)

 Particulars For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Audit Fees (including Limited 
Review and Consolidation fees) 6  6 

Tax Audit  5 5 

Reimbursement of Expenses  @   @ 

Service Tax on the Fees and 
Certification 2  1

@denotes amount less than Rs. 50,000

Note 45 : Segment Disclosure
Since the financial report contain both Consolidated and Standalone 
financial statements, segment reporting disclosures is provided in notes  
to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 46: Employee Benefits  Plans

i) Defined Contribution Plan (Rs. In Lacs)

 Particulars For the  For the  
   year ended year ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

(1) Provident Fund 19 25

(2) State defined contribution plans  

 - Employers’ Contribution to 
 Employees’ State   Insurance 3 3

Total  22 28

ii) Defined Benefit Plan:  
 – Gratuity (Funded)  
 – Leave Encashment (Non funded)

In terms of the guidance on implementing the revised AS 15, issued by 
the Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, the Gratuity trust set up by the Company is treated as defined 
benefit plan since the Company has to meet the shortfall, if any. However, 
at the year end, no shortfall remains unprovided for.

Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees who have earned 
leaves, during the employment and/or on separation as per the Company’s 
policy. 

Valuations in respect of Gratuity and Leave encashment, as at the 
Balance Sheet date, based on the following assumptions:

– The disclosures of Gratuity are as under:

 (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular For the  For the  
   year ended year ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

1. Assumptions

   Discount Rate 8% 8%
   Salary Escalation 6% 5%
2. Table showing changes in present 
 value of obligations
 Present value of obligations as at 
 beginning of period 56 87
 Interest cost 4 5 
 Current service cost 8 9 
 Benefits paid 17 46 
 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 6 1
 Present value of obligations as at 
 end of period 57 56
3. Table showing changes in the fair  
 value of plan assets  
 Fair value plan assets at beginning of period 130 162
 Expected return on plan assets 11 13
 Contributions  0 5 
 Benefits paid 17 46
 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 0 (3)
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of period 124 130
4. Table showing fair value of plan assets  
 Fair value plan assets at beginning of year 130 162 
 Actual return on plan assets 11 13
 Contributions 0 5
 Benefits paid 17 46
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 124 130

 Funded status 68 75 
 Excess of actual over estimated return 
 on plan assets Nil Nil
5. Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized  
 Actuarial gain/(loss) for the 
 period–Obligations 6 4 
 Actuarial (gain)/loss for the 
 period–plan assets 0 @
 Total (gain)/loss for the period 7 4
 Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized 
 in the period 7 4
6. The amounts to be recognized in the 
 balance sheet and statements of 
 profit and loss
 Present value of obligations as at the 
 end of period 57 56
 Fair value of plan assets as at the end 
 of the period 124 130
 Funded status 68 75
 Net assets (liability) recognized in 
 balance sheet 68 75
7. Expenses recognized in statement 
 of profit and loss
 Current service cost 8 9
 Interest cost 4 5
 Expected return on plan assets 11 13
 Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized 
 in the period 7 4
 Expenses recognized in statement 
 of profit and loss 8 5

-Valuation of liability for Leave encashment has been carried out by 
an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date, based on the 
following assumptions:

 (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular For the  For the  
   year ended year ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Discount Rate (Per annum) 8% 8%

Rate of increase in Compensation levels 6% 5%

Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA

Expected Avg. remaining working 
lives of employees in no. of periods - 18

1. Changes in present Value of Obligation

Present value of Obligation as at beginning 
of the period 13 16

Interest Cost 1 1

Past Service Cost 0 0 

Current Service Cost 1 2

Contributions by Plan participants 0 0 

Curtailment Cost/(Credit) 0 0 

Settlement Cost/(Credit) 0 0 

Benefits Paid 0 1

Actuarial(Gains)/Loss (3) (5)

Present value of Obligation as at the 
end of the period 12 13
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2. Amounts recognized in the 
 Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 
of the period 12 13 

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end 
of the period NA NA

(Asset)/ Liability recognized in the 
Balance Sheet 12 13 

3. Expenses recognized in the Profit 
 and Loss Account

Current Service Cost 1 2

Past Service Cost 0 0 

Interest Cost 1 1

Expected Return on Plan Assets 0 0 

Curtailment Cost/(Credit) 0 0 

Settlement Cost/(Credit) 0 0 

Net Actuarial(Gain)/Loss (3) (5)

Employees’ Contribution 0 0 

Total Expenses recognized in the 
Profit and Loss Account (1) (2)

Amount of Current and Previous four years as follow (Rs. In Lacs)
 March March March Dec. June 
 31,2016 31,2015 31,2014 31,2012 30,2011

Gratuity      
Defined Benefit 
Obligation  57 58 87 85 126
Plan Assets 124 130 162 151 140
Surplus or Deficit (68) (72) (75) (66) (14)
Experience adjustment in Plan Liability
Experience adjustment in Plan Assets

Note 47 : Related Party Disclosures
a) Transactions with Related Parties as specified under Accounting 
 Standard-18
Subsidiary K.S. Natural Resources Pte Ltd., 
Fellow Subsidiaries Singapore
 K. S.Oils SDN.BHD, Malaysia  
 K.S.Agri Resources Pte Ltd., 
 Singapore   
 PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation, 
 Indonesia
 PT Mega Artha Peresada, Indonesia
 PT Biodiesel Jambi, Indonesia

Enterprises over which Key K.S.Food Products 
Managerial Personnel K.S Enterprises 
exercises significant influence M. L. Enterprises 
 Nathi Mal Totaram
 Ramesh Chand Sourabh Kumar 
 HUF 
 Sourabh Garg HUF 
 Neiil Education Pvt. Ltd. 
 KS Oils Ltd. Group Gratuity Scheme 
 Garg  Family Trust

Key Managerial Personnel 
on the Board
Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Davesh Agarwal Whole time Director
Relatives of Key Managerial 
Personnel
Mr. Sourabh Garg Son of CMD
Mrs. Sheela Devi Garg Spouse of the CMD
Mrs. Meeta Garg Spouse of Son (Mr. Sourabh Garg)
Mr. Shyam Kumar Garg Brother of CMD
Mr.Om Prakash Garg Brother of CMD   
Mr.Mohan Lal Garg Brother of CMD

b) Particulars of Related Party Transactions

Particulars Volume of Volume of As at As at As at As at 
 transaction transaction March 31, March 31 March 31 March 31 
 during the during the 2016 O/S 2015 O/S 2016 O/S 2015 O/S 
 period ended period ended Receivable Receivable Payable Payable 
 March March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Loan Received/(Given Back)        

Subsidiaries        

K.S. Oils SDN. BHD, Malaysia    (1295) (112) - 1295

K.S Natural Resources Pte. Ltd, Singapore 1228 - 121 0 

Total   (67) (112) 121 1295

Investment

K.S Natural Resources Pte. Ltd, Singapore - - 22012 22012

Total   -    - 22012 22012

Interest Income From Subsidiary

K.S. Oils SDN. BHD, Malaysia  (156) - - 156

Total  (156) - - 156

Amount due to subsidiaries

K.S Natural Resources Pte. Ltd, Singapore - - 3 3  

Total   -    - 3 3
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Due from/ (Due to) Others party

K.S. Enterprises  41 920 879 920     

K.S. Food Products  @ 2455 2455 2455     

M L Enterprises  - - 1 1

  41 3375 3336 3375

Remuneration *

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg  24 24   26 16

Mr. Davesh Agarwal  24 24   31 26

Total  48 48   57 42

Rent Paid        

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg  7 7   56 49

Total  7 7   56 49

Other Related Parties

Garg Family Trust  3 3    -    -

Total  3 3  -      -     -

Security Deposit Given

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg    4  4     -

Total    4 4

* Excluding contribution to gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment as separate figure cannot be quantified

Entire Loan Outstanding as on balance sheet date is secured by Personal Guarantee from Mr. Ramesh Chandra Garag and Mr. Sourabh Garg to all 
the lenders

Note 48 : Operating Lease (Rs. In Lacs)

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases 
are as under:

   As at March  As at March 
   31, 2016 31, 2015

Rent payable for 1 year 31 27

Rent payable for 1 to 5 years 14 29

Rent payable for 5 years and above - -

Note:  Rental cost is annually escalated between seven and twenty 
percentage. Annual escalation for every transaction is considered 
from the effective date of rent agreement.  Except in case of some 
agreement where the escalation is effective after the execution of the 
rent agreement.

On expiration of the above stated lease agreements, the same can 
be renewed on the basis of mutual consent of the lessor and lessee.

Additional amount of service tax will be paid on the above stated 
lease rental amount according to the rates applicable at the time of 
respective lease rental payments.

Total operating lease rental cost recognized in the financial statement 
is of Rs 85 Lacs (previous year Rs. 106 Lacs).

Note 49: Earning Per Share
In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net 
profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any extra- ordinary / 
exceptional item. The numbers of shares in computing basic earnings 
per share is the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding 
during the period.  The numbers of shares used in computing diluted 

earnings per share comprises weighted averages shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average 
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares 
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of 
outstanding shares). Statement showing the computation of EPS is 
as under:

   For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Loss after tax (14934) (22987)

Less: Preference Dividend 260 260

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax 44 44

Less: Interest on Dividend - -

Less : Interest on Dividend 
Distribution Tax - -

Loss Available for Equity 
Share Holders (15238) (23292)

Weighted average number of 
equity shares for Basic/Diluted 
EPS  (no. of shares in Lacs) 4592 4592

Basic/Diluted earnings per 
share (in rupees) (3.32) (5.07)

Face value of share (in rupees) 1 1
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Note 50: Discontinuing Operation as per AS-24

Pursuant to the note 32 (a) & (b), The Company proposes to sell 
whole or part of the Edible Oil Assets & Windmill Energy Assets of the 
Company to a buyer identify in accordance with the sale process to 
be undertaken by State Bank of India (acting on behalf of lenders) to 
repay the outstanding debt including interest of the Company. The sale 
of the above assets are subject to approval of shareholders u/s 293 (1)
(a) of the Companies Act, 1956 through postal Ballot.

In order to above, an ordinary resolution has been passed by the 
shareholders of the Company u/s 293 (1)(a)  on dated 7th September, 
2013 through postal ballot.

(A) In accordance with the disclosure requirement of Accounting 
 Standard - 24 “Discontinuing Operations”, following disclosures 
 are made as under for windmill Assets:

 a) Company had several windmills in the various states of the 
  country through which it generates power.

 b) Operations of windmill activity are shown as a part of 
  Business Segment in accordance with the requirement of AS – 
  17 “Segment Reporting”.

 c) Assets related Windmill Energy Business is required to be 
  sold off on priority basis.

 d) Carrying amount of fixed assets is shown under note no-11 

Note 51: Value of Raw Material, Stores and Spares Consumed

 For the period ended on For the period ended on 
 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

  Consumption % of Total Consumption % of Total 
  (in Lacs) Consumption (in Lacs) Consumption

1) Value of Raw Material 
 Consumed

 Total Consumption  -    - - -

 Imported  -     -    - -

 Indigenous  -     -    - -

2) Value of Stores and 
 Spares Consumed

 Total Consumption 67 100 56 100

 Imported  -     -     -     -   

 Indigenous  67 100 56 100

Note 52: Particulars of Raw Material Consumption, Production, Sale and Stock

Description For the period ended For the period ended 
 as on March 31, 2016 as on March 31, 2015

Opening Stock Unit Qty Value in Qty Value in 
   Rs. (lacs)  Rs. (lacs)

Oil M.T. 11103 5858 11122 6065

DOC M.T. 4022 582 4022 582

Vanaspati Ghee M.T. 107 62 107 62

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods   401  432

Production

Oil M.T. -    - -  -   

DOC M.T. - - - -   

  “Fixed assets” and for assets and liabilities refer note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial statement.

 e) Revenue and Expenditure in respect to ordinary activities 
  attributable to Windmill Energy Business are shown in note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial Statement.

B) In accordance with the disclosure requirement of Accounting 
 Standard - 24 “Discontinuing Operations”, following disclosures 
 are made as under for Edible Oil Business:

 a) Company has five manufacturing units in the various states of 
  the country through which it manufacture edible oil.

 b) Operations of Edible Oil activity are shown as a part of Business 
  Segment in accordance with the requirement of AS – 17 
  “Segment Reporting”.

 c) Assets related Edible oil Business is required to be sold off on 
  priority basis. 

 d) Carrying amount of fixed assets is shown under note no- 11 
  “Fixed assets” and for assets and liabilities refer note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial statement.

 e) Revenue and Expenditure in respect to ordinary activities 
  attributable to Edible Oil Business are shown in note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial Statement.
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Vanaspati Ghee M.T.  -     -    -  -   

Power KWH 17963430  -    102398049  -   

Cost of Material Consumed     

Mustard Seed M.T.  -     - - -

Soya been Seed M.T.   - -

Oil M.T. 435  326  15 23

DOC M.T. - - - -

Crude Oil for Refinery M.T. - - - -

Crude Oil for Vanaspati M.T. - - - -

Tin Plate M.T. - - - -

Oil Cake M.T. -  -  - -

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods  -  4,980  - 1584

HDPE 

    5,306   1608

Sale & Shortage     

Oil M.T. 7179 415 34 25

DOC M.T.  4,022   51  - -

Vanaspati Ghee M.T.  107  1  - -

Power KWH 17963430 565 94852762 3063

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods   59  1345

Closing Stock 

Oil M.T. 4359 336 11103 5858

DOC M.T.  -     -    4022 582

Vanaspati Ghee M.T.  -  - 107 62

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods   346  401

Note 53: CIF/CFR Value of Imports (Rs. In Lacs)

 For the For the 
 period ended period ended 
 on March 31, 2016 on March 31, 2015

Raw Materials/ Traded Goods - - 

Stores & Spares - - 

Capital goods - - 

Note 54: Earnings in Foreign Currency (Rs. In Lacs)

 For the For the 
 period ended period ended 
 on March 31, 2016 on March 31, 2015

On export of goods calculated 
on FOB basis - -

Interest on loan to subsidiaries - -

Note 55: Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs. In Lacs)

 For the For the 
 period ended period ended 
 on March 31, 2016 on March 31, 2015

Interest - -

Professional fees - -

Others - -
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Note 56: Dividend to NRI / OCB (Rs. In Lacs)

 For the For the 
 period ended period ended 
 on March 31, 2016 on March 31, 2015

Dividend - -

Number of Shareholders 916 916

Total Number of Shares (In No.) 105678891 105678891

Note 57 : Comparatives Figures

The current financial statements is prepared for twelve months period ended March 31, 2016, hence figures for the same are not comparable with that 
of previous financial statements, which was prepared for the twelve months period ended March 31, 2015.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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TO 
THE MEMBERS OF K.S.OILS LIMITED 
JIWAJI GANJ, MORENA (M.P.)

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statement 
of K. S. OILS LIMITED (‘the company’) which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2016 and  the Statement of Profit & Loss  and 
the cash flow statement for the period 1st  April 2015 to 31 March 
2016 and a summary of significant policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting 
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement except with regard 
to the matters discussed below where we have not been able 
to perform the audit in conformity with the relevant auditing 
standard on account of unavailability of adequate documents/
information
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Basis for qualified opinion
1. As  regards trade receivables, inventory, costs, production margin 

 and sales price of goods sold, we state that:

	 a)	 In	absence	of	confirmation	and	other	relevant	documents	of 
  balances trade receivable as  on 31.03.2016 , provision to 
  be made if any for adverse variation in the carrying amount 
	 	 of	these	balances	are	not	quantified.

 b)  Position of inventory is as per management as more details 
  in note no.36. As explained in the note, we could not observe 
  inventory count as required under SA 501(Revised) ‘Audit 
	 	 evidence	–Specific	Consideration	for	selected	Items’.

 c) Attention is invited to Note 35 on the explanation of the 
	 	 management	with	regard	to	abnormal	variations/fluctuations 
  sales price due to quality. We are unable to comment on this, 
  being a technical matter.

2. In the absence of details of testing for impairment of certain 
 assets viz. Production plants which were not operational during 
 the period, we are unable to state whether provision, if any, is 
 required to be made in this regard.

3. Out of transactions of purchase and sales of goods selected on 
 a sample basis; in some cases, full supporting documents were 
	 not	made	available	for	our	verification.

4. Long term Loan and Advances include advances aggregating 
 capital advance Rs.38446 Lacs given to the suppliers which 
 include advances Rs.604 Lacs and short term Loan & Advances 
 Rs. 37564 Lacs outstanding for more than a year. Relevant 
	 documents	and	confirmations	of	balances	are	yet	to	be	obtained.

5. The net worth of the company has completely eroded. The 
 loans grouped under head secured loan could not be termed as 
 fully secured.

6. The company had been served demand notice under section U/s 
 13(2) of the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets 
 and Enforcement of security Interest Act, 2002 on dated 4th 
 March 2014 for Edible Oil Business for payment of Outstanding 
 principal amount including interest etc. within 60 days from the 
 date of notice.

	 As	 stated	 in	 the	Note	 no.33,	 pending	 quantification	 of	 interest 
	 payable,	penalty,	other	financial	charges,	the	ultimate	liability	for 
	 financial	 charges	 and	 related	 impact	 on	 reported	 loss	 is	 not 
	 quantifiable	 for	 the	 period	 and	 the	Company	 has	 not	 provided 
	 interest	liability	for	the	current	financial	year.

7.	 The	financial	statements	of	company	have	been	prepared	on	a 
 going concern assumption, though the company has incurred a 
 net loss of Rs. 14934 Lacs during the twelve months period 
	 ended	March	31,	2016	and	it’s	net	worth	has	eroded	totally,	CDR 
 of the company has been called off and it has been served 
	 SARFAESI	Notices	by	bankers	&	financial	institutions	for	payment 
	 of	loans.	Further,	The	Lenders	has	filled	the	Original	Application 
	 (OA)	 before	 Hon’ble	 Debt	 Recovery	 Tribunal	 –	 II,	 New	 Delhi 
	 (DRT)	for	recovery	of	debt.	This	situation	indicates	the	existence 
	 of	a	material	uncertainty	 that	may	cast	significant	doubt	on	 the 
	 company’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern	and	therefore 
 it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities 
	 in	normal	course	of	business.	The	Company’s	ability	to	continue 
 as a going concern is dependent upon the factors mentioned in 
 Note 37.

8. We did not audit the consolidated financial statement of subsidiary 
 whose financial statement reflects total assets of Rs. 12803 Lacs 
 as at March 2016, total revenue of Rs. 1767 Lacs and cash outflow 
 of Rs. 17 Lacs for the period then ended. These financial 
 statements and other financial information are as compiled 
 and prepared by the management and our opinion is based on 
 this management prepared financial statement.

9. Attention is invited to the following Notes forming part of the 
	 financial	statements:

 a) Note no.  29 With regard to certain contingent liabilities, 
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  whose impact is not ascertainable.

 b) Note no. 30 with regard order of settlement passed in the 
  favor of company the Appeal of Income Tax department is 
  pending before M.P. High court Gwalior

 c) Note no. 37 (a) & (b) With regard to manner of utilization of 
  fund raised through preferential allotment of equity shares in 
  previous years.

 d)  Note no. 38 With regard to the declared dividend Balance of 
  Rs.90 Lacs has not been transferred to separate bank 
  account.

 e) Note no. 8&9 With regard to the, Trade Payable Rs 18396 
  Lacs, advance from customers. Rs 3061 lacs and payable for 
  Capital goods Rs.1255 lacs ,other Payable Rs.698 Lacs In 
  absence of confirmation and other relevant documents of 
  Customers and parties as  on 31.03.2016 for any adverse 
  variation in the carrying amount of these balances are not 
  quantified.

Qualified opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, except for the matters described in 
paragraphs 1 to 8 above, and the resulting effects of all these on 
the relevant assets, liabilities and the loss for the period which are 
not quantifiable the financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) In the case of the Consolidated Balance sheet of the State of 
 affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2016.

(ii) In the case of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account, of the 
 ‘LOSS’ for the year ended on that date.

(iii) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
 flow for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 
 issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Sub-Section (11) 
 of Section143,dated 10,April 2015 of the Companies Act,2013, 
 we give in Annexure A statement on matters specified in 
 paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) Except as stated in our comments under Basis of Qualified 
  Opinion, we have obtained all the information and  
  explanations which to the best of our knowledge and   belief 
  were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
  law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
  our examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash 

  Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
  with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements complies 
  with the Accounting Standards  specified in section 133  
  of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the 
  companies (Accounts) Rule 2014; However as explained 
  above ,we are unable to comment upon the complete 
  compliance with accounting standard AS 1” Disclosure of 
  Accounting Policies,” AS 2 “ valuation of Inventory “, AS 
  9 “ Revenue Recognition”, AS 28 Impairment of Assets” and 
  AS 29 Provision ,Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
  Assets.  

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
  the directors as on 31 March 2016 taken on record by the 
  Board of Directors, none of the directors (except Mr. 
  Ramesh Chand Garg) is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 
  from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) 
  of the Act 2013.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
  over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
  effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
  “Annexure B”; and 

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
  Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
  Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion 
  and to the best of our information and according to the 
  explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
   litigations on its financial positions in its financial 
   statements as referred in note no. 30 to the financial 
   Statements.

  ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including 
   derivative contracts as such the question of commenting 
   on any material foreseeable losses thereon arise.

  iii. According to the information and explanations given to us 
   there was no delay in transferring amounts, required to 
   be transferred , to the Investor Education and Protection 
   Fund by the Company. 

 For Ladha G. D. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

                  Firm Registration number: 010962C

New Delhi Nitin Paharia
Dated: October 14, 2016 Partner
  Membership number: 409770
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of K. S. OILS LIMITED. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

ANNExURE “B” TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has not, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Ladha G. D. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration number: 010962C

New Delhi Nitin Paharia
Dated: October 14, 2016 Partner
  Membership number: 409770
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
 Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

   Note No. As at March  As at March  
    31, 2016 31, 2015
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
 Shareholder’s Fund   
 Share Capital 1 30580  30580
 Reserves and Surplus 2 (206242.40) (191199.34)
    
 Minority Interest  (713) (444.77)
    (176375.40) (161064.04)
    
 Non Current Liabilities   
 Long Term Borrowings 3 153181 152809
 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 11746 11631
 Other Long Term Liabilities 5 50  53
 Long Term Provisions 6 12 13
    164989 164506
    
 Current Liabilities   
 Short Term Borrowings 7 112799 113595
 Trade Payables 8 18492 19493
 Other Current Liabilities 9 13829 13154
 Short Term Provisions 10 0 1
    145120 146243
    
  Total  133734 149684
II ASSETS   
 Non Current Assets   
  Fixed Assets   
      -Tangible Assets 11 65454 72279 
      -Intangible Assets 11  -   -   
      -Capital Work In Progress  2623 2624 
     - Immature Plantation  1696 3941
    69773 78843
 Non Current Investments  - -
 Long Term Loans and Advances 12 4134 1196
 Other Non Current Assets 13 5 5
    4138 1201
    
 Current Assets   
 Inventories 14 1922 13392
 Trade Receivables 15 12659 12737
 Cash and Bank Balances 16 2776 1355
 Short Term Loans and Advances 17 39946 39543
 Other Current Assets 18 2519 2614
    59822 69640
    
  Total  133734 149684

Significant Accounting Policies and other notes 28 to 55

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016 
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period Ended on March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

   Note No.  For the period ended For the period ended
    on March 31, 2016 on March 31, 2015

Revenue from Operations 19 4212 7752 

Less : Excise Duty  1 1

Revenue from Operations (Net)  4211 7751

   

Other Income  20 1508 617

Total Revenue   5719 8368 

   

Expenses

   

Cost of Materials Consumed 21 5306 313

Purchase of Stock in Trade 21 0 1295 

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods,
Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 22 6221 238 

   

Employee Benefit Expenses 23 678 878 

Finance Costs 24 224 624 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 25 3661 5376 

Administrative and Other Expenses 26 2078 10669 

Total Expenses  18169 19393 

   

Loss  before exceptional items and tax  (12450) (11025)

Exceptional Items 27 454 11718 

Loss before tax  (12904) (22743)

Tax Expense   

Tax Related to pevious years  0  3

Mat  Credit Reversal   -  -

Deferred Tax  4 115  194

Loss for the period  (13018) (22940)

Minority interest  (238) (550)

Net Loss for the period  (12780) (22389)

Earnings Per Equity Share   

Basic/Diluted (F.V. of Rs. 1 each) 47 (2.85) (4.94)

Significant Accounting Policies and other notes 28 to 55

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2016

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Cash Flow from Operating Activities   
Net (Loss)/Profit for the Period/Year Before Tax (12903) (22742)
Depreciation 3661 5376 
Interest Received (584) (127)
Interest Cost 21 484 
Depreciation on Government Grant (3) (2)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0 4736 
Unrealised Exchange Rate Fluctuation  - 134
(Profit)/Loss  on Sale of Fixed Assets 454 6982 
Taxes Paid 0 397 
Impact of FCTR (3054) 897 
Adjustments  
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory 11470  1349
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivable 77 3673 
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payable and Provisions (328) 807 
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Receivables & Loans & Advances (3246) (7060)
   
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities :: [A] (4434) (5097)
   
Cash Flow from Investing Activities  
Purchase of the Fixed Assets (20) (8)
Sale of Fixed Assets 3297 17507
Decrease in WIP  -   0 
(Increase )/Decrease in FD with Schedule Banks (1384) 109
Interest Received 584 127 
Immature Plantation 2245 4726 
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities :: [B] 4721 22461 
   
Cash Flow from Financing Activities  
Proceeds from Issuance of Shares 0  0 
Proceeds from Borrowings (other than Term Loans) (797) 0
Proceeds from Term Loans 568 (17431)
Dividend Paid 0 0
Interest Paid (21) (484)
(Increase)/Decrease in unclaimed dividend account 9 6
   
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities :: [C] (241) (17909)
   
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents: [A+B+C] 46 (545 )
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 212 757
   
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 258 212
Notes:   
Cash and Cash Equivalent Includes :-   
Cash in Hand   120  99
Balance with scheduled Banks  
In Current Accounts  138  113 
  Total  258  212

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors 
For  LADHA G.D. & CO. K.S OILS LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 010962C
  
 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
Nitin Paharia  Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
Partner DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237
M. No. 409770    
 Sandeep Kumar 
 Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
  Notes referred to in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Note 1 : Share Capital (Rs. in Lacs)

 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Authorized Capital
90,00,00,000 (March 31, 2014 : 90,00,00,000) Equity shares of RS 1/-Each 9000 9000 

29,85,00,000 (March 31, 2014 : 29,85,00,000) 1% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Share of Rs. 10/- each 29850 29850 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
45,91,80,037( March 31, 2014 :  45,91,80,037) Equity shares of Rs 1/- each, fully paid up 4592  4592 

25,98,82,735 (March 31, 2014:  25,98,82,735) 1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference  
Share @ Rs 10/- each fully paid up and issued against conversion of Loan. 25988  25988 

Total 30580  30580 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Equity Shares   

No. of Equity Shares at the beginning of reporting period 459180037 459180037 

Add: Shares issued during the year -    -

Less: Buy Back during the year  -     -   

No. of Equity Shares at the end of the reporting period 459180037  459180037

(b) Reconciliation of the number of Preference  Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

 As at March As at March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Preference Shares   

No. of preference Shares at the beginning of reporting period  259882735   259882735 

Add: Shares issued during the period  -    -

Less: Redeemed during the period  -   - 

No. of Preference Shares at the end of the reporting period 259882735   259882735 

(c) List of the Equity Shareholders holding more than five percent of shares in the company as at the Balance Sheet date: (in Holding Company)

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

 No. of Shares in % No. of Shares in %

Baring Private Equity Asia III Mauritius Holding(3) Limited 35704070 7.78 35704070  7.78

NSR Direct  Pe Mauritius LLC 40330926 8.78 40330926  8.78

Abhi Ambi Financial Services Ltd -  -    - -

(d) List of the Preference Shareholders holding more than five percent of shares in the company as at the Balance Sheet date: (in Holding 
 Company)

 As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

 No. of Shares in % No. of Shares in %

State Bank of India 65702735 25.28 65702735  25.28 

Axis Bank Limited  55310000 21.28 55310000  21.28 

Central Bank of India 26620000 10.24 26620000  10.24 

Andhra Bank  21880000 8.42 21880000  8.42 

Jammu and Kasmir Bank Limited 20000000 7.70 20000000  7.70 

IDBI Bank Limited 18770000 7.22 18770000  7.22 

State Bank of Mysore 18000000 6.93 18000000  6.93 
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(e) Preferential Issue of Equity Shares

In order to meet the fund requirement of the Company for working 
capital and general corporate purposes, the Company came out with the 
preferential issue of equity shares the Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIB) 
through Qualified Institutional Placement during the period at an issue 
price calculated under SEBI (ICDR) Regulation, 2009 on preferential 
basis duly approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders.

On April 09, 2012 the Company has allotted 33,767,282 Equity Shares  
of Rs. 1/- each at a premium of Rs. 6.25 to the QIB’s and raised 
Rs. 2448.13 lacs.

The entire poceeds received towards the QIP isssue have been utilized 
by the company for the purpose of working capital requirement.

(f) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares:

1 The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value 
 of Rs. 1/- per share
2 Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
3 The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The 
 dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 
 of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
4 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares 
 will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company in 
 proportion to the number of equity shares held by each shareholder, 
 after settlement of all preferential obligations.

(g) Terms of Issue of 1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
 Share (CRPS)

1 The Company has issued 1% CRPS at face value of Rs. 10 each 
 to the Lenders under the terms and conditions of CDR package.

2 The CRPS arising out of conversion of 20% of all term loans 
 (except the Wind Mill Term Loan) aggregating to Rs. 2985 Lacs 
 shall carry a dividend of 1% p.a. Dividend shall be payable at the 
 end of each year from the date of allotment of the CRPS till the date of 
 redemption.

3 The CRPS shall be redeemable after completion of 7 (seven) 
 years from the date of allotment of the same i.e., in FY 2021 with a 
 redemption premium of 64% on Face Value.

4 Payment of redemption premium is subject to the condition that the 
 same being paid out of the cash balance available with the 
 Company and is in excess of Rs. 7500 Lacs.

Note 2 : Reserves and Surplus 
(Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 2452  2452

Add: Capitalisation of Fixed Assets  -     - 

Closing Balance 2452  2452 
Securities Premium Account  
Opening Balance 88636  88636

Add: Premium received during the period  -  -   

Less: Share Issue Exp.  -     - 

Closing Balance 88636 88636
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  
Opening Balance 7304 6681 

Add: Foreign Currency Gain/(Loss) 
during the period (2262)  623

Closing Balance 5042 7304
Surplus (Balance in statement of Profit and Loss) 
Opening Balance (289592) (267462)

Add: Amount Transferred from 
proposed dividend  - 259  

Less : Net Loss for the period (12780) (22389)

Total Profit available for Appropriation (302372) (289592)
Less: Interest on Dividend  -    (0)

Less: Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax  -    (0)

Closing Balance (302372) (289592) 
Total Reserve and Surplus (206242) (191200)

Note 3 : Long Term Borrowings (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Term Loans (Secured)

– From Banks 143489 143117 

– From other parties 9692 9692

Total 153181 152809

Note 4 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Opening Deferred Tax Liabilities 11631 11436

Add: Difference between book 
WDV and WDV as per 
Income Tax Act, 1961 115 194

Less: Reversal of DTL - -

Deferred tax liability (net) 11746 11630

As a matter of prudence and in the absence of virtual certainity the 
company has not recognised Deffered Tax Assets on losses incurred 
during the period.

Note 5:  Other Long Term Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Deferred Government Grant 50 53

Total 50 53

Note 6: Long Term Provisions (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Leave Encashment 12 13

Total 12 13

Note 7 : Short Term Borrowings (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Working Capital Loans (Secured)

From Banks 102826 103622 

Short Term Corporate Loan (Secured) 

From others 9973  9973 

Total 112799 113595 
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Note 8 : Trade Payables (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Micro Small and Medium 
Enterprises 279 279

Other Trade Payables 18213 19214

Total 18492 19493

(a) The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
 2006

Company has send letter to suppliers to confirm whether they are covered 
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 as well as they 
have filed required memorandum with the prescribed authorities. Out of 
the letters send to the parties, some confirmations have been received till 
the date of finalization of Balance Sheet. 
 (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

The Principal amount and 
interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any 
supplier:

Principal 280 261

Interest** 112 96

The amount of interest paid 
by the buyer in terms of 
section 16, of the Micro 
Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 along 
with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year. Nil Nil

The amount of interest due 
and payable for the period 
of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified 
under Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 0 9

The amount of further 
interest remaining due and 
payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues 
as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprise for the 
purpose of disallowance as 
a deductable expenditure 
under section 23 of the 
MSMED Act. 231 126

The amount of interest 
accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year. 343 231 

** During the financial year, no interest have been provided to Micro, 
Small & Medium Enterprises.

Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Interest Payable 6639 6690
Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 30
Unpaid Dividend 91 91 
Security Deposit from Customers and Suppliers 5 5 
Other Payables  
Outstanding Indirect Expenses 746 952
Advances From Customers 3061 2046
Amount Due to Holding Company - -
Overdrawn Bank Balance 4 12 
Statutory Liabilities 1235 1227
Payable for Capital Goods 1255 1340
Other Payables 698 688  
Interest on Dividend 71  71 
Deferred Government Grant 3  3 
Total 13829 13155

Note 10: Short Term Provisions (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Provision for Employee Benefits 0 1

Total 0 1
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Lean Discolosure As on 31.03.15

Type of Loan Original Name Amount Rate of Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
 Name of Lender (In Lacs) Interest

Wind Mill Term Loan Axis Bank 1 1891 14.00% p.a. An exclusive mortgage The entire Outstanding
 IDBI Bank 2 3895 14.75% p.a. and charge over all the principal along with
 SBI Bank 3 3999 13.50% p.a. Wind Mill Assets of the interest etc. has been
 CBI Bank 4 7653 13.00% p.a. Company called off by the Lenders 
      by issuing SARFESAI 
      Notice on dated 26th 
      Dec. 2013
 Rabo Bank 5 3274 LIBOR+2.58  Default in repayment 
    BPS   

Edible Oil Term Loan SBM Bank 6 5850 13.25% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 Axis Bank 1 10231 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal along with
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 4718 13.15 % p.a. fixed assets (both present interest etc. has been
 J&K Bank Bank 8 7044 13.25 % p.a. and future) of the Company called off by the Lenders
 SBI Bank 3 5611 13.5 % p.a. by way of an equitable by issuing SARFESAI
     mortgage, excluding the Notice on dated 4th
     Wind Mill Assets and March 2014.
     Haldia Unit Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of
     an equitable mortgage.
     c) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company.

Haldia Unit Term Loan CBI Bank 4 2086 13.00 % p.a. A first mortagage and The entire Outstanding
 ICICI Bank 9 2649 18.75 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
     Haldia Unit Assets interest etc. has been
      Called off by the
      Lenders by issuing
      SARFESAI Notice on
      dated 4th March 2014.

Working Capital SBI Bank 3 15744 13.5 % p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan Axis Bank 1 9024 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 Andhra Bank 10 8069 13.00 % p.a. Current assets of the interest etc. has been
 ICICI Bank 9 735 18.75 % p.a. Company Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 7723 17.25 % p.a. b) A second pari passu Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 2622 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire SARFESAI Notice on
 CBI Bank 4 6528 13.00 % p.a. fixed assets  (both dated 4th March 2014.
     present and future)
     by way of an equitable
     mortgage including
     Haldiya Unit Assets but
     excluding Wind Mill
     Assets.

Other Secured BOI Bank 12 2769 12.7 % p.a. a) A second pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan     charge over the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets (both interest etc. has been
     present and future) Called off by the
     by way of an equitable Lenders by issuing
     mortgage excluding SARFESAI Notice on
     Haldiya Unit Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and Wind Mill Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     Current assets of the
     Company                       

 LIC Body 9692 10.75% a) First pari passu The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 1   charge on the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets of the interest etc. has been
     Company (Both present Called off by the
     & Future) (Other than Lenders by issuing
     Wind Mill Assets and SARFESAI Notice on
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     Haldiya Plant Assets), dated 4th March 2014.
     with minimum 1.5 time
     security cover during the
     loan term

 SREI Body 9973 36.00% a) First pari passu charge The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 2   on the entire fixed assets principal alongwith
     of the Company (Both interest etc. has been
     present & Future) Called off by the
     (Other than Wind Mill Lenders by issuing
     Assets and Haldiya SARFESAI Notice on
     Plant Assets) dated 4th March 2014.
     b) Subservient charge
     on Wind Turbines with
     aggregate capacity of
     78 MW

Cash Credit Andhra Bank 10 11765 13.00% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 SBI Bank 3 42826 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 ICICI Bank 9 9483 10.00 % p.a. current assets of the interest etc. has been
 Axis Bank 1 12183 13.75 % p.a. Company. Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 15665 20.86 % p.a. (b) A second ranking Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 11700 13.25 % p.a. pari passu charge over SARFESAI Notice on
     the entire fixed assets dated 4th March 2014.
     (both present and future)
     of the Company by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     including the Haldia Unit
     Assets but excluding the
     Wind Mill Assets.

Funded Interest SBI Bank 3 10066 13.5% p.a. (A) For Wind Mill The entire Outstanding
Term Loan-II Axis Bank 1 5159 13.25% p.a. Lenders principal alongwith
 SBM Bank 6 935 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first ranking interest etc. has been
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 563 13.15 % p.a. mortgage and charge Called off by the
 J&K Bank Bank 8 1083 13.25 % p.a. over the Wind Mill Assets Lenders by issuing
 CBI Bank 4 3040 13.00 % p.a. of the Company. SARFESAI Notice on
 ICICI Bank 9 2092 18.75 % p.a. (B) For other than Wind dated 4th March 2014.
 Andhra Bank 10 2764 13.00 % p.a. Mill Lenders
 IDBI Bank 2 4354 17.25 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of
 PNB Bank 11 2078 13.25 % p.a. India
 BOI Bank 12 295 12.7 % p.a. (a) A first pari passu
     charge on the entire
     fixed assets (both
     present and future)
     of the Company, by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     other than Wind Mill
     Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of an
     equitable mortgage.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable
     mortgage, other than Wind
     Mill Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (iii) For all Lenders
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company

Application Money: 1% SBI Bank 3 4928 13.5 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of India The entire Outstanding
Compulsorily Axis Bank 1 4148 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first pari-passu charge principal alongwith
Convertible   SBM Bank 6 1349 13.25 % p.a. on the entire fixed assets interest etc. has been
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Debentures (CCD’s) J&K Bank Bank 8 1516 13.25 % p.a. (both present and future) Called off by the
 CBI Bank 4 1996 13.00 % p.a. of the Company, by way of Lenders by issuing
 ICICI Bank 9 695 18.75 % p.a. an equitable mortgage, other SARFESAI Notice on
 IDBI Bank 2 1713 17.25 % p.a. than the Wind Mill Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and the Haldia Unit Assets.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari-passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable mortgage,
     excluding the Wind Mill
     Assets and the Haldia Unit
     Assets.

Common Security for all the Borrowings (Other than CCD’s)

(A) Personal Guarantee from each promoter to all the lenders

(B) Pledge of  100% Promoters shareholding in the Company, free of all encumbrances, including additional shares acquired by the Promoters on infusion of equity in the 
 Company (If any) 

(C) Pledge of 100% of the following investments held by the Borrower, free of all encumbrances,

Name of the Company No. of Equity/Preference Shares

 As at As at 
 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

1) KS Natural Resources Pte. Ltd 65679859 65679859 

2) KS Oils Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) 566300 566300 

3) PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation (Indonesia) 54600 54600 

4) KS Agri Resources Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) 23815576 23815576 

5) PT Mega Artha Peresada (Indonesia) 4500 4500 

6) PT Biodiesal Jambi (Indonesia) 48600 48600 

7) PT Tunas Bersusun Abadi (Indonesia) 47520 47520 

8) PT Luvang Urip (Indonesia) 3800 3800
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Loan Discolosure As on 31.03.16

Type of Loan Original Name Amount Rate of Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
 Name of Lender (In Lacs) Interest

Wind Mill Term Loan Axis Bank 1 (331) 14.00% p.a. An exclusive mortgage The entire Outstanding
 IDBI Bank 2 408 14.75% p.a. and charge over all the principal along with
 SBI Bank 3 11 13.50% p.a. Wind Mill Assets of the interest etc. has been
 CBI Bank 4 1257 13.00% p.a. Company called off by the Lenders 
      by issuing SARFESAI 
      Notice on dated 26th 
      Dec. 2013
 Rabo Bank 5 3470 LIBOR+2.58  Default in repayment 
    BPS   

Edible Oil Term Loan SBM Bank 6 5850 13.25% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 Axis Bank 1 10231 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal along with
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 4718 13.15 % p.a. fixed assets (both present interest etc. has been
 J&K Bank Bank 8 7044 13.25 % p.a. and future) of the Company called off by the Lenders
 SBI Bank 3 5611 13.5 % p.a. by way of an equitable by issuing SARFESAI
     mortgage, excluding the Notice on dated 4th
     Wind Mill Assets and March 2014.
     Haldia Unit Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of
     an equitable mortgage.
     c) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company.

Haldia Unit Term Loan CBI Bank 4 2086 13.00 % p.a. A first mortagage and The entire Outstanding
 ICICI Bank 9 2649 18.75 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
     Haldia Unit Assets interest etc. has been
      Called off by the
      Lenders by issuing
      SARFESAI Notice on
      dated 4th March 2014.

Working Capital SBI Bank 3 15744 13.5 % p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan Axis Bank 1 9024 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 Andhra Bank 10 8069 13.00 % p.a. Current assets of the interest etc. has been
 ICICI Bank 9 735 18.75 % p.a. Company Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 7723 17.25 % p.a. b) A second pari passu Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 2622 13.25 % p.a. charge over the entire SARFESAI Notice on
 CBI Bank 4 6528 13.00 % p.a. fixed assets  (both dated 4th March 2014.
     present and future)
     by way of an equitable
     mortgage including
     Haldiya Unit Assets but
     excluding Wind Mill
     Assets.

Other Secured BOI Bank 12 2769 12.7 % p.a. a) A second pari passu The entire Outstanding
Term Loan     charge over the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets (both interest etc. has been
     present and future) Called off by the
     by way of an equitable Lenders by issuing
     mortgage excluding SARFESAI Notice on
     Haldiya Unit Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and Wind Mill Assets.
     b) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     Current assets of the
     Company                       

 LIC Body 9692 10.75% a) First pari passu The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 1   charge on the entire principal alongwith
     fixed assets of the interest etc. has been
     Company (Both present Called off by the
     & Future) (Other than Lenders by issuing
     Wind Mill Assets and SARFESAI Notice on
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     Haldiya Plant Assets), dated 4th March 2014.
     with minimum 1.5 time
     security cover during the
     loan term

 SREI Body 9973 36.00% a) First pari passu charge The entire Outstanding
  Corporate 2   on the entire fixed assets principal alongwith
     of the Company (Both interest etc. has been
     present & Future) Called off by the
     (Other than Wind Mill Lenders by issuing
     Assets and Haldiya SARFESAI Notice on
     Plant Assets) dated 4th March 2014.
     b) Subservient charge
     on Wind Turbines with
     aggregate capacity of
     78 MW

Cash Credit Andhra Bank 10 11765 13.00% p.a. a) A first pari passu The entire Outstanding
 SBI Bank 3 42031 13.25% p.a. charge over the entire principal alongwith
 ICICI Bank 9 9483 10.00 % p.a. current assets of the interest etc. has been
 Axis Bank 1 12183 13.75 % p.a. Company. Called off by the
 IDBI Bank 2 15665 20.86 % p.a. (b) A second ranking Lenders by issuing
 PNB Bank 11 11699 13.25 % p.a. pari passu charge over SARFESAI Notice on
     the entire fixed assets dated 4th March 2014.
     (both present and future)
     of the Company by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     including the Haldia Unit
     Assets but excluding the
     Wind Mill Assets.

Funded Interest SBI Bank 3 10066 13.5% p.a. (A) For Wind Mill The entire Outstanding
Term Loan-II Axis Bank 1 5159 13.25% p.a. Lenders principal alongwith
 SBM Bank 6 935 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first ranking interest etc. has been
 Fedral Bank Bank 7 563 13.15 % p.a. mortgage and charge Called off by the
 J&K Bank Bank 8 1083 13.25 % p.a. over the Wind Mill Assets Lenders by issuing
 CBI Bank 4 3040 13.00 % p.a. of the Company. SARFESAI Notice on
 ICICI Bank 9 2092 18.75 % p.a. (B) For other than Wind dated 4th March 2014.
 Andhra Bank 10 2764 13.00 % p.a. Mill Lenders
 IDBI Bank 2 4354 17.25 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of
 PNB Bank 11 2078 13.25 % p.a. India
 BOI Bank 12 295 12.7 % p.a. (a) A first pari passu
     charge on the entire
     fixed assets (both
     present and future)
     of the Company, by way
     of an equitable mortgage,
     other than Wind Mill
     Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (b) A second pari passu
     charge over the Haldia
     Unit Assets, (both present
     and future) by way of an
     equitable mortgage.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable
     mortgage, other than Wind
     Mill Assets and Haldia Unit
     Assets.
     (iii) For all Lenders
     (a) A second pari passu
     charge over the entire
     current assets of the
     Company

Application Money: 1% SBI Bank 3 4928 13.5 % p.a. (i) Other than Bank of India The entire Outstanding
Compulsorily Axis Bank 1 4148 13.25 % p.a. (a) A first pari-passu charge principal alongwith
Convertible   SBM Bank 6 1349 13.25 % p.a. on the entire fixed assets interest etc. has been
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Debentures (CCD’s) J&K Bank Bank 8 1516 13.25 % p.a. (both present and future) Called off by the
 CBI Bank 4 1996 13.00 % p.a. of the Company, by way of Lenders by issuing
 ICICI Bank 9 695 18.75 % p.a. an equitable mortgage, other SARFESAI Notice on
 IDBI Bank 2 1713 17.25 % p.a. than the Wind Mill Assets dated 4th March 2014.
     and the Haldia Unit Assets.
     (ii) For Bank of India
     (a) A second pari-passu
     charge on the entire fixed
     assets (both present and
     future) of the Company, by
     way of an equitable mortgage,
     excluding the Wind Mill
     Assets and the Haldia Unit
     Assets.

Common Security for all the Borrowings (Other than CCD’s)

(A) Personal Guarantee from each promoter to all the lenders

(B) Pledge of  100% Promoters shareholding in the Company, free of all encumbrances, including additional shares acquired by the Promoters on infusion of equity in the 
 Company (If any) 

(C) Pledge of 100% of the following investments held by the Borrower, free of all encumbrances,

Name of the Company No. of Equity/Preference Shares

 As at As at 
 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

1) KS Natural Resources Pte. Ltd 65679859 65679859 

2) KS Oils Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) 566300 566300 

3) PT Buana Mega Sentosa Plantation (Indonesia) 54600 54600 

4) KS Agri Resources Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) 23815576 23815576 

5) PT Mega Artha Peresada (Indonesia) 4500 4500 

6) PT Biodiesal Jambi (Indonesia) 48600 48600 

7) PT Tunas Bersusun Abadi (Indonesia) 47520 47520 

8) PT Luvang Urip (Indonesia) 3800 3800
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Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Capital Advances  
Unsecured, Considered - Good 3300 378
Unsecured, Considered - Doubtful 0 0
Less : Provision for doubtful Advances 0 0
  (A) 3300 378
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered - Good  503 507
Unsecured, Considered - Doubtful 1   1 
Less : Provision for doubtful Advances 1 1 
  (B) 503 507
Loans and Advance to Staff
Unsecured, Considered - Good  34 28
Unsecured, Considered - Doubtful 6 - 
Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 6 - 
  (C) 34 28 
Others
Advance Tax Including TDS Receivable 297 282
  (D) 297 282
Total (A+B+C+D) 4134 1196

Note 13 : Other Non Current Assets (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Sales Tax Refund Receivables - 0
Fixed Deposits (More then 12 Months maturity) 5 5
Total 5 5

Note 14 : Inventories (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Raw Materials (net off value of obsolete stock) 408 5367
Finished Goods (net off value of obsolete stock) 336 6502
Packing Materials 278 334
Stores and Spares 832 1121
By Product 68 67
Total 1922 13392 

Note 15 : Trade Receivables (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Exceeding Six Months from the 
date they become payable
Unsecured considered  - Good 11543 11603
Unsecured, Considered - Doubtful 143373 143373
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 143373 143373
  (A) 11543 11603
Less than Six Months from the 
date they become payable
Others Unsecured considered - Good 1116 1134
  (B) 1116 1134
Total  (A+B) 12660 12737

Note 16 : Cash and Bank Balances (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 120 99

Other Bank Balances
Balances with Banks 138 113
Fixed Deposits (More then 12 Months maturity) 2498 1113
Unclaimed Dividend 21 30
Total 2776 1355

(a) Fixed Deposit under Lien (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Fixed deposits under lien with bank 
for Bank Guarantees, Letter of 
Credit & Others. 14 13 

Note 17: Short Term Loans and Advances (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Advances recoverable in cash 
or kind  
Advances to Suppliers -Good 37565 36620
                                    -Doubtful 1804 1804
Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 1804 1804
  37565 36620
Prepaid Expenses 317 340
Advance to Staff 6 27
Advance for Expenses or others 261 754
  (A) 38148 37741
Balance with Revenue Authorities  
VAT Credit Receivable  1765 1768
Excise and Service tax Refundable 32 34
  (B) 1798 1802
Loans and Advances to Related Parties (Subsidiary)  
Unsecured, Considered Good 
Loan to K.S. SDN BHD.  - -
Total  (A+B) 39946 39543

Note 18: Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lacs)

  As at March As at March 
  31, 2016 31, 2015

Windmills Income and Claim Receivables 20 110
Less : Provision for Doubtful Claims - -
  20 110 
Export Benefit Receivables 8 8
Insurance Claim Receivables 194 194
Interest Refundable/Receivables 19 24
Misc Current Assets 98  98 
Sales Tax Refund Receivables 2180 2180
Total 2519 2614

Notes referred to in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Note 19: Revenue from Operations (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Domestic Sales 
(Including highseas sales) 2859 4939
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Export Sales - 0

Sales against ‘H’ form - 0

Other Operating Revenues 1353 2813

Sub-Total 4212 7752

Less : Excise Duty 1 1

Total 4211 7751

Note 20 : Other Income (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Interest Income 584 127
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset  - 0 
Interest Received on Income Tax Refund 0 10   
Misc Income 924 480
Total 1508 617

Note 21: Cost of Materials Consumed (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Raw Materials  

Opening Stock 5367 6559 
Add: Purchase during the period 347 417 
Less: Closing Stock 408 5367
  5306 1608 
Less: Cost of goods traded 0 1295 
Net cost of material consumed 5306 313 

Note 22: Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work in 
Progress and Stock in Trade  (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Opening Stock  
Finished Goods 6502 6709 
By Products 67 70  
Packing Material  334 362 
Total  (A) 6903 7141 
Closing Stock  
Finished Goods 336 6502 
By Product 68 67 
Packing Material 278 334 
Total (B) 682 6903 
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory (A-B) 6221 238 

Note 23 : Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Salaries and Wages 515 725 

Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 23 30 

Staff Welfare Expenses 141 123 

Total 678 878 

Note 24 : Finance Costs (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Interest Expense 21 484 
Interest on income tax  -    0
Bank Charges 6 6
Foreign Currency Transaction Loss 196 134 
Total 224 624 

Note 25 : Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 3661 5376

Total 3661 5376

 Note 26 : Administrative and Other Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 67 59 
Power and Fuel 759 1600 
Labour Charges 141 413 
Other Menufacturing Expenses 80 753 
Rent 85 114 
Repairs to Buildings 4 8
Repairs to Machinery 82 154 
Insurance 46 62 
Windmills Expenses 244 823 
Windmills Claims written off 0 165 
Agriculture Expenses 6 5 
Rates and Taxes, excluding Taxes on Income 72 198 
Transport Loading and Unloading Charges 0 75 
Packing Expenses 33 28 
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses 0 3
Legal and Professional Fees 97 169 
Other Repairs 53 50 
Wealth Tax 0 1 
Charity and Donation 1 0 
Travelling & Conveyance 124 150 
Audit Fees 14 19 
Misc Expenditure 169 186 
Prior Period Expenses 0 4 
Loss  on sale of Fixed Asset  - 0
Exchange Rate Fluctuaton 0 1096
Impairment loss Recognised 0 4536.11
Total 2078 10669

Note 27 :  Exceptional Items (Rs. In Lacs)

  For the period For the period 
  ended on ended on 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Provision For Bad and Doubtful 
debts and Loans and Advances 0 4736

loss on sale of Windmill Assets  454 6982

Total 454 11718
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Note 28 : Significant Accounting Policies

28.1 The  consolidated financial statements relate to K S Oils 
 Limited (‘the Company’) and its  subsidiaries jointly referred 
 as (“the Group”) have been prepared on the following 
 basis:
 (i) The financial statements of the Company and its 
  subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis 
  by adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
  liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating 
  intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in 
  accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - 
  “Consolidated Financial Statements”..
 (ii) The difference between the costs of investment in the 
  subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition 
  of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial 
  statements as goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be.
 (iii) Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated 
  subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against 
  the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income 
  attributable to shareholders of the Company.
 (iv) Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated 
  subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated 
  Balance Sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of 

  the Company’s shareholders.
 (v) The consolidated financial statements are prepared 
  using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 
  other events in similar circumstances and are presented in 
  the same manner as holding Company separate financial 
  statements, to the extent possible, except as provided 
  under para 28.11) (vi) and 28.12 (f). 
 (vi) The financial of subsidiaries have been prepared in 
  accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
  (FRS) as issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards 
  Council as well as all related interpretations to FRS (“INT 
  FRS”) and the companies Act, Cap 50. The financial 
  statements are prepared under the historical cost 
  convention except where a FRS requires an alternative 
  treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where 
  appropriate in these financial statements.
 (vii) In the current period, Subsidiaries have adopted all the 
  new and revised FRS and Interpretations of FRS (“INT 
  FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for 
  annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The 
  adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does 
  not result in changes to the company’s and company’s 
  accounting policies and has no material effect on the 
  amount reported for the current and prior year.

28.2 The subsidiaries considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement are:

Name of Countries of Status Proportion of Proportion of
Subsidiary Incorporation  Ownership Ownership
Companies   Interest/Voting Interest/Voting
   Power Directly Power Directly
   or through or through
   Subsidiaries (%)  Subsidiaries (%)

   (As on 31 March (As on 31 March
   2016) 2015)

KS Natural Resources Singapore Subsidiary of 100 100
PTE.LTD.  KS Oils Ltd.
(From 23rd November,
2007)

KS Oils SDN. BHD. Malaysia Subsidiary of 70 70
(From 31st March,  KS Natural Resources
2009)  PTE.LTD.

KS Agri Resources Singapore Subsidiary of 100 100
PTE. LTD.  KS Natural Resources 
(From28th May, 2008)  PTE.LTD.

PT BuanaMegaSentosa Indonesia Subsidiary of 90 90
Plantation  KS Natural Resources
(From 22nd November,  PTE.LTD.
2008)

PT. Biodiesel Jambi Indonesia Subsidiary of  90 90
(From 1st Jan, 2010)  KS Natural
  Resources PTE. LTD.

PT. MegaArthaPersada Indonesia Subsidiary of  90 90
(From 1st Jan, 2010)  KS Natural Resources
  PTE. LTD.
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28.3 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported 
amount of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual result and 
estimates are recognized in the period in which results are known / 
materialized. Any revision to an accounting estimate is recognized 
prospectively in the year of revision. 

28.4 Revenue Recognition

 a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant 
  risk and rewards in respect of ownership  of products are 
  transferred to customers.

 b) Export entitlements under the Duty Entitlement Pass Book 
  (“DEPB”) scheme and Other Schemes are recognized as 
  income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of 
  the scheme is established in respect of the exports made 
  and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
  ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

28.5 Inventories

 a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable 
  value on FIFO basis.

 b) Work in Progress is valued at lower of cost of Raw Material 
  or Net Realizable Value.

 c) Inventories comprises of Raw Material, Stores, Spares & 
  Consumables, Work In Progress and Finished Goods. 

 d) Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of 
  conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the 
  inventories to their present location and condition.

28.6 Agricultural Activity

 a) Biological Assets (Living plants of Mustard, Soya or 
  Jatropha)

  i. All costs related to biological assets are recognized as 
   an expense, as and when they are incurred.

  ii. Biological assets are recognized at net realizable value 
   only when the future economic benefits associated 
   with the assets will flow to the Company.

 b) Agricultural Produce (harvested product from biological 
  asset) is recognized at net realizable value.

28.7 Commodity Hedging (Derivatives) 

Pursuant to announcement on accounting for the derivatives issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), in accordance 
with the principles of prudence as enunciated in Accounting Standard-1 
(AS-1), “Disclosures of Accounting policies”, the Company provide for 
losses in respect of all outstanding derivatives contract at the balance 
sheet date by marking them to mark to market. Any net unrealized 
gains arising on such Mark to Market are not recognized as income.

28.8 Certified Emission Reductions 

 a) Self-generated certified emission reductions (C.E.R- also 
  known as carbon credit) expected to accrue to the 
  Company as a result of windmills are recognized as a 
  part of inventory, when it is certified by United Nations 
  Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) 
  and the future economic benefits associated with such 
  CER’s will flow to the Company.

 b) Incidental expenses are charged to profit and loss account.

28.9 Fixed Assets 

 a) Tangible Assets

  i. Tangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition or 
   construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost 
   of fixed assets includes non refundable taxes, duties, 
   freight and other incidental expenses related to 
   the acquisition and installation of the respective 
   assets. Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition or 
   construction of fixed assets which takes substantial 
   period of time to get ready for their intended use is 
   capitalized.

  ii. Advances paid towards the acquisition of the fixed 
   assets outstanding at each balance sheet date shown 
   under the head long term loans and advances.

 b) Intangible Assets

  Intangible Assets recorded at the consideration paid for 
  the acquisition.

28.10 Immature Plantations

Immature plantations are stated at acquisition cost which includes costs 
incurred for field preparation, planting fertilizing and maintenance, 
capitalization of borrowing costs incurred on loans used to finance 
the development of immature plantations and an allocation of other 
indirect cost based on planned hectares. When the plantations are 
mature, the accumulated costs are reclassified to mature plantations. 
In the opinion of the management and as per the industry practice 
followed in its country the plantation development expenditure is 
amortized over twenty one years, upon maturity of the first crop.

28.11 Depreciation/Amortization

 a) Depreciation:

  i. Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided as 
   per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
   Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is calculated on a 
   pro-rata basis from the date of installation / acquisition 
   till the date the assets are sold or disposed

  ii. Depreciation has been charged on SLM basis for:

   1. Windmills

   2. Plant assets (except for oil and refinery plant located 
      at Morena) 

  iii. For all other assets depreciation is provided on WDV  
   basis.

  iv. Excluding land rights and lease hold properties, 
   depreciation on fixed assets of the subsidiary 
   companies is provided on SLM basis over the 
   estimated useful lives of the assets at rates permissible 
   under the applicable local laws

 b) Amortization:

  i. Leasehold assets are amortized over the period of 
   lease. 

  ii. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful 
   lives on a straight line basis,   commencing from the date 
   the asset is available to the Company for its use. 

  iii. Goodwill arising in the course of acquisition is amortized 
   over a period of five years.

  iv. Goodwill arising on Consolidation is tested for 
   impairment.

  v. Computer software is fully amortized in the year of 
   capitalization.

28.12 Foreign Currency Transactions

 a) Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing 
  rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions. 
  Exchange difference arising on foreign exchange 
  transactions settled during the year is recognized in the 
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  profit and loss account.

 b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
  currencies are converted at the closing rate as on Balance 
  Sheet date. The resultant exchange difference is 
  recognized in the profit and loss account.

 c) Exchange rate differences arising on a monetary item 
  that, in substance, forms part of the Company’s net 
  investment in a non-integral foreign operation are 
  accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve 
  in the Company’s financial statements until the disposal of 
  the net investment.

 d) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
  foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate 
  prevalent on the date of the transaction.   

 e) In respect of transactions covered by forward exchange 
  contracts, the difference between the year-end closing rate 
  and rate prevailing on the date of contract is recognized 
  as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward 
  contract is recognized over the life of the contract.

 f) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign 
  operations, revenue items are consolidated at the 
  average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and 
  liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the 
  year. InterCompany transactions such as acquisition of 
  shares of the subsidiaries or loans and advances etc. are 
  taken at the actual rate of the transactions. Any exchange 
  difference arising on consolidation is recognized in the 
  foreign currency translation reserve.

28.13 Operating Leases

Lease payments under operating leases have been recognized as an 
expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the 
lease term.

28.14 Employee Benefits

 a) Short term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an 
expense at the undiscounted amount in profit and 
loss account of the year in which the related service is 
rendered.

 b) Post Employment Benefits

Contribution to Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund are 
charged against revenue. Gratuity liability is paid to 
the Life Insurance Corporation of India through a Trust 
created for the purpose under Group Gratuity Scheme. 
The Premium paid/payable is being charged to Profit and 
Loss Account on accrual basis.

 c) Other Long Term Employees Benefits

Company’s liability towards earned leave is determined 
by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit 
Method. Past services are recognized on a straight line 
basis over the average period until the benefits become 
vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized 
immediately in the profit and loss account as income or 
expenses. Obligation is measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows using a discounted 
rate that is determined by reference to the market yields 
at the balance sheet date on Government Bonds where 
the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are 
consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the 
defined benefit obligation. 

 d) In case of subsidiaries employee benefits including social 
  security contributions have been provided in accordance 
  with the laws of the country in which the Company is 

  operating.

28.15 Investments 

Long-term investments are carried at cost less any permanent 
diminution in value. Current investments are carried at the lower of 
cost or fair value.

28.16 Taxation

Tax expenses are the aggregate of current tax and deferred tax 
charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss for the period. 

 a) Current Tax

The current charge for income tax is calculated in 
accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to 
the Company.

 b) Minimum Alternate Tax [MAT]:

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JB 
of income tax Act,1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax 
paid in excess of normal income tax is recognized as an 
asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there is convincing 
evidence for realization of such asset during the specified 
period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date.

 c) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects 
of timing differences between accounting income and 
taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge 
or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or 
assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can 
be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed 
depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred tax 
assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty 
of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

28.17 Government Grant

 a) Capital Grant

Government grant related to specific fixed assets which 
are depreciable are treated as deferred income which is 
recognized in the profit and loss statement on systematic 
and rational basis over the useful life of the respective 
asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over the 
periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on 
related assets is charged.

 b) Revenue Grant 

Revenue grant related to specific tax exemptions is 
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on a systematic 
and rational basis in the year in which it accrues.

28.18 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition or construction of a qualifying 
asset is capitalized as part of the cost of asset up to the date such 
asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged 
to profit and loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

28.19 Employee Stock Option 

Employee Compensation Cost, if any, arising on account of option 
granted to employees is recognized in the financial statements. It is 
the difference between the intrinsic value and exercise price of options.

28.20 Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is 
any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
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exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets or the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs is 
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced  to its 
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss 
and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet 
date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment 
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the 
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of 
depreciated historical cost.

28.21 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation 
as a result of past events that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is 
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will 
not, require an outflow of resources. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed.

Note 29: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)

   As at As at 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

a) Claims against the Company 
 not acknowledged as debts in 
 respect of  

 i) Excise & custom duty 
  matters under dispute1 108 52

 ii) Commercial Taxes matter 
  under dispute 9601 7575

b) Estimated amount of contracts 
 remaining to be executed on 
 capital account and not 
 provided for (Net of advances) 1653 1653

c) Bank Gurantee 166 143

d) Export Promotion against 
 Capital Goods. 276 276

e) Other Commitment  

 i) Preference Dividend with Taxes 1061 454

 iii) Premium payable on 
  Redemption of Cumulative 
  Redeemable Preference 
  Shares in June 2021 16632 16632

(f) There have been delays in filing of returns and documents with 
 Regulatory Authorities and in some instances documents filed/ 
 required to be filed are not traceable with the Company.  The   liability, 
 if any, in this regard is not ascertainable. 
(g)  Matter in regard to dishonour of cheques issued by the Company 
 during the financial period  is pending. The liability, if any, in this regard 
 is not ascertainable.
(h) As regards cultivation & maintenance of Jatropha plantation by the 
 Company, one of the conditions in FIPB approval has put restrictions 
 on such activity. The liability if any is not ascertainable. The Company 
 has undertaken such activity  in financial year 2008-09 and as stated 
 by the management the company has not extended it further and only 
 maintaining the same.
(i) In respect of remuneration of Rs. 96 lacs paid in financial year 
 2010-11(fifteen months ended as on 30.06.11) which was in excess 
 of ceiling prescribed under schedule XIII of the companies Act, 1956. 
 The Company has not yet obtained approval of the central 
 government, the liability if any is not ascertainable.
Note:
1 Amounts aggregating Rs. 213 Lacs and Rs. 213 Lacs are deposited 
 as appeal advance as on March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017 

 respectively against Excise & Custom matters and Sales tax matters.
2 Payment of redemption permium @ 64% of preference share (face 
 value of Rs. 10/- each)is subject to the condition to that the same 
 is being paid out from  the cash balance is available with Company in 
 excess of Rs. 7500 Lacs.

Note 30 : Search Operation

Search Operation was conducted by Income Tax Department on 
Company and promoters on March11, 2010 and various documents and 
materials were seized by the Department during the search proceedings. 
The Company in order to have early resolution of matter preferred 
application before The Hon’ble Settlement Commission in previous 
year. The Hon’ble Settlement Commission, Mumbai Bench vide its order 
dated 24th June, 2013 has settled all the cases of the Company from FY 
2003-04 to FY 2010-11. However Income tax department filled an appeal 
before hon’ble Bench of High court at Gwalior. The matter is still pending 
for consideration.

Note 31 : Corporate Debt Restructuring:  

a) The restructuring package was approved by CDR empowered group 
 on 20th December, 2011. The Master Restructuring Agreement has 
 also been signed with the lenders participating in the CDR package 
 (‘CDR Lenders’) on 14th March, 2012.

b) b) However the Company has not been able to service its repayment 
 obligations as sanctioned under CDR scheme and have been made 
 delays and defaults in repayment obligations. Such delays and 
 defaults have consequential impact on the financial statements in 
 terms of approved CDR Scheme and the CDR Scheme has been 
 called off by the CDR Empowered Group in a meeting held in July 
 2013.

c) c) Subsequent to above, the Group of Lenders have issued Demand 
 notice U/s 13(2) of the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial 
 Assets and Enforcement of security Interest Act, 2002 for calling of 
 the entire loan amount including interest due thereon for Wind Energy 
 Business and Edible Oil Business dated 26th Dec 2013 & 4th March 
 2014 respectively. By virtue of above notices, the Company has to 
 repay the entire outstanding loan amount to the lenders within 60 
 days from the date of notice however it could not be done.

d) Further, secured lenders has filled the Orignal Application (OA) before 
 Hon’ble Debt Recovery Tribunal - II, New Delhi (DRT) for recovery of 
 the debt including interest of Rs. 4533.53 Lakhs due thereon for 
 Edible Oils Business dated May 08, 2016. 

e) Lenders have sold of 86 windmills of 73.2 MW out of total 92 windmills 
 of 78 MW to different buyers between the periods from January 2015 
 to March 2015 through a separate bidding process for Rs 190.84 Cr. 
 The sales proceed shall be utilised for repayment of outstanding loan 
 liability of windmill division as the fund lying with bankers.

Note 32: Interest on Borrowing and Finance Charges

The Company had been served demand notice under section 13(2) of the 
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement 
of Security Interest Act (SERFAESI), 2002 on dated 26th Dec, 2013 for 
Wind Energy Business and dated 4th March, 2014 for Edible Oil Business 
respectively for payment of outstanding principal amount including interest 
etc. Total outstanding loan up to date of serving of SERFAESI Notice was 
Rs.3535.14 Cr as against Rs. 2886.10 Cr appearing in books of accounts. 
Due to Pending details such as overdue interest, penalties, damages, 
cost etc. as considered by lenders in SARFAESI notices, the Company 
is not able to quantify the Shortfall in interest and financial charges to be 
provided in books of accounts. Further the Company has not provided 
any interest liability for the current period due to non charging of interest 
by majority of banks and non availability of their statements of accounts.

Note 33: Agricultural Activity

During the Financial Year 2008-2009, Government of Madhya Pradesh 
has allotted a land admeasuring 2,000 hectares to the Company on a 
license basis for no consideration, for carrying out the agricultural activity 
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for a period of two years; consequently this has not been recognized as 
a grant. 

Note 34: Varriance in Cost and Sales Margin

There has been fluctuations in average realization of sales price during 
this period, due to market conditions and quality of goods. The quality 
of the inventory has substantially been detoirated over a passage of 
long period and became ufit for consumation. Therefore sol at reliasable 
market fetching nominal amount.

Note 35: Inventory Verification

The management of the Company has done physical verification and 
valuation on this behalf at the end of the year. The valuation of the 
Inventory of Finished Goods, raw material, packing materail and stores 
and spares has been done on net realisable market value. However the 
statutory auditors couldnot carryout or associate for physical verification. 

Note 36: Going Concern

During the financial period the Company has incurred loss of Rs 13018 
Lacs and its net worth has been completely eroded. Paucity of adequate 
working capital has resulted stalled operations and partial running of 
plants on job work basis. Company is in the process of restructuring its 
business; hive off whole or part of core and non-core assets for reducing 
debt burden. Resulting of the same during the year some portion of the 
non core assets (windmill division) have been sold. To deal with the above 
situation, the Company is actively pursuing option of re-organization of 
existing business and/or enters into some strategic alliance or introduces 
any potential investor. This would enable the Company to ease its 
continuing financial burden and ensure smoother running of its plants. 
To implement such strategy the Company and lenders consortium have 
appointed a reputed consultancy firm to look into the possible alternatives 
and suggest plan to be implemented for restructuring including sale of 
whole or part of Edible Oil business, which is in progress. Under the 
circumstances, the financial statements have been prepared on Going 
Concern basis and in the opinion of the management no adjustments are 
considered necessary to the carrying value of its assets and liabilities.

Note 37: Preferential issue of equity shares and warrants:

a) In order to meet  the fund requirement of the Company  for its (i)  
 Expansion of refinery in India along with other allied expenditure 
 (ii) Investment in its overseas subsidiaries for development of 
 Greenfield palm plantations and acquisition of mature palm plantations 
 and / or CPO mills, all in Indonesia, the Company has come out with 

 preferential allotment of Equity Shares and Warrants to the promoters 
 & other foreign Investors in July, 2009 at an issue price calculated 
 under SEBI (DIP) Guidelines, 2000 on preferential basis duly 
 approved by Shareholders and Board of Directors of the 
 Company.)

b) The entire proceeds received towards the warrants have been utilized 
 for the purpose of expansion of refinery in India along with other 
 allied expenditure and for investment in its subsidiaries, except 
 Rs.5065 Lacs. Such unutilized funds of preferential issue which 
 were kept in FD’s with the banks in previous periods, except for FD’s 
 aggregating Rs. 1117 lacs, balance amount of Rs 3948 lacs have been 
 utilized for the working capital of the company instead of for expansion 
 work in foreign business, which was the primary object of raising 
 funds.

Note 38: Non Transfer of Dividends:

Company recommended dividend in FY2009-10 of Rs  858 lacs (Rs 0.18 
per share) (inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax of Rs 122 lacs). Out of 
the dividend so declared, an amount of Rs 90 lacs remains unpaid.

Due to severe liquidity crunch,the promoters opted to waiveoff  the receipt 
of  their part of dividend. For the same reasons the company has not 
transferred un- paid dividend to a separate Bank account in terms of the 
requirement of Sec. 124 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 39: AGM and Results:

The Company has made an application to the Registrar of Companies 
(ROC) vide letter dated August 24, 2016 for extension of holding 30th 
AGM of the company for further 3 months according to the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 the Company was required to hold the AGM 
within the six months from the close of financial year but due to the 
financial crunch, scarcity of manpower and consolidation of the foreign 
subsidiaries accounts, the company has not finanlised and get audited 
the accounts within the stipulated time.

Note 40 : Derivatives
a) Derivative Instruments
There are no yearend foreign currency exposure that have been hedged 
by derivative instrument

b) The yearend foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged 
by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:



Annual Report 2015-2016 83

i) Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following:

 As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Export of Goods Nil Nil Nil Nil

Other Loan Receivables (MYR) Nil Nil 242700 45

ii)   Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following:

 As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Import of Goods and Service ($) 22109 13 22109 13

Interest Payable ($) 538595 324 342195 324

Loans Payable ($) 5231250 3470 5231250 3144

iii)   Bank Balances in foreign Currency 

 As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Amount  Amount 
 in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) in Foreign (Rs. in Lacs) 
 Currency  Currency

Bank Balance (USD) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil Nil Nil

@denotes amount less than Rs. 50,000

Note 41 : Government Grants: 

a) Non Monetary (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars For the For the  
  period ended period ended 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Depreciation on the assets 
funded by Government Grant 2 7

Income recognized from 
Government Grants 2 7

b) Monetary (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars For the For the  
  period ended period ended 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Income recognized from 
Government Grants - 199

Note 42: Auditors Remuneration (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars For the For the  
  period ended period ended 
  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Audit Fees (including Limited 
Review and Consolidation fees) 6 6 

Certification Work  5     5 

Reimbursement of Expenses  @   @ 

Service Tax on the Fees and Certification 2  1

@denotes amount less than Rs. 50,000



Annual Report 2015-2016 84

N
ot

e 
43

  S
eg

m
en

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 A

S
-1

7,
 S

eg
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
, S

eg
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ar
e 

as
 u

nd
er

:

(R
s.

 in
 L

ac
s)

 
Ed

ib
ile

 O
il 

Po
w

er
 

O
th

er
s 

U
na

llo
ca

bl
e 

El
im

in
at

io
n 

To
ta

l

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5 

20
15

-1
6 

20
14

-1
5

S
eg

m
en

t R
ev

en
ue

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

E
xt

er
na

l T
ur

no
ve

r 
52

7 
13

71
 

56
5 

30
63

 
 - 

- 
17

67
 

50
5 

 - 
   

 - 
   

10
92

 
49

39

In
te

r S
eg

m
en

t T
ur

no
ve

r 
 

 
- 

36
2 

 
 

 
0 

0 
(3

62
) 

 - 
   

 0
   

G
ro

ss
 T

ur
no

ve
r 

52
7 

13
71

  
56

5 
34

25
  

 - 
   

 - 
   

 1
76

7 
 

 5
05

  
 - 

 (3
62

) 
28

59
 

49
39

 

Le
ss

: E
xc

is
e 

du
ty

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
1 

N
et

 T
ur

no
ve

r 
52

6 
 

13
71

 
56

5 
 

34
25

  
 - 

   
 - 

   
 1

76
7 

 
 5

05
  

 - 
 (3

62
) 

28
58

 
49

39
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
eg

m
en

t R
es

ul
t B

ef
or

e 
In

te
re

st
 a

nd
 T

ax
es

 
(1

59
13

) 
(1

10
79

) 
(3

87
) 

(6
00

9)
  

(7
) 

(8
) 

(2
68

5)
 

(4
94

9)
 

 - 
(3

40
) 

(1
36

22
) 

(2
23

85
)

Le
ss

:  
In

te
re

st
 E

xp
en

se
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

21
 

48
4 

 
0 

 
0 

21
  

48
4 

A
dd

: I
nt

er
es

t I
nc

om
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

58
4 

12
7 

 
15

6 
 

0 
73

9 
 

12
7 

P
ro

fit
 b

ef
or

e 
ta

x 
 (1

59
13

) 
 (1

10
79

) 
 (3

87
) 

 (6
00

9)
  

 (7
) 

 (8
) 

 3
24

7 
 (5

30
6)

 
 

 
 (1

29
04

) 
 (2

24
02

)

C
ur

re
nt

 ta
x 

 
 

 
 

 
 

-  
 3

 
 

 
 - 

 
3

D
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

15
  

 1
94

 
 

 
 1

15
  

19
4 

P
ro

fit
 a

fte
r t

ax
 

 (1
59

13
) 

 (1
10

79
) 

 (3
87

) 
 (6

00
9)

  
 (7

) 
 (8

) 
 (3

13
3)

 
 (5

50
3)

 
 - 

   
 - 

   
 (1

30
18

) 
 (2

26
00

)

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
th

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
eg

m
en

t A
ss

et
s 

11
88

97
 

13
07

30
  

20
32

 
50

17
  

2 
3 

34
93

6 
37

39
7 

 
(2

21
32

) 
(2

34
62

) 
13

37
35

 
14

96
84

S
eg

m
en

t L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

29
46

03
  

29
59

53
  

36
64

 
30

67
  

 - 
   

 - 
   

11
95

7 
13

01
4 

 
(1

15
) 

(1
28

5)
 

31
01

08
  

31
07

48
 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-  
-  

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
 - 

   
- 

- 
-  

- 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n/
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

34
07

  
37

11
 

25
3 

16
29

  
1 

3 
- 

33
 

 
 

36
61

  
53

76
 

N
on

 c
as

h 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

th
er

 
th

an
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

45
4 

11
71

8 
 

 
 

45
4 

11
71

8 

G
oo

dw
ill 

on
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

@
de

no
te

s 
am

ou
nt

 le
ss

 th
en

 R
s.

 5
0,

00
0



Annual Report 2015-2016 85

Disclosures:

1. Primary Segment

a) Business Segment:

Segment identified by the Company comprises as under:

 i. Edible oil: Extraction of seed, Refined oil, Vanaspati oil, Income 
  from commodity hedging transaction (Derivatives), High sea sales 
  and local trading.
 ii. Power Generation: Windmill.
 iii. Others: Agriculture income.

By products under each segment have been included under the 
respective segment.
b) Segment Revenue & Expenses:
Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis 
of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and 
Expenses which relate to enterprises as a whole and are not allocable to 
a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.   
c) Segment Assets and Liabilities:
Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in 
respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets 
and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis 
have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.
d) Inter segment Transfers:
Segment revenue, segment Expenses and segment results include 
transfer between business segments, such transfers are eliminated in 
consolidation.
e) Accounting Policies:
The accounting policies consistently used in the Preparation of the 
financial statements are also applied to item of revenue and expenditure 
in individual segments
2. Secondary Segment: Geographical Segment
The following is the distribution of Company’s sale by geographical 
market regardless of where the goods were produced:

 (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

India  1092 100790

Rest of the World 1767 652

Total  2859 101442

Note 44: Employee Benefits  Plans

i) Defined Contribution Plan (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

(1) Provident Fund 19 25

(2) State defined contribution plans  

 - Employers’ Contribution to 
 Employees’ State   Insurance 3 3

Total  22 28

ii) Defined Benefit Plan:  
 – Gratuity (Funded)  
 – Leave Encashment (Non funded)

In terms of the guidance on implementing the revised AS 15, issued by 
the Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, the Gratuity trust set up by the Company is treated as defined 
benefit plan since the Company has to meet the shortfall, if any. However, 

at the periodend, no shortfall remains unprovided for.
Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees who have earned 
leaves, during the employment and/or on separation as per the 
Company’s policy.
Valuations in respect of Gratuity and Leave encashment, as at the 
Balance Sheet date, based on the following assumptions:
– The disclosures of Gratuity are as under:
 (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular For the  For the  
   year ended year ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

1. Assumptions

Discount Rate 8% 8%

Salary Escalation 6% 5%

2. Table showing changes in 
 present value of obligations

Present value of obligations as at 
beginning of period 56 87

Interest cost  4 5

Current service cost 8 9 

Benefits paid 17 46 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 6 1

Present value of obligations as at 
end of period 57 56 

3. Table showing changes in 
 the fair  value of plan assets

Fair value plan assets at beginning 
of period  130 162 

Expected return on plan assets 11 13 

Contributions 0 5 

Benefits paid 17 46 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 0 (3)

Fair value of plan assets at the 
end of period 124 130 

4. Table showing fair value of 
 plan assets

Fair value plan assets at beginning 
of year 130 162 

Actual return on plan assets  11 13 

Contributions 0 5 

Benefits paid 17 46

Fair value of plan assets at the 
end of period 124 130

Funded status 68 75

Excess of actual over estimated 
return on plan assets                                               Nil Nil

5. Actuarial Gain/Loss 
 recognized

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the 
period –Obligations 6 4

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the 
period –plan assets 0 @

Total (gain)/loss for the period 7  4
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Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized 
in the period 7 4

6. The amounts to be recognized 
in the balance sheet and 
statements of  profit and loss

Present value of obligations as at 
the end of period 57 56

Fair value of plan assets as at the 
end of the period 124 130 

Funded status 68 75

Net assets (liability) recognized in 
balance sheet 68 75 

7. Expenses recognized in 
 statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 8 9 

Interest cost 4 5 

Expected return on plan assets 11 13

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized 
in the period 7 4

Expenses recognized in statement 
of profit and loss 8 5

 -Valuation of liability for Leave encashment has been carried out by 
an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date, based on the 
following assumptions:
 (Rs. In Lacs)

Particular For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Discount Rate (Per annum) 8% 8%

Rate of increase in Compensation 
levels   6% 5%

Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA

Expected Avg. remaining working 
lives of employees in no. of periods  18

1. Changes in present Value 
 of Obligation

Present value of Obligation as at 
beginning of the period 13 16

 Interest Cost 1  1

 Past Service Cost 0  0 

Current Service Cost 1 2

Contributions by Plan participants 0  0 

Curtailment Cost/(Credit) 0  0 

Settlement Cost/(Credit) 0  0 

Benefits Paid 0 1

Actuarial(Gains)/Loss (3) (5)

Present value of Obligation 
as at the end of the period 12 13 

2. Amounts recognized in the 
 Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation as at 
the end of the period 12 13

 Fair value of Plan Assets as at 
the end of the period NA NA

(Asset)/ Liability recognized in 
the Balance Sheet 12 13

3. Expenses recognized in the 
 Profit and Loss Account

Current Service Cost 1 2 

Past Service Cost 0  0 

Interest Cost 1 1 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 0 0 

Curtailment Cost/(Credit) 0  0 

Settlement Cost/(Credit) 0  0 

Net Actuarial(Gain)/Loss (3) (5)

Employees’ Contribution 0  0 

Total Expenses recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss (1) (2)

Amount of Current and Previous four years as follow

 (Rs. In Lacs)

 March March March Dec. June 
 31,2016 31,2015 31,2014 31,2012 30,2011

Gratuity      
Defined Benefit 
Obligation  57 58 87 85 126
Plan Assets 124 130 162 151 140
Surplus or Deficit (68) (72) (75) (66) (14)
Experience adjustment in Plan Liability
Experience adjustment in Plan Assets

Note 45 : Related Party Disclosures

a) Transactions with Related Parties as specified under Accounting 
 Standard-18

Enterprises over which Key K.S. Food Products
Managerial Personnel exercises K.S Enterprises 
significant influence Ramesh Chand Sourabh Kumar HUF
 Sourabh Garg HUF
 Neiil Education Pvt. Ltd.
 KS Oils Ltd. Group Gratuity Scheme
 Garg  Family Trust
Other Related parties with whom transactions have taken place 
during the year
Key Managerial Personnel on the Board
Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Davesh Agarwal Whole time Director
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Sheela Devi Garg Spouse of the CMD
Mr. Sourabh Garg Son of CMD
Mrs. Meeta Garg Spouse of Son (Mr. Sourabh Garg)
Mr. Shyam Kumar Garg Brother of CMD
Mr. Om Prakash Garg Brother of CMD
Mr. Mohan Lal Garg Brother of CMD
Other Related parties/ Affiliate Companies
Mr. Rosaline Ukim Director in Subsidiary
Mr. Shim Shuk Han Director in Subsidiary
Mr. Widodo Nurly Sumady Director in Subsidiary
Mr. Baey Chang Song Director in Subsidiary
Mr. Jeffrey Lachmandas Mahtani Commissioner in Subsidiary
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b) Particulars of Related Party Transactions

Particulars Volume of Volume of As at As at As at As at 
 transaction transaction March 31, March 31 March 31 March 31 
 during the during the 2016 O/S 2015 O/S 2016 O/S 2015 O/S 
 period ended period ended Receivable Receivable Payable Payable 
 March March 
 31, 2016 31, 2015

Due from/ (Due to) Others party        

K.S. Enterprises   41 920 879 920     

K.S. Food Products  @ 2455 2455 2455

M. L. Enterprises  - - 1 1

  - 3375 3336 3375     

Remuneration*      

Key Management Personnel       

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg  24  24    26 16

Mr. Davesh Agarwal  24 24    31 26

Total  48 48    57 42

Rent Paid        

Key Management Personnel        

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg  7 7    56 49

Total  7 7 - - 56 49

        

Other Related Parties        

Garg Family Trust  3 3     -     -   

Total   3  3     -     -   

        

Security Deposit Given        

Key Management Personnel        

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg  - -     4   4    -   

@denotes amount less than Rs. 50,000.

* Excluding contribution to gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment as seprate figure cannot be quantified

Entire Loan Outstanding as on balance sheet date is secured by Personal Guarantee from Mr. Ramesh Chandra Garag and Mr. Sourabh Garg 
to all the lenders

Note 46: Operating Lease (Rs. In Lacs)

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases 
are as under:

   As at March  As at March 
   31, 2015 31, 2014

Rent payable for 1 year 31 33

Rent payable for 1 to 5 years 14 3

Rent payable for 5 years and above - -

Note: Rental cost is annually escalated between seven and twenty 
percentage. Annual escalation for every transaction is considered from 
the effective date of rent agreement.  Except in case of some agreement 
where the escalation is effective after the execution of the rent agreement.

On expiration of the above stated lease agreements, the same can be 
renewed on the basis of mutual consent of the lessor and lessee. 

Additional amount of service tax will be paid on the above stated lease 
rental amount according to the rates applicable at the time of respective 
lease rental payments. 

Total lease rental cost recognized in the financial statement is of Rs 85 
Lacs (previous period Rs. 114 Lacs). 

Note 47 : Earning Per Share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net 
profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any extra- ordinary / 
exceptional item. The numbers of shares in computing basic earnings 
per share is the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during 
the period.  The numbers of shares used in computing diluted earnings 
per share comprises weighted averages shares considered for deriving 
basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted 
for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair 
value (i.e. the average market value of outstanding shares). Statement 
showing the computation of EPS is as under:
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   For the  For the  
   period ended period ended 
   March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Loss after tax (12780) (22389)
Less: Preference Dividend 260 260
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax 44 44 
Less: Interest on Dividend  - - 
Less : Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax  - - 
Loss Available for Equity Share Holders (13084) (22693)
Weighted average number of 
equity shares for Basic/Diluted EPS  
(no. of shares in Lacs) 4592 4592 
Basic/Diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (2.85) (4.94)
Face value of share (in rupees) 1 1 

Note 48: Discontinuing Operation as per AS-24
Pursuant to the note 32 (a) & (b), The Company proposes to sell whole or 
part of the Edible Oil Assets & Windmill Energy Assets of the Company to 
a buyer identify in accordance with the sale process to be undertaken by 
State Bank of India (acting on behalf of lenders) to repay the outstanding 
debt including interest of the Company. The sale of the above assets are 
subject to approval of shareholders u/s 293 (1)(a) of the Companies Act, 
1956 through postal Ballot.

In order to above, an ordinary resolution has been passed by the 
shareholders of the Company u/s 293 (1)(a)  on dated 7th September , 
2013 through postal ballot.

A) In accordance with the disclosure requirement of Accounting Standard 
 - 24 “Discontinuing Operations”, following disclosures are made as 
 under for windmill Assets:

 a) Company had several windmills in the various states of the country 
  through which it generates power.

 b) Operations of windmill activity are shown as a part of Business 
  Segment in accordance with the requirement of AS – 17 “Segment 
  Reporting”.

 c) Assets related Windmill Energy Business is required to be sold off 
  on priority basis. 

 d) Carrying amount of fixed assets is shown under note no- 11 “Fixed 
  assets” and for assets and liabilities refer note no. 43 “Segment 
  reporting” under consolidated financial statement.

 e) Revenue and Expenditure in respect to ordinary activities 
  attributable to Windmill Energy Business are shown in note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial Statement.

B) In accordance with the disclosure requirement of Accounting Standard 
  - 24 “Discontinuing Operations”, following disclosures are made as 
  under for Edible Oil Business:

 a) Company has five manufacturing units in the various states of the 
  country through which it manufacture edible oil.

 b) Operations of Edible Oil activity are shown as a part of Business 
  Segment in accordance with the requirement of AS – 17 “Segment 
  Reporting”.

 c) Assets related Edible oil Business is required to be sold off on 
  priority basis. 

 d) Carrying amount of fixed assets is shown under note no- 11 “Fixed 
  assets” and for assets and liabilities refer note no. 43 “Segment 
  reporting” under consolidated financial statement.

 e) Revenue and Expenditure in respect to ordinary activities 
  attributable to Edible Oil Business are shown in note no. 43 
  “Segment reporting” under consolidated financial Statement.

Note 49: Value of Raw Material, Stores and Spares Consumed

 For the period ended on For the period ended on 
 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

  Consumption % of Total Consumption % of Total 
  (in Lacs) Consumption (in Lacs) Consumption

1) Value of Raw Material 
 Consumed

 Total Consumption  -     - - -

      Imported  -     -    - -

      Indigenous  -     -    - -

2) Value of Stores and Spares Consumed

Total Consumption 67 100 56 100

     Imported  -     -     -     -   

     Indigenous 67 100 56 100

Note 50: Particulars of Raw Material Consumption, Production, Sale and Stock

Description For the period ended For the period ended 
 as on March 31, 2016 as on March 31, 2015

Opening Stock Unit Qty Value in Qty Value in 
   Rs. (lacs)  Rs. (lacs)

Oil M.T. 11103 5858 11122 6065

DOC M.T. 4022 582 4022 582

Vanaspati Ghee M.T. 107 62 107 62

By Product/Packing Material/Trading 
Goods   401  432
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Production     

Oil M.T.  -     -    - -

DOC M.T.  -     -    - -

Vanaspati Ghee M.T.  -     -    - -

Power KWH 17963430  - 102398049 -

Cost of Material Consumed

Mustard Seed M.T.  - - - -

Soya been Seed M.T.  -     -    - -

Oil M.T.  435  326 15 23

DOC M.T. -  - - -

Crude Oil for Refinery M.T. - - - -

Crude Oil for Vanaspati M.T. - - - -

Tin Plate M.T. -  - -

Oil Cake M.T. - - - -

Packing Material/Other Expenses   4980  1584

HDPE     -

   5306  1608

Sale     

Oil M.T. 7179 415 34 25

DOC M.T. 4022 51 0 0

Vanaspati Ghee M.T. 107 1 0 0

Power KWH 17963430 565 94852762 3063

By Product/Packing Material/Trading 
Goods   59  1345

Closing Stock     

Oil M.T. 4359 336 11103 5858

DOC M.T. 0 0 4022 582

Vanaspati Ghee M.T. 0 0 107 62

By Product/Packing Material/Trading 
Goods   346  401

Note 51: CIF/CFR Value of Imports (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the For the 
   period ended period ended 
   on March 31, 2016 on Mar.31, 2015

Raw Materials/ Traded Goods - - 

Stores & Spares - - 

Capital goods - - 

Note 52: Earnings in Foreign Currency (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the For the 
   period ended period ended 
   on March 31, 2016 on Mar.31, 2015

On export of goods calculated  
on FOB basis - -

Interest on loan to subsidiaries - 

Note 53: Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the For the 
   period ended period ended 
   on March 31, 2016 on Mar.31, 2015

Interest - -

Professional fees - -

Others - -

Note 54: Dividend to NRI / OCB (Rs. In Lacs)

   For the For the 
   period ended period ended 
   on March 31, 2016 on Mar.31, 2015

Dividend - -

Number of Shareholders 916 916

Total Number of Shares (In No.) 105678891 105678891
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Note 55: Comparatives Figures

1) The current financial statements is prepared for twelve months period ended March 31, 2016, hence figures for the same are not comparable with 
 that of previous financial statements, which was prepared for the twelfth months period ended March 31, 2015.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of  Board of Directors

For LADHA G.D. & CO. K. S. OILS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 010962C

 Ramesh Chand Garg Davesh Agarwal
 Managing Director Executive Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00027025 DIN: 01102237

Nitin Paharia Sandeep Kumar
Partner Company Secretary
M. No. 409770

Place: New Delhi
Date: October 14, 2016
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K.S. OILS LIMITED
CIN: L15141MP1985PLC003171

Reg. Off: Jiwaji Ganj, Morena, MP- 476001
Tel: 91-7532-300000 : Fax: +91-7532-405060

E-mail : investors@ksoils.com : Website : www.ksoils.com

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Thirtieth Annual 
General Meeting of K.S. Oils Limited (CIN - 
L15141MP1985PLC003171) will be held on Monday, 
14th day of November, 2016 at 04.00 P.M. at Factory 
Office, A. B. Road, Industrial Area, Morena - 476 001, 
Madhya Pradesh to transact the Following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
 Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial 
 Statements) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
 2016 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
 Auditors thereon.
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Davesh Agarwal 
 (DIN: 01102237), who retires by rotation and, being 
 eligible, seeks re-appointment.
3. To ratify the appointment of Auditors and to fix 
 their remuneration and  to pass, with or without 
 modification(s),the following resolution as an 
 Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 
thereunder, as amended from time to time and pursuant 
to the recommendations of the audit committee of the 
Board of Directors, the appointment  of M/s Ladha G. 
D. & Co., Chartered Accountant, Gwalior, (ICAI Firm 
Registration No.010962C), as auditors of the Company 
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 31st 
AGM, be and is hereby ratified at such remuneration 
and reimbursements of out of pocket expenses for the 
purpose of audit as may be mutually agreed between 
the Board of Directors of the Company, as may be 
determined by the Audit Committee.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To appoint Mr. Prakash Chand (DIN : 06435360) as 
 an Independent Director and if thought fit, to pass, 
 with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
 as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013(Act) and Rules 
framed thereunder, read with Schedule IV of the Act, 
as amended from time to time Mr. Prakash Chand 
(DIN : 06435360), who was appointed as an additional 
independent director pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 
of Association of the Company and who holds office 
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in 
respect of whom the Company has received notice in 
writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director 
(Non-Executive) of the Company, not liable to retire 
by rotation and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years with effect from May 27, 2016.”

5. To appoint  Mrs. Preeti (DIN: 07512783) as an 
 Independent Director and if thought fit, to pass, with 
 or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
 an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013(Act) 
and Rules framed thereunder, read with Schedule IV 
of the Act, as amended from time to time Mrs. Preeti 
(DIN: 07512783), who was appointed as an additional 
independent director pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 
of Association of the Company and who holds office 
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in 
respect of whom the Company has received notice in 
writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, 
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Women Director (Non-Executive) of the Company, 
not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for 
a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 
May 27, 2016.”

6. To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the 
 Financial Year ending March 31, 2017 and in this 
 regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with 
 or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
 an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148(3) and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, 
the remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- (Rupees Twenty 
Thousand Only), (excluding out-of-pocket, travelling 
and living expenses incurred in connection with 
the audit, if any), as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors 
at its meeting held on October 14, 2016 to M/s S. K. & 
Saxena & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No. 100126) as Cost Auditors to conduct the Audit for 
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the financial year ending March 31, 2017, be and is 
hereby ratified and confirmed.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For K. S. OILS LIMITED

Sd/-
Sandeep Kumar

Company Secretary

New Delhi, October 14, 2016
Registered Office:
Jiwaji Ganj, Morena
Madhya Pradesh – 476 001

NOTES
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
 IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
 AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF 
 AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF 
 THE COMPANY. The instrument appointing Proxy as 
 per the format included in the Notice should be 
 returned to the Registered Office of the Company 
 not less than 48 Hours before the time for holding 
 the Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited 
 companies, societies, partnership firms, etc. must 
 be supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as 
 applicable, issued by the Member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as 
a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for 
any other person or member.

2. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to 
 Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
 in respect of the special businesses set out above 
 and details as required under SEBI (Listing 
 Obligation and Disclosure Requirements  
 Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) 
 in respect of Directors seeking appointment/ 
 reappointment at this Annual General Meeting are 
 annexed hereto.
3. Corporate Members intending to send their 
 authorized representative are requested to send a 
 duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution 
 pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
 authorizing their representative to attend and vote at 
 the meeting.
4. Members/proxies should bring their attendance slip 
 duly filled for attending the meeting alongwith their 
 copy of Notice. 
5. All Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and 
 the accompanying statements are open for 
 inspection by the Members at the Registered Office 

 of the Company on all working days between 
 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. except Saturdays, prior to 
 date of AGM.
6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only 
 such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
 will be entitled to vote.
7. Members who wish to obtain any information on the 
 accounts of operations of the Company or any other 
 matter contained in the notice are requested to 
 send their queries to the Company Secretary of the 
 Company at the Registered Office of the Company at 
 least 7 (Seven) days before the meeting so that 
 relevant information can be kept ready at the 
 Meeting. 
8. The amount of dividend remaining unpaid or 
 unclaimed for a period of seven years from the 
 due date is required to be transferred to the Investor 
 Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted 
 by the Central Government. The Company had, 
 accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed 
 dividend amount pertaining to dividend for the 
 financial year 2007-08 to the IEPF within the 
 stipulated time period during the year.
9. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent 
 Account Number (PAN) for participating in the 
 securities market, deletion of name of deceased 
 holder, transmission/ transposition of shares. 
 Members are requested to submit the PAN details 
 to their Depository Participant in case of holdings in 
 dematerialized form and to the Company’s Registrars 
 and Transfer Agents, mentioning their correct 
 reference folio number in case of holdings in physical 
 form.
10. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 
 2015-16 is being sent by electronic mode to those 
 members whose e-mail addresses are registered 
 with the Company/depositories, unless any 
 member has requested for a physical copy of the 
 same. For members, who have not registered their 
 e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by 
 the permitted mode. Members may note that the 
 Notice and the Annual Report 2015-16 is also 
 available on the Company’s website viz 
 www.ksoils.com.
11. Members holding shares in physical form are 
 requested to intimate changes pertaining to their 
 bank account details, mandates, nominations, 
 change of address, e-mail address etc., if any, to the 
 Company or Company’s Registrar and Share 
 Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in 
 electronic form must intimate the changes, if any, to 
 their respective Depository Participants.
12. Members, who have not registered their e-mail 
 addresses so far, are requested to register their 
 e-mail address for receiving all communication 
 including Annual Report,Notices, Circulars, etc. from 
 the Company electronically.
13. The route map showing direction to reach the venue 
 of the Thirtieth AGM is annexed.
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14. The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the 
 Company will be closed from Tuesday, November  08, 
 2016 to Monday, November 14, 2016, both days 
 inclusive.
15. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to 
 inform the Company’s Registrars and Transfer 
 Agents, immediately of:
 a. Change in their residential status on return to 
  India for permanent settlement.
 b. Particulars of their bank account maintained 
  in India with complete name, branch, account 
  type, account number and address of the bank 
  with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.
16. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
 Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
 (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
 the Company is pleased to provide members facility 
 to exercise their right to vote at the 30th Annual 
 General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the 
 business may be transacted through e-voting 
 Services provided by Central Depository Services 
 (INDIA) Limited (CDSL). The facility for voting through 
 ballot or polling paper shall also be made available 
 at the meeting and members attending the meeting 
 who have not already cast their vote by remote 
 e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 
 meeting. However, the members who have already 
 casted their vote through remote e-voting may attend 
 the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
 again at the Annual General Meeting.
 The shareholders can opt for only one mode of 
 voting i.e. remote e-voting or physical polling at the 
 meeting. In case of voting by both the modes, vote 
 cast through remote e-voting will be considered final 
 and voting through polling paper will not be 
 considered.
A. The instructions for shareholders voting 
 electronically are as under:
 (i) The voting period begins on Friday, November 
  11, 2016 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, 
  November   13, 2016 at 05:00 P.M. During this 
  period shareholders’ of the Company, holding 
  shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
  form, as on the cut-off date i.e. November 07, 
  2016, may cast their vote electronically. The 
  e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for 
  voting thereafter.
 (ii) The voting rights of the members shall be in 
  proportion to the paid-up value of their shares 
  in the equity share capital of the Company as 
  on the cut-off date. A person whose name is 
  recorded in the Register of members or in 
  the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained 
  by the  Depositories as on the cut-off date only 
  shall be entitled to avail the facility for remote 
  e-voting as well as voting at the meeting.
 (iii) The Shareholders who have cast their vote by 

  remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also 
  attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to 
  cast their vote again.
 (iv) The shareholders should log on to the 
  e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
 (v) Click on Shareholders.
 (vi) Now Enter your User ID
  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
   Digits Client ID, 
  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form 
   should enter Folio Number registered with 
   the Company.
 (vii) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed 
  and Click on Login.
 (viii) If you are holding shares in demat form and 
  had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
  voted on an earlier voting of any company, then 
  your existing password is to be used. 
 (ix) If you are a first time user follow the steps given 
  below:

PAN For Members holding shares in Demat 
 Form and Physical Form
 Enter  your  10  digit  alpha-numeric  
 *PAN  issued  by  Income  Tax 
 Department (Applicable for both demat 
 shareholders as well as physical 
 shareholders)

 ♦ Members   who   have   not   updated   
  their   PAN   with   the Company/  
  Depository Participant are requested 
  to use the first two letters of their name 
  and the 8 digits of the sequence 
  number in the PAN field.

 ♦ In case the sequence number is less 
  than 8 digits enter the applicable 
  number of 0’s before the number after 
  the first two characters of the name in 
  CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 
  Ramesh    Kumar    with    sequence    
  number    1    then    enter RA00000001 
  in the PAN field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date 
Bank of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
Details or as recorded in your demat account or in 
Date of the company records in order to login.

Birth (DOB) ♦  If  both  the  details  are  not  recorded  
  with  the  depository  or company  
  please  enter  the  member  id  /  folio  
  number  in  the Dividend Bank details 
  field as mentioned in instruction (iii).
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 (x) After entering these details appropriately, click 
  on “SUBMIT” tab.
 (xi) Members holding shares in physical form will 
  then directly reach the Company selection 
  screen. However, members holding shares in 
  demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 
  menu wherein they are required to mandatory 
  enter their login password in the new password 
  field. Kindly note that this password is to 
  be also used by the demat holders for voting 
  for resolutions of any other company on 
  which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
  company opts for e-voting through 
  CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended 
  not to share your password with any other 
  person and take utmost care to keep your 
  password confidential.
 (xii) For Members holding shares in physical 
  form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
  on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
 (xiii) Click on the EVSN for “K.S.Oils Limited”.
 (xiv) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
  DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 
  option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option 
  YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 
  that you assent to the Resolution and option 
  NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
 (xv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you 
  wish to view the entire Resolution details.
 (xvi) After selecting the resolution you have decided 
  to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 
  box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
  your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 
  vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
  modify your vote.
 (xvii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the 
  resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
  your vote.
 (xviii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by 
  clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
  Voting page.
 (xix) If a demat account holder has forgotten the 
  login password then Enter the User ID and the 
  image verification code and click on Forgot 
  Password & enter the details as prompted by 
  the system.
 (xx) Shareholders can also cast their vote using 
  CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available 
  for android based mobiles. The m-Voting 
  app can be downloaded from Google Play 
  Store. Apple and Windows phone users 
  can download the app from the App Store 
  and the Windows Phone Store respectively 
  on or after 30th June 2016. Please follow the 
  instructions as prompted by the mobile app 
  while voting on your mobile.
 (xxi) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 

  Custodians
	 	 l Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
   Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian  
   are  required  to  log  on  to  www.evotingindia 
   com  and  register themselves as Corporates.
	 	 l A scanned copy of the Registration Form 
   bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
   should be emailed to  helpdesk.evoting@ 
   cdslindia.com.
	 	 l After receiving the login details a Compliance 
   User should be created using the admin 
   login and password. The Compliance User 
   would be able to link the account(s) for which 
   they wish to vote on.
	 	 l The   list   of   accounts   linked   in   the   login   
   should   be   mailed   to helpdesk.evoting@ 
   cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
   accounts they would be able to cast their vote.
	 	 l A scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
   and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
   have issued in favour of the Custodian, if 
   any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
   the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
   same.
 (xxii) In case you have any queries or issues 
  regarding e-voting, you may refer the 
  Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
  e-voting manual available at www. 
  evotingindia.com, under help section or 
  write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia. 
  com 
B. CS Prakash Verma, Practicing Company Secretary 
 (Membership No. ACS 31801) has been appointed 
 by the Board of Directors as Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
 the voting (e-voting & Ballot voting) and process in a 
 fair and transparent manner.
C. The Scrutinizer shall not later than 48 (Forty Eight) 
 hours of the conclusion of 30th Annual General 
 Meeting, submit a consolidated scrutinizer’s report 
 to the Chairman/Managing Director of the Company, 
 who shall declare the results forthwith.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT 
TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND FORMING PART OF 
THE NOTICE CONVENING THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF THE COMPANY

ITEM NO. 04
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 27, 
2106 appointed Mr. Prakash Chand, as an Additional 
Director of the Company. According to the provisions 
of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, he holds 
office as director only up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting. As required under Section 160 of 
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the Companies Act, 2013, a notice has been received 
from a member signifying its intention to propose the 
appointment of Mr. Prakash Chand as an Independent 
Director along with the deposit of requisite amount. 
Mr. Prakash Chand is not disqualified from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. 
Section 149 of the Act, interalia, stipulates the criteria 
of independence to appoint an Independent director on 
its Board. As per the said Section 149, an independent 
director can hold office for a term up to 5 (five) 
consecutive years on the Board of a company and he/
she shall not be included in the total number of directors 
for retirement by rotation.
Mr. Prakash Chand has given a declaration to the 
Board that he meets the criteria of independence as 
prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Act. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions 
specified in the Act read with the rules made thereunder 
for appointment as an Independent Director and he is 
independent of the Management.
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read 
with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. 
Prakash Chand as an Independent Director is now being 
placed before the Members for their approval.
Mr. Prakash Chand is graduated in economics from the 
University of Delhi, having rich experience of over 25 
Years. He is retired from the State Trading Corporation 
of India Limited (the premier trading house of the Govt. 
of India) as Chief General Manager (Marketing). He 
has vast experience in the International Trade of Agri-
commodities, besides Export/ Import/ domestic and 
brand marketing of crude and refined edible oils. He 
also possesses in-depth knowledge of shipping and port 
based logistics and handling of goods. In the opinion 
of the Board, his vast experience and knowledge will 
benefit the company in long run.
This statement may also be regarded as a disclosure 
under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The terms and 
conditions for appointment of Mr. Prakash Chand as an 
Independent Director of the Company shall be open for 
inspection by the members at the registered office of 
the Company during the normal Business hours on any 
working day.
The Board of Directors recommends the said resolution 
for your approval.
Mr. Prakash Chand is deemed to be interested in the 
said resolution as it relates to his appointment. 
None of the other Directors or key managerial personnel 
or their relatives is, in anyway, concerned or interested 
in the said resolution. 
ITEM NO. 5
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 27, 
2016 appointed Mrs. Preeti, as an Additional Director of 
the Company. According to the provisions of Section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013, she holds office as director 
only up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. As 
required under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

a notice has been received from a member signifying 
its intention to propose the appointment of Mrs. Preeti 
as an Independent Director along with the deposit of 
requisite amount. 
Mrs. Preeti is not disqualified from being appointed as 
a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has 
given her consent to act as a Director. Section 149 of 
the Act, interalia, stipulates the criteria of independence 
to appoint an Independent director on its Board. As per 
the said Section 149, an independent director can hold 
office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years on the 
Board of a company and he/she shall not be included in 
the total number of directors for retirement by rotation.
Mrs. Preeti has given a declaration to the Board that she 
meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act. In the opinion 
of the Board, she fulfills the conditions specified in the 
Act read with the rules made thereunder for appointment 
as an Independent Director and she is independent of 
the Management.
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read 
with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mrs. 
Preeti as an Independent Director is now being placed 
before the Members for their approval. 
Mrs. Preeti is MBA from Patna University, a young 
versatile, enthusiastic person having experience in the 
field of Financial Management. Besides, she is social 
worker and very close and sensitive to the cause of 
Industrial workers. In the opinion of the Board, her 
experience and knowledge will benefit the company in 
long run. 
This statement may also be regarded as a disclosure 
under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The terms 
and conditions for appointment of Mrs. Preeti as an 
Independent Director of the Company shall be open for 
inspection by the members at the registered office of 
the Company during the normal Business hours on any 
working day.
The Board of Directors recommends the said resolution 
for your approval.
Mrs. Preeti is deemed to be interested in the said 
resolution as it relates to her appointment. 
None of the other Directors or key managerial personnel 
or their relatives is, in anyway, concerned or interested 
in the said resolution.
ITEM NO. 6
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, has approved the appointment and 
payment of remuneration to M/s S. K. Saxena & Co., 
Cost Accountants as cost auditors to conduct the audit 
of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2017 at a remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- 
(Rupees Twenty Thousand Only) subject to payment 
of applicable taxes thereon and re-imbursement of out 
of pocket expenses. In accordance with the provisions 
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the applicable Rules, the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of 



Annual Report 2015-2016 97

the Company. The Board of Directors recommends the 
proposed resolution for your approval.
None of the directors / key managerial personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned 

October 14, 2016
New Delhi

Registered Office: 
Jiwaji Ganj, Morena,
Madhya Pradesh – 476 001

By order of the Board of Directors
For K. S. OILS LIMITED

Sd/-
Sandeep Kumar

Company Secretary

or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed 
resolution. The Board of Directors recommends the 
Resolution under Item no. 6 to be passed as an Ordinary 
Resolution by the Members.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT
Name of the Date of Birth Qualification Nature of Expertise Name of the Name of 
Director (No. of Shares  in specific public Committee 
 held)  functional areas companies in of Public 
    which he hold Companies of 
    directorship which he 
     holds 
     Membership/ 
     chairmanship

Mr. Davesh 13/04/1983 BBA & MBA Mr. Davesh Agarwal Nil Nil 
Agarwal (Nil)  looks into the 
   administrative and 
   financial aspects of 
   the Company. He has 
   over 9 years of 
   experience in 
   administrative and 
   financial management 
   of the Company.

Mr. Prakash 25/07/1950 B.A. (Eco.) He has vast experience Nil Nil 
Chand (Nil)  in the International Trade 
   of Agri-commodities, 
   besides Export/ Import/ 
   domestic and brand 
   marketing of crude and 
   refined edible oils. He 
   also possesses in-depth 
   knowledge of shipping 
   and port based logistics 
   and handling of goods.

Mrs. Preeti 12/01/1989 MBA She is experience in the 
 (Nil)  field of Financial 
   Management and Labour 
   cause

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS

The Ministry of Corporate affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing compliances 
by the Companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice / documents including Annual Report can 
be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the Government infull measure, members who 
have not registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses, in respects of 
electronics holding with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants.
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K. S. OILS LIMITED
CIN: L15141MP1985PLC003171

Reg. Off: Jiwaji Ganj, Morena, MP- 476001
Tel: 91-7532-300000 : Fax: +91-7532-405060

E-mail : investors@ksoils.com : Website : www.ksoils.com

CIN L15141MP1985PLC003171

Name of the Company K.S.Oils Limited

Registered Office Jiwaji Ganj, Morena, MP- 476001

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-Mail ID:

Folio No/ Client ID  DP ID*

* Applicable to shareholders holding shares in electronic form.

I/We …………………………………………………….. (name) of ………………………………………………(place) being the 

holder(s) of ……………………………..shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1 Name
 Address
 E-Mail ID  Signature
  Or falling him
2 Name
 Address
 E-Mail ID  Signature
  Or falling him
3 Name
 Address
 E-Mail ID  Signature
  Or falling him

Form No. MGT - 11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 
2014]

ATTENDANCE SLIP
DPId* Folio No.

Client Id* No. of Shares

*Applicable to shareholders holding shares in electronic form

Name and Address of Shareholder : …………………………………………………………………………………...........................

.....................................................................................................................................................................................................

I hereby record my/our presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company at Factory office, A. B. Road, 
Industrial Area, Morena-476 001 (M.P.) on Monday, 14th November, 2016 at 04:00 P.M.

Signature of Shareholder
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Affix Re. 1/-
Revenue
Stamp

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Monday 14thNovember, 2016 at 04:00 P.M. at Factory office, A.B. Road, Industrial Area, Morena – 
476 001(M.P) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolution For  Against
1 To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements 
 (including audited consolidated financial statements) for the 
 Financial Year ended March, 31 2016 and the Reports of the 
 Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Davesh Agarwal 
 (DIN: 01102237), who retires by rotation and being eligible 
 offers himself for re-appointment.

3 To ratify the appointment of Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

4 To appoint Mr. Prakash Chand (DIN:06435360) as an 
 Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by 
 rotation and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
 years with effect from May 27, 2016.

5 To appoint Mrs. Preeti (DIN:07512783) as an Independent 
 Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to 
 hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect 
 from May 27, 2016.

6 To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial 
 year ended March 31, 2017.

Signed this ………………………………….day of ………………........................2016

……………………………………  ……………………………………

Signature of the Member  Signature of proxy holder

 

Note: This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

K.S.OIL LIMITED

Morena
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Route Map to the Venue of the AGM
Venue: K.S.Oils Limited 
Factory Office: 
AB Road, Morena-Madhya Pradesh
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K. S. OIL LIMITED

Email: investors@ksoils.com  Website: www.ksoils.com

Delhi Office:
806 New Delhi House

27, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110 001

If undelivered, please return to:

Registered Office:
Jiwaji Ganj, Morena
Madhya Pradesh - 476 001




